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ETF
(2022 29 )
)

10,507, 338,648.99

205,418,470,588 90.98

1,041,372,264.42 9 02

( ) 20,358,827,769 :

11,548,710,913.41

( ) 225,777,298,357 100.00

) ETF
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(2022 29 )
)
( @)

KWEICHOW MOUTAI

1 363,665 1,129.56| 410,780,201.68] 1,828.38| 664,917,812.70| 5.76
CO LTD-A
CONTEMPORARY

2 811,366 626.34| 508,193,756.37 409.35| 332,132,672.10| 2.88
AMPEREX TECHN-A
CHINA MERCHANTS

3 7,178,652 32.49| 233,264,458.57 39.93| 286,643,574.36| 2.48
BANK-A
PING AN INSURANCE

4 6,277,898 54.23| 340,430,133.63 44 .56 279,743,134.88| 2.42
GROUP CO-A
WULIANGYE YIBIN

5 1,127,203 123.45| 139,152,783.74 162.13| 182,753,422.39| 1.58
CO LTD-A
INDUSTRIAL BANK

6 8,428,952 17.69| 149,137,247.73 20.48| 172,624,936.96| 1.49
CO LTD-A
XIAN LONGI

7 2,510,104 35.88 90,074,664.12 67.96| 170,586,667.84| 1.48
SILICON MATERIA-A
MIDEA GROUP CO

8 LTD-A 2,831,424 57.60| 163,094,536.13 57.09| 161,645,996.16| 1.40
CHINA YANGTZE

9 6,589,485 17.19| 113,275,138.36 22.72| 149,713,099.20| 1.30
POWER CO LTD-A
EAST MONEY

10 6,080,915 14.68 89,264,974.16 22.78| 138,523,243.70| 1.20
INFORMATION CO-A

11 BYD CO LTD-A 525,379 111.44 58,548,667.26 243.00| 127,667,097.00| 1.11
WUXI APPTEC CO

12 LTD-A 1,189,252 81.81 97,298,541.67 103.23| 122,766,483.96| 1.06
HANGZHOU

13 HIKVISION 2,706,213 36.14 97,795,274.89 42.49| 114,986,990.37| 1.00
DIGITAL-A
INNER MONGOLIA

14 2,966,973 26.88 79,742,615.02 38.47| 114,139,451.31| 0.99
YILI INDUS-A
CITIC SECURITIES

15 C0-A 5,676,620 20.87| 118,476,517.48 19.69| 111,772,647.80| 0.97
CHINA

16 INTERNAT IONAL 565,352 118.67 67,088,070.59 181.99| 102,888,410.48| 0.89
TRAVEL-A
IND & COMM BK OF

17 20,316,118 5.04| 102,377,978.22 4.78 97,111,044.04| 0.84
CHINA-A
Z1JIN MINING

18 8,357,866 5.74 47,972,618.62 11.07 92,521,576.62| 0.80
GROUP CO LTD-A
LUZHOU LAOJIAO CO

19 LTD-A 423,303 106.34 45,014,544 .05 210.73 89,202,641.19| 0.77
SHENZHEN MINDRAY

20 282,789 369.88| 104,598,063.20 312.50 88,371,562.50| 0.77
BIO-MEDIC-A
LUXSHARE

21 PRECISION 2,854,499 23.54 67,184,130.75 30.88 88,146,929.12| 0.76
INDUSTR-A
PING AN BANK CO

22 LTD-A 5,624,126 13.97 78,590,592.05 15.32 86,161,610.32| 0.75
GREE ELECTRIC

23 2,742,286 38.15| 104,628,171.80 31.21 85,586,746.06| 0.74
APPLIANCES 1-A
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BANK OF NINGBO CO
24 LTD-A 2,297,456 24.60 56,506,599.13 36.31 83,420,627.36| 0.72
BANK OF
25 COMMUNICATIONS 15,924,283 5.52 87,946,383.39 5.08 80,895,357.64| 0.70
CO-A
MUYUAN FOODSTUFF
26 1,525,298 34.22 52,201,971.65 52.23 79,666,314.54| 0.69
CO LTD-A
SHANXT XINGHUACUN
27 283,773 133.01 37,744,992.85 272.00 77,186,256.00| 0.67
FEN WINE-A
JIANGSU HENGRUI
28 2,594,737 40.45| 104,957,592.34 29.48 76,492,846.76| 0.66
MEDICINE C-A
CHINA VANKE CO
29 LTD-A 3,945,081 22.55 88,966,235.13 19.38 76,455,669.78| 0.66
CHINA STATE
30 12,153,377 4.90 59,558,450.62 6.28 76,323,207.56| 0.66
CONSTRUCTION-A
(2022 29 )
21
14
13
13
8
8
7
3
2
2
1
9
100
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2012 17 2012 12 10
2021 2022

( ) () ) ()

(2012 12 ) 14,118,488,634.52 276,016,452,805 24.9664 488
(2013 12 ) 9,174,011,845.27 179,351,931,575 23.1054 452
(2014 12 ) 11,839,565,023.94 231,463,496,218 35.3314 691
(2015 12 ) 10,243,577,104._73 200,261,932,397 38.0449 744
(2016 12 ) 9,476,624,954.07 185,268,017,852 33.8390 662
(2017 12 ) 11,093,503,378.06 216,877,991,041 41.1328 804
(2018 12 ) 11,816,519,143.00 231,012,949,246 30.7122 600
(2019 12 ) 17,382,025,714.00 339,818,602,709 41.7586 816
(2020 12 ) 15,733,343,678.57 307,586,868,916 53.0815 1,038
%2021 12 ) 16,564,849,087.78 323,842,799,666 50.3797 985
2021 18,220,043,113.69 356,201,842,873 54.2274 1,060
2021 17,981,507,127.00 351,538,464,333 53.3497 1,043
2021 15,251,985,467.34 298,176,315,886 49.1207 960
2021 14,340,716,946.66 280,361,016,307 49.1541 961
2021 14,728,641,278.89 287,944,937,002 49.7421 972
2021 10 15,134,815,890.87 295,885,650,667 50.1734 981
2021 11 14,890,439,261.16 291,108,087,556 49.3633 965
2021 12 16,564,849,087.78 323,842,799, 666 50.3797 985
2022 15,770,120,127.28 308,305,848,488 46.5195 909
2022 15,785,050,245.85 308,597,732,306 46.6668 912
2022 11,685,586,391.86 228,453,213,961 42 .9696 840
2022 11,548,710,913.41 225,777,298,357 40.8876 799
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2022 13 11,526,482,833.78 | 225,342,739,400 40.6148 794
( )
( ) )
012 12 ; 25.20 493
2013 12 ) 23.00 450
Q014 12 ) 34.35 672
2015 12 ) 38.10 745
(2016 12 ) 33.85 662
2017 12 ) 41.13 804
2018 12 , 30.74 601
(2010 12 ; 41.76 816
(2020 12 ) 53.08 1,038
10
2021 12 ) 50.38 985
2021 54.23 1,060
2021 53.35 1,043
2021 49.12 960
2021 49.15 961
2021 49.74 972
2021 10 50.17 981
2021 11 49.36 965
2021 12 50.38 985
2022 46.52 909
2022 46.67 912
2022 42.97 840
2022 40.89 799
2022 13 40.61 794
( ) )
0 0
0.18 4
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0.30 6
0.30 6
0.30 6
0.33 6
0.35 7
0.39 8
0.38 7
10 0.30 6
( Y(O)
3.98
-6.71
53.79
8.53
-10.27
22.53
-24.48
37.24
28.03
10 -4.52
) () 100x (a b) b

ETF ( )
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(@) (@) (@)
565,500,000 0 565,500,000
65,100,000 233,550,000 397,050,000
168,150,000 230,100,000 335,100,000
273,900,000 339,750,000 269,250,000
92,850,000 82,050,000 280,050,000
153,150,000 163,500,000 269,700,000
214,650,000 99,600,000 384,750,000
159,000,000 127,500,000 416,250,000
122,250,000 242,100,000 296,400,000
10 109,650,000 77,250,000 328,800,000

(

)
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ETF ETF
ETF ETF 10
ETF
ETF ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
@
(b)
©
(d)
e ETF ETF
ETF
Q)
()] ETF ETF
h) ETF (¢))
) ETF
10
ETF
ETF ETF
10
ETF
http://etf.chinaamc.com.hk/HKen/CS1300
ETF
ETF ETF
@ (d)(@)
(i) ETF
2012 17 ETF

ETF
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ETF
ETF 200 ETF
200
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
TSF 2011 10 24 Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited HKEX
2012 TSF
ETF TSF
ETF ETF TSF
TSF
ETF
ETF
ETF ETF
ETF
ETF ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
83188 CAM CS1300-R ETF
03188 CAM CS1300 ETF
HK0000110269 ETF
HK0000123577

ETF
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80,000
@
ETF
@
ETF
ETF ETF
ETF ETF
ETF
@
Q)
(i)
Giii)
@v)
(b)
© V)
ETF
(d)
e
ETF
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ETF
ETF
(@ ETF
(b) ETF
ETF
© ETF
()] ETF ETF
ETF
e ETF ETF
Q)
ETF
(M) an@®)
@) ETF
ETF
http://etf.chinaamc.com.hk/HKen/CS1300
ETF
ETF

ETF ETF

ETF ETF
0.00005
ETF ETF
ETF 0.00005
ETF
ETF
http://etf_chinaamc.com.hk/HKen/CS1300
ETF ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF ETF

80
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ETF
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12 31
2013
ETF
(H
(iv)
(vi)
Q)
150
ETF
ETF
ETF ETF
@iv)
ETF
ETF

ETF



(iii)

)

ETF

)

14

25

)

ETF (1)
ETF

ETF
w) ETF

ETF

)

Q)

ETF

ETF
ETF

21

50
ETF
@iv)

ETF

ETF
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©) ETF
ETF
(b) ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
ETF
)
ETF
®

@

(b)

©

©)

e

Q) ETF ETF

15
15
ETF
ETF
ETF

@

(b)
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ETF IFRS
ETF
131
ETF Ernst & Young Hong
Kong
ETF ETF
134
19.55 28 15

CNH
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

10

12

@

O)

©

2021

2020

16,485,209,161

119,277,152

322,285,839,098

2,331,868,322

15,635,597,090

116,641,605

305,675,923,110

2,280,343,377

16,604,486,313

324,617,707,420

15,752,238,695

307,956,266,487

9,323,934 182,282,910 8,862,544 173,262,735
6,131,486 119,870,551 3,821,724 74,714,704
21,843,147 427,033,524

2,338,659 45,720,783 6,210,749 121,420,143
39,637,226 774,907,768 18,895,017 369,397,582

16,564,849,087

323,842,799,652

15,733,343,678

307,586,868,905

16,604,486,313

324,617,707,420

15,752,238,695

307,956,266,487
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31
2021 2020
294,460,042 5,756,693,821 272,569,141 5,328,726,707
181,216 3,542,773 384,687 7,520,631
549,112 10,735,140
295,190,370 5,770,971,734 272,953,828 5,336,247,338

(@ ( 112,213,174) ( 2,193,767,552) ( 97,608,334) (  1,908,242,930)
@ ( 22,095,884) (  431,974,532) ( 29,199,413) (  570,848,524)
®) ( 12,073,340) ( 236,033,797) ( 10,349,510) (  202,332,921)
( 133,682) ( 2,613,483) ( 144,555)  ( 2,826,050)

( 65,379) ( 1,278,159) ( 69,781) ( 1,364,219)

( 6,410,442) ( 125,324,141)  ( 5,577,619) ( 109,042, 451)

( 680,137) ( 13,296,678)  ( 253,379) ( 4,953,550)
©) ( 418,253) ( 8,176,846)  ( 526,545) ( 10,293, 955)
(  154,090,2901) ( 3,012,465,188) (  143,729,136) ( 2,809,904,609)
141,100,079 2,758,506,546 129,224,692 2,526,342,729

( 2,075,308,192) ( 40,572,275,154) 1,736,753,244 33,953,525,920
1,161,994,959 22,717,001,448 1,321,500,546 25,835,335,674

(  913,313,233) ( 17,855,273,706) 3,058,253,790 59,788,861,594

(  772,213,154) ( 15,096,767,160) 3,187,478,482 62,315,204,323

(  29,581,710) (  578,322,431) ( 27,374,925) (  535,179,784)

(  801,794,864) ( 15,675,089,591) 3,160,103,557 61,780,024,539
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2021 12 31

2020

2020 12 31 2021

2021 12 31

EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

416,250,000

122,250,000

242,100,000)

17,382,025,714

5,337,704,443

( 10,034,428,036)

3,160,103,557

( 112,062,000)

339,818,602,709

104,352,121,861

196,173,068,104)

61,780,024,539

2,190,812,100)

296,400,000

109,650,000

77,250,000)

15,733,343,678

5,742,756,701

( 4,013,201, 428)
( 801,794,864)
( 96,255,000)

(

(

(

307,586,868,905

112,270,893,505

78,458,087,917)

15,675,089,591)

1,881,785,250)

328,800,000

16,564,849,087

323,842,799,652
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

2021 2020
(  772,213,154) ( 15,096,767,160) 3,187,478,482 62,315,204,323
(  849,612,071) ( 16,609,915,988) 1,629,226,222 31,851,372,640
28,852 564,057
461,390 9,020,175 ( 513,812) ( 10,045,025)
2,309,762 45,155,847  ( 884,396) ( 17,289,942)
( 3,872,090) ( 75,699,360) 2,748,261 53,728,503
( 1,622,926,163)  (31,728,206,486) 4,818,083,609 94,193,534,556
( 20,581,710) (  578,322,431) ( 27,374,925) ( 535,179,784)
( 1,652,507,873)  (32,306,528,917) 4,790,708, 684 93,658,354,772
( 96,255,000) ( 1,881,785,250) ( 112,062,000) (  2,190,812,100)
5,764,599,848 112,697,927,029 5,330,220,982 104, 205,820,198

(  4,013,201,428) ( 78,458,087,917) ( 10,034,428,036) (196,173,068,104)

1,655,143,420 32,358,053,862 (  4,816,269,054) ( 94,158,060,006)
2,635,547 51,524,945 ( 25,560,370) ( 499,705,234)

116,641,605 2,280,343,377 142,201,975 2,780,048,611

12 119,277,152 2,331,868,322 116,641,605 2,280,343,377
12 119,277,152 2,331,868,322 116,641,605 2,280,343,377
264,879,250 264,879,250 245,209,069 4,793,837,299

180,298 180,298 369,834 7,230,255
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

ChinaAMC ETF

2012 28

SFC

2012 17
03188
TSE

2014 30

ROFII

ROFII
SAFE

2.1

IFRS 1ASB
SFC

1575

SAFE

CSI 300 Index
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104(1)

ChinaAMC CSI 300 Index ETF

SEHK
83188 2012 10 26
2013 27
SAFE
RQFII
RQFII
SAFE
RQFII
Index
Index A
1ASB
SFC E

FVPL
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31
2.2
IFRS
2.3
2021 12 31 IFRS
IFRS

I1AS

I1AS

IFRS

2023
IFRS
I1AS
I1AS IFRS
significant
material

2023
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

IFRS

105/306

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

(a

FVPL
FVPL

FVPL
FVPL

¢
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31
(c
FVPL
FVPL
(d
FVPL
FVPL
FVPL EIR
FVPL EIR
EIR

ECL
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

(e

ECL

12

ECL
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

ECL

109/306



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

FVPL
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

(a

(b
(c

(d

(e

(a

I
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

(a

(b

FVPL

FVPL

FVPL
FVPL

NAV
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

I

~

@C )

SFC
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31
(a
0.70
2021 12 31 112,213,174 2020
97,608,334 2021 12 31 9,323,934
2020 8,862,544
(b
Citibank N_A.
Citibank (China) Co., Limited PRC
0.07 0.10
4,000
2021 12 31
12,073,340 2020 10,349,510 2021 12 31 6,131,486

2020 3,821,724

(c

115/306



ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31
(c
2021 12 31
69,781 2021 12 31
54,285 2020 54,761
(d

CITIC Securities Co. Ltd.

Markets Ltd.

2021

CITIC Securities Co. Ltd.

CLSA Limited

Citigroup Global Markets
Ltd.

2020

CITIC Securities Co. Ltd.

Citigroup Global Markets
Ltd.

91,136,469

3,529,218

2,180,891,933

36,250,413

1,287,157,509

CLSA Limited
2021 12 31
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72,605

1,744,714

28,445

1,015,590

65,380

0.08

0.56

0.02

13.34

0.19

6.73

2020

0.08

Citigroup Global
2020 12 31

0.08

0.08

0.08

0.08
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31
(e
2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020
Citibank, N.A. 10 6,600,667,454 8,895,503,199
Citibank (China) Co., Limited 10 9,884,541,707 6,740,093,891
Citibank, N.A. 12 67,178,221 36,109,580
Citibank (China) Co., Limited 12 52,098,931 80,532,025
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
14 26 26A
10

10
2021 12 31
29,581,710 2020 27,374,925
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31
2020
2020 27
2020 12 31 2021
2021 26

2021 12 31
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90

3,160,103,557

(  3,058,253,790)

101,849,767

0.38 ( 112,062,000)
10,212,233
( 801,794,864)

913,313,233

111,518,369

0.30 ( 96,255,000)

( 15,263,369)
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31
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2021 2020
296,400,000 416,250,000
109,650,000 122,250,000

( 77,250,000) ( 242,100,000)
328,800,000 296,400,000

2021 2020
16,564 ,849,087 15,733,343,678

50.3797 53.0815
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

10

2021 2020

16,485,209,161 15,635,597,090

11
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

11

2021 2020

2021 2020
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF

ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

11

2021 12 31 2020 12 31

2021

16,485,209 16,485,209

2020

15,635,597 15,635,597

2021 12 31

2020 12 31
Zhejiang Huayou Cobalt Company Limited 603799

2021 12 31 2020 12 31

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31
11

2021 12 31 2020 12 31

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
12
2021 2020
119,277,152 116,641,605
Citibank, N.A. Citibank (China) Co., Ltd.
13 SFC
7.1
10

SFC 10

(a Index 10

(b Index

Index
SFC

SFC

2021 12 31 10 Index
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31
14
(a
(
Index A Index
Index
Index A Index

Index A
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31
14
(a
(
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 2020
A
239,646,217 1.45 280,177,796 1.76
1,344,560,417 8.12 1,556,050,005 9.89
2,455,350,544 14.82 2,546,279,828 16.21
182,588,784 1.10 178,233,585 1.13
3,466,803,960 20.93 4,146,919,852 26.38
1,586,504,847 9.58 1,486,428,420 9.43
2,429,322,290 14.67 1,636,676,209 10.39
2,680,788,118 16.18 2,129,157,142 13.54
1,424,713,664 8.60 967,125,871 6.15
278,318,189 1.68 447,373,540 2.84
396,612,131 2.39 261,174,842 1.66
16,485,209,161 99.52 15,635,597,090 99.38
Index
2021 12 31 Index 2020
824 2020 782

Index 2020

125/306



ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31
14

(a

(

(

¢

100

2020 100
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31
14
(b
IFRS
IFRS
IFRS ECL
2021 12 31 119,277,152
2020 116,641,605
IFRS

FVPL
IFRS
IFRS
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31
14
(b
2021 12 31
Citibank, N.A. 6,600,667,454 A+ S&P
Citibank (China) Co., Limited 9,884,541,707 A+ S&P
2020 12 31
Citibank, N.A. 8,895,503,199 A+ S&P
Citibank (China) Co., Limited 6,740,093,891 A+ S&P
2021 2020 12 31
(c

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF

ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

14

(c

FVPL

2021 12 31

- 16,485,209 - - 16,485,209
119,277 - - - 119,277
119,277 16,485,209 - - 16,604,486

- 9,324 - - 9,324

i} - 6,131 - 6,131

- 21,843 - - 21,843

- - 2,339 - 2,339

- 31,167 8,470 - 39,637
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF

ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

14

(c

2020 12 31

15,635,597 15,635,597

116,642 116,642
116,642 15,635,597 15,752,239
8,862 8,862

3,822 3,822

6,211 6,211

8,862 10,033 18,895
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31
15
16
10,800,000 61,050,000
17

2022 23
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

China Satel lite Communications Co Ltd
China Telecom Corp Ltd

China United Network Communications Ltd
Focus Media Information Technology Co Ltd
Mango Excellent Media Co Ltd

Perfect World Co Ltd/China

Wuhu Sangi Interactive Entertainment Network Technology Group Co
Ltd

Zhejiang Century Huatong Group Co Ltd

Beijing Roborock Technology Co Ltd
BYD Co Ltd

Changzhou Xingyu Automotive Lighting Systems Co Ltd
China Tourism Group Duty Free Corp Ltd
Chongqing Changan Automobile Co Ltd
Ecovacs Robotics Co Ltd

FAW Jiefang Group Co Ltd

Fuyao Glass Industry Group Co Ltd

Great Wall Motor Co Ltd

Gree Electric Appliances Inc of Zhuhai
Guangzhou Automobi le Group Co Ltd

Haier Smart Home Co Ltd

Huayu Automotive Systems Co Ltd

Midea Group Co Ltd

0ffcn Education Technology Co Ltd

Oppein Home Group Inc

SAIC Motor Corp Ltd

Shandong Linglong Tyre Co Ltd

Shanghai Yuyuan Tourist Mart Group Co Ltd
Shenzhen Overseas Chinese Town Co Ltd
Songcheng Performance Development Co Ltd
Suning.com Co Ltd

TCL Technology Group Corp

Zhejiang Supor Co Ltd

132/306
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335,629
3,460,000
13,788,608
7,506,502
558,806
864,794

992,329
3,315,335

25,371
672,979
109,350
723,255

2,829,978
171,400
687,500

1,044,978
907,740

3,510,486

1,622,573

2,811,917

1,163,528

3,618,324

1,374,944
138,083

3,470,759
503,200

1,149,563

3,043,374

1,169,197

2,770,352

10,418,694
122,997

4,829,701
14,981,800
54,189,229
61,478,251
31,974,879
17,563,966

26,812,730
27,815,661

20,626,623
180,439,129
22,334,737
158,689,380
42,987,366
25,872,830
7,074,375
49,260,263
44,061,700
129,993,297
24,646,884
84,048,199
32,927,842
267,068,494
10,807,060
20,367,242
71,601,758
18,391,960
11,840,499
21,425,353
16,742,901
11,413,850
64,283,342
7,655,333
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.03
.09
.33
.37
.19
A1

.16
.17

.12
.09
.13
.96
.26
.16
.04
.30
.27
.78
.15
.51
.20
.61
.07
.12
.43
A1
.07
.13
.10
.07
.39
.05
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Anhui Gujing Distillery Co Ltd

Chongging Brewery Co Ltd

DaShenLin Pharmaceutical Group Co Ltd

Eastroc Beverage Group Co Ltd

Foshan Haitian Flavouring & Food Co Ltd
Guangdong Haid Group Co Ltd

Henan Shuanghui Investment & Development Co Ltd
Inner Mongolia Yili Industrial Group Co Ltd
Jiangsu King"s Luck Brewery JSC Ltd

Jiangsu Yanghe Brewery Joint-Stock Co Ltd
Jiangxi Zhengbang Technology Co Ltd

Jonjee Hi-Tech Industrial And Commercial Holding Co Ltd
Juewei Food Co Ltd

Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd

Luzhou Laojiao Co Ltd

Muyuan Foods Co Ltd

New Hope Liuhe Co Ltd

Shanghai Bairun Investment Holding Group Co Ltd
Shanxi Xinghuacun Fen Wine Factory Co Ltd
Tongwei Co Ltd

Tsingtao Brewery Co Ltd

Wens Foodstuffs Group Co Ltd

Wuliangye Yibin Co Ltd

Yifeng Pharmacy Chain Co Ltd

Yihai Kerry Arawana Holdings Co Ltd

Yonghui Superstores Co Ltd

China Coal Energy Co Ltd

China Oilfield Services Ltd
China Petroleum & Chemical Corp
China Shenhua Energy Co Ltd
PetroChina Co Ltd

Shaanxi Coal Industry Co Ltd
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94,711 23,109,484 0.14
180,858 27,367,433 0.17
233,439 9,830,116 0.06

48,100 8,746,504 0.05
936,838 98,471,042 0.59
619,580 45,415,214 0.27

1,287,783 40,629,554 0.25
3,800,872 157,584,153 0.95
463,217 25,199,005 0.15
446,568 73,563,147 0.44
1,178,864 11,387,826 0.07
415,787 15,787,432 0.10
268,960 18,378,037 0.11
465,724 954,734,200 5.76
540,903 137,319,045 0.83
1,953,938 104,262,132 0.63
1,677,365 25,512,722 0.15
273,240 16,347,949 0.10
364,673 115,156,440 0.70
2,001,444 89,984,922 0.54
262,245 25,962,255 0.16
3,298,205 63,523,428 0.38
1,444,327 321,593,850 1.94
262,785 14,482,081 0.09
319,200 20,087,256 0.12
2,695,140 10,915,317 0.07
1,358,900 8,547,481 0.06
439,214 6,588,210 0.04
9,916,527 41,946,909 0.25
2,444,233 55,044,127 0.33
7,206,869 35,385,727 0.21
2,875,109 35,076,330 0.21
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Agricultural Bank of China Ltd 26,044,289 76,570,210 0.46
Bank of Beijing Co Ltd 10,977,245 48,738,968 0.29
Bank of Chengdu Co Ltd 1,608,966 19,307,592 0.12
Bank of China Ltd 15,627,063 47,662,542 0.29
Bank of Communications Co Ltd 20,385,483 93,977,077 0.57
Bank of Hangzhou Co Ltd 2,199,300 28,195,026 0.17
Bank of Jiangsu Co Ltd 8,767,207 51,112,817 0.31
Bank of Nanjing Co Ltd 3,713,726 33,274,985 0.20
Bank of Ningbo Co Ltd 2,942,561 112,641,235 0.68
Bank of Shanghai Co Ltd 7,370,838 52,554,075 0.32
BOC International China Co Ltd 1,035,920 13,933,124 0.08
Caitong Securities Co Ltd 1,855,036 20,628,000 0.12
Changjiang Securities Co Ltd 2,870,395 21,642,778 0.13
China CITIC Bank Corp Ltd 2,267,282 10,474,843 0.06
China Construction Bank Corp 4,977,200 29,166,392 0.18
China Everbright Bank Co Ltd 12,267,502 40,728,107 0.25
China Galaxy Securities Co Ltd 949,977 10,630,243 0.06
China International Capital Corp Ltd 236,908 11,615,599 0.07
China Life Insurance Co Ltd 1,239,028 37,282,353 0.23
China Merchants Bank Co Ltd 9,194,252 447,852,015 2.70
China Merchants Securities Co Ltd 2,750,926 48,553,844 0.29
China Minsheng Banking Corp Ltd 18,423,273 71,850,765 0.43
China Pacific Insurance Group Co Ltd 2,537,364 68,813,312 0.42
China Zheshang Bank Co Ltd 6,206,300 21,722,050 0.13
CITIC Securities Co Ltd 6,323,796 167,011,452 1.01
CSC Financial Co Ltd 956,775 27,985,669 0.17
East Money Information Co Ltd 6,135,321 227,681,762 1.37
Everbright Securities Co Ltd 1,456,052 21,738,856 0.13
Founder Securities Co Ltd 3,051,699 23,925,320 0.14
GF Securities Co Ltd 2,195,677 53,991,697 0.33
Guosen Securities Co Ltd 2,143,355 24,605,715 0.15
Guotai Junan Securities Co Ltd 3,341,535 59,780,061 0.36
Haitong Securities Co Ltd 7,164,652 87,838,634 0.53
Hithink RoyalFlush Information Network Co Ltd 161,449 23,342,296 0.14
Hongta Securities Co Ltd 696,472 8,301,946 0.05
Huatai Securities Co Ltd 3,817,684 67,802,068 0.41
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Huaxia Bank Co Ltd 4,564,755 25,562,628 0.15
Industrial & Commercial Bank of China Ltd 25,998,568 120,373,370 0.73
Industrial Bank Co Ltd 10,799,931 205,630,686 1.24
Industrial Securities Co Ltd 3,972,551 39,248,804 0.24
Nanjing Securities Co Ltd 1,650,418 16,355,642 0.10
New China Life Insurance Co Ltd 622,116 24,187,870 0.15
Orient Securities Co Ltd/China 3,096,535 45,642,926 0.28
People®s Insurance Co Group of China Ltd/The 2,114,089 9,936,218 0.06
Ping An Bank Co Ltd 7,202,316 118,694,168 0.72
Ping An Insurance Group Co of China Ltd 8,043,298 405,462,652 2.45
Postal Savings Bank of China Co Ltd 8,062,422 41,118,352 0.25
SDIC Capital Co Ltd 1,897,917 15,600,878 0.09
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co Ltd 8,703,178 74,238,108 0.45
Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co Ltd 8,362,564 42,816,328 0.26
Sinolink Securities Co Ltd 1,791,760 20,300,641 0.12
Tianfeng Securities Co Ltd 3,221,040 13,045,212 0.08
Zheshang Securities Co Ltd 1,146,500 15,110,870 0.09
Zhongtai Securities Co Ltd 2,060,700 20,545,179 0.12
Aier Eye Hospital Group Co Ltd 2,002,773 84,677,242 0.52
Asymchem Laboratories Tianjin Co Ltd 112,156 48,787,860 0.29
Autobio Diagnostics Co Ltd 177,644 9,781,079 0.06
Beijing Tiantan Biological Products Corp Ltd 503,591 14,583,995 0.09
Beijing Tongrentang Co Ltd 502,990 22,624,490 0.14
Beijing Wantai Biological Pharmacy Enterprise Co Ltd 93,980 20,816,570 0.13
Betta Pharmaceuticals Co Ltd 187,620 14,977,705 0.09
BGI Genomics Co Ltd 187,111 16,428,346 0.10
Bloomage Biotechnology Corp Ltd 83,130 12,910,089 0.08
Changchun High & New Technology Industry Group Inc 239,908 65,111,031 0.39
Chongqing Zhifei Biological Products Co Ltd 596,063 74,269,450 0.45
Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals Co Ltd 127,760 8,986,638 0.05
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings Co Ltd 514,754 17,604,587 0.11
Guangzhou Kingmed Diagnostics Group Co Ltd 208,215 23,188,905 0.14
Hangzhou Tigermed Consulting Co Ltd 391,050 49,976,190 0.30
Huadong Medicine Co Ltd 649,819 26,122,724 0.16
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Hualan Biological Engineering Inc 817,570 23,823,990 0.14
Humanwel I Healthcare Group Co Ltd 721,265 16,242,888 0.10
Imeik Technology Development Co Ltd 68,700 36,830,757 0.22
Intco Medical Technology Co Ltd 279,950 16,192,308 0.10
Jafron Biomedical Co Ltd 365,228 19,466,652 0.12
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine Co Ltd 3,324,440 168,582,352 1.02
Lepu Medical Technology Beijing Co Ltd 932,259 21,097,021 0.13
Meinian Onehealth Healthcare Holdings Co Ltd 2,028,090 15,920,506 0.10
Ovctek China Inc 383,528 22,003,001 0.13
Pharmaron Beijing Co Ltd 197,900 27,957,333 0.17
Shanghai Fosun Pharmaceutical Group Co Ltd 893,789 43,742,034 0.26
Shanghai Pharmaceuticals Holding Co Ltd 857,717 17,042,837 0.10
Shanghai RAAS Blood Products Co Ltd 2,992,738 20,410,473 0.12
Shenzhen Kangtai Biological Products Co Ltd 303,705 29,927,091 0.18
Shenzhen Mindray Bio-Medical Electronics Co Ltd 363,400 138,382,720 0.84
Topchoice Medical Corp 168,219 33,475,581 0.20
Walvax Biotechnology Co Ltd 1,161,339 65,267,252 0.39
Winner Medical Co Ltd 67,900 5,598,355 0.03
WuXi AppTec Co Ltd 1,522,575 180,546,944 1.09
Yunnan Baiyao Group Co Ltd 381,252 39,898,022 0.24
Zhangzhou Pientzehuang Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 223,404 97,661,059 0.59
Zhejiang NHU Co Ltd 1,143,598 35,588,770 0.21
AECC Aviation Power Co Ltd 989,345 62,783,834 0.38
Air China Ltd 2,215,400 20,226,602 0.12
AVIC Shenyang Aircraft Co Ltd 436,599 29,706,196 0.18
AVIC Xi"an Aircraft Industry Group Co Ltd 1,032,839 37,698,623 0.23
Beijing New Building Materials PLC 744,364 26,670,562 0.16
Beijing-Shanghai High Speed Railway Co Ltd 14,566,550 70,356,436 0.42
China Communications Construction Co Ltd 2,615,498 22,440,973 0.14
China CSSC Holdings Ltd 1,326,400 32,881,456 0.20
China Eastern Airlines Corp Ltd 4,059,712 20,948,114 0.13
China Energy Engineering Corp Ltd 9,611,300 26,238,849 0.16
China Rai lway Construction Corp Ltd 3,404,421 26,554,484 0.16
China Rai lway Group Ltd 7,546,640 43,695,046 0.26
China Shipbuilding Industry Co Ltd 8,452,390 35,669,086 0.22
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China Southern Airlines Co Ltd 3,758,515 25,595,487 0.15
China State Construction Engineering Corp Ltd 15,551,417 77,757,085 0.47
Contemporary Amperex Technology Co Ltd 1,040,366 611,735,208 3.69
COSCO SHIPPING Holdings Co Ltd 4,691,951 87,692,564 0.53
CRRC Corp Ltd 9,022,374 54,946,258 0.33
Dagin Railway Co Ltd 4,485,460 28,706,944 0.17
Eve Energy Co Ltd 843,685 99,706,693 0.60
Gongniu Group Co Ltd 62,700 10,489,710 0.06
Guangdong Kinlong Hardware Products Co Ltd 99,120 17,999,201 0.11
Han"s Laser Technology Industry Group Co Ltd 635,420 34,312,680 0.21
Jiangsu Hengli Hydraulic Co Ltd 391,675 32,039,015 0.19
Metallurgical Corp of China Ltd 5,287,670 20,251,776 0.12
NARI Technology Co Ltd 2,057,083 82,345,032 0.50
Power Construction Corp of China Ltd 5,677,787 45,876,519 0.28
Sany Heavy Industry Co Ltd 4,408,615 100,516,422 0.61
SF Holding Co Ltd 1,462,553 100,799,153 0.61
Shanghai International Airport Co Ltd 709,973 33,148,639 0.20
Shanghai International Port Group Co Ltd 2,584,429 14,162,671 0.09
Shanghai M&G Stationery Inc 270,743 17,465,631 0.11
Shenzhen Inovance Technology Co Ltd 1,363,850 93,560,110 0.56
Spring Airlines Co Ltd 267,634 15,201,611 0.09
Sungrow Power Supply Co Ltd 769,962 112,260,460 0.68
Weichai Power Co Ltd 3,521,938 63,007,471 0.38
XCMG Construction Machinery Co Ltd 4,076,369 24,417,450 0.15
Xinjiang Goldwind Science & Technology Co Ltd 2,042,905 33,646,645 0.20
Yunda Holding Co Ltd 862,808 17,653,052 0.11
Zhejiang Chint Electrics Co Ltd 804,125 43,334,296 0.26
Zhejiang Dingli Machinery Co Ltd 183,380 14,718,079 0.09
Zhejiang Sanhua Intelligent Controls Co Ltd 1,330,890 33,671,517 0.20
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Co Ltd 3,686,841 26,434,650 0.16
360 Security Technology Inc 2,116,613 26,923,317 0.16
Advanced Micro-Fabrication Equipment Inc China 185,520 23,486,832 0.14
Anker Innovations Technology Co Ltd 123,600 12,669,000 0.08
Avary Holding Shenzhen Co Ltd 510,283 21,651,308 0.13

137/306



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31

AVIC Jonhon Optronic Technology Co Ltd 410,596 41,289,534 0.25
Beijing Kingsoft Office Software Inc 139,243 36,899,395 0.22
BOE Technology Group Co Ltd 22,261,435 112,420,247 0.68
Chaozhou Three-Circle Group Co Ltd 883,874 39,420,780 0.24
China Greatwall Technology Group Co Ltd 1,308,786 18,532,410 0.11
China Rai lway Signal & Communication Corp Ltd 1,923,459 9,578,826 0.06
China Resources Microelectronics Ltd 197,505 12,758,823 0.08
Dawning Information Industry Co Ltd 869,142 23,962,245 0.14
Flat Glass Group Co Ltd 382,688 22,172,943 0.13
Foxconn Industrial Internet Co Ltd 2,950,502 35,169,984 0.21
Gigadevice Semiconductor Beijing Inc 397,715 69,938,183 0.42
Glodon Co Ltd 701,226 44,864,439 0.27
GoerTek Inc 1,772,638 95,899,716 0.58
Guangzhou Shiyuan Electronic Technology Co Ltd 245,002 19,943,163 0.12
Hangzhou First Applied Material Co Ltd 280,789 36,657,004 0.22
Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Co Ltd 3,467,113 181,399,352 1.10
Hundsun Technologies Inc 868,306 53,965,218 0.33
Iflytek Co Ltd 1,361,424 71,488,374 0.43
Inspur Electronic Information Industry Co Ltd 747,752 26,791,954 0.16
JA Solar Technology Co Ltd 471,500 43,708,050 0.26
JCET Group Co Ltd 920,411 28,551,149 0.17
Lens Technology Co Ltd 1,480,873 34,030,462 0.21
Lingyi iTech Guangdong Co 2,093,961 15,411,553 0.09
LONGi Green Energy Technology Co Ltd 3,219,324 277,505,729 1.68
Luxshare Precision Industry Co Ltd 3,666,199 180,376,991 1.09
Maxscend Microelectronics Co Ltd 174,697 57,090,980 0.34
Montage Technology Co Ltd 338,797 28,414,904 0.17
National Silicon Industry Group Co Ltd 559,660 14,450,421 0.09
NAURA Technology Group Co Ltd 195,902 67,981,912 0.41
Qi An Xin Technology Group Inc 203,800 17,918,096 0.11
Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corp 1,445,441 76,593,919 0.46
Shanghai Baosight Software Co Ltd 249,508 15,177,572 0.09
Shengyi Technology Co Ltd 858,622 20,220,548 0.12
Shennan Circuits Co Ltd 147,408 17,957,243 0.11
Shenzhen Goodix Technology Co Ltd 171,591 18,492,362 0.11
Shenzhen Transsion Holdings Co Ltd 181,315 28,448,323 0.17
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Tianjin Zhonghuan Semiconductor Co Ltd 1,684,698 70,336,142 0.42
Trina Solar Co Ltd 617,354 48,709,231 0.29
Unigroup Guoxin Microelectronics Co Ltd 312,800 70,380,000 0.43
Unisplendour Corp Ltd 1,063,906 24,310,252 0.15
Universal Scientific Industrial Shanghai Co Ltd 487,440 7,828,286 0.05
Will Semiconductor Co Ltd Shanghai 388,835 120,838,253 0.73
Wingtech Technology Co Ltd 557,802 72,123,799 0.44
Wuhan Guide Infrared Co Ltd 693,203 16,782,445 0.10
Wuxi Lead Intelligent Equipment Co Ltd 818,166 60,847,005 0.37
Yeal ink Network Technology Corp Ltd 263,770 21,484,067 0.13
Yonyou Network Technology Co Ltd 1,214,441 43,574,143 0.26
Zhej iang Dahua Technology Co Ltd 1,332,071 31,277,027 0.19
Zhejiang Jingsheng Mechanical & Electrical Co Ltd 473,800 32,929,100 0.20
ZTE Corp 2,362,839 79,155,107 0.48
Aluminum Corp of China Ltd 5,826,445 35,483,050 0.20
Anhui Conch Cement Co Ltd 1,778,413 71,670,044 0.42
Baoshan Iron & Steel Co Ltd 6,606,449 47,302,175 0.29
Beijing Oriental Yuhong Waterproof Technology Co Ltd 1,311,069 69,067,115 0.42
China Jushi Co Ltd 1,779,772 32,391,850 0.20
China Molybdenum Co Ltd 5,235,260 29,212,751 0.18
China Northern Rare Earth Group High-Tech Co Ltd 1,616,708 74,045,226 0.45
Citic Pacific Special Steel Group Co Ltd 758,012 15,524,086 0.09
Ganfeng Lithium Co Ltd 599,229 85,599,863 0.52
Guangzhou Tinci Materials Technology Co Ltd 425,183 48,747,231 0.29
Hengli Petrochemical Co Ltd 1,564,158 35,928,709 0.22
Hengyi Petrochemical Co Ltd 1,624,089 17,247,825 0.10
Hoshine Silicon Industry Co Ltd 122,500 16,166,325 0.10
Huafon Chemical Co Ltd 1,036,000 10,815,840 0.07
Inner Mongolia BaoTou Steel Union Co Ltd 16,898,693 47,147,353 0.28
Inner Mongolia Junzheng Energy & Chemical Industry Group Co Ltd 2,500,676 13,078,535 0.08
Jiangsu Eastern Shenghong Co Ltd 1,077,803 20,844,710 0.13
Jiangxi Copper Co Ltd 768,619 17,163,262 0.10
Kingfa Sci & Tech Co Ltd 1,334,900 16,793,042 0.10
LB Group Co Ltd 882,921 25,242,711 0.15
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Ningxia Baofeng Energy Group Co Ltd
Rongsheng Petrochemical Co Ltd

Shandong Gold Mining Co Ltd

Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Chemical Co Ltd
Shanghai Putai lai New Energy Technology Co Ltd
Tiangi Lithium Corp

Wanhua Chemical Group Co Ltd

Yunnan Energy New Material Co Ltd

Zhej iang Huayou Cobalt Co Ltd

Zhejiang Longsheng Group Co Ltd
Zhongjin Gold Corp Ltd

ZijinMining Group Co Ltd

China Merchants Shekou Industrial Zone Holdings Co Ltd
China Vanke Co Ltd

Gemdale Corp

Greenland Holdings Corp Ltd

Poly Developments and Holdings Group Co Ltd

Seazen Holdings Co Ltd

Shanghai Lingang Holdings Corp Ltd

CGN Power Co Ltd

China National Nuclear Power Co Ltd

China Three Gorges Renewables Group Co Ltd
China Yangtze Power Co Ltd

GD Power Development Co Ltd

Huaneng Lancang River Hydropower Inc
Huaneng Power International Inc

SDIC Power Holdings Co Ltd
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1,632,232 28,335,548 0.17
2,248,760 40,837,482 0.25
1,338,727 25,194,842 0.15
1,096,798 34,329,777 0.21
256,709 41,230,032 0.25
768,112 82,187,984 0.50
1,164,038 117,567,838 0.71
398,867 99,876,297 0.60
723,723 79,833,884 0.48
1,931,001 24,388,543 0.15
2,150,331 17,697,224 0.11
10,697,166 103,762,510 0.63
2,351,602 31,370,371 0.20
5,049,971 99,787,427 0.60
1,668,097 21,635,218 0.13
2,836,909 12,312,185 0.07
5,323,232 83,202,116 0.50
669,832 19,512,206 0.12
706,030 10,498,666 0.06
8,765,400 27,435,702 0.16
5,191,131 43,086,387 0.26
6,359,600 47,760,596 0.29
8,436,185 191,501,399 1.16
6,619,052 20,982,395 0.13
1,333,900 8,790,401 0.05
3,266,098 31,648,490 0.19
2,215,062 25,406,761 0.15
16,485,209,161 99.52

14,395,708,365
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360 Security Technology Inc 1,617,310 1,077,903 578,600 2,116,613
Advanc_ed Micro-Fabrication Equipment 170,500 100,308 85,288 185,520
Inc China
AECC Aviation Power Co Ltd 849,580 412,165 272,400 989,345
Agricultural Bank of China Ltd 22,900,489 10,800,200 7,656,400 26,044,289
Aier Eye Hospital Group Co Ltd 1,314,444 822,892 509,337 643,900 2,002,773
Air China Ltd 2,382,196 830,404 997,200 2,215,400
Aisino Corp 889,668 199,600 1,089,268
Aluminum Corp of China Ltd 5,213,945 2,352,300 1,739,800 5,826,445
Anhui Conch Cement Co Ltd 1,913,229 686,784 821,600 1,778,413
Anhui Gujing Distillery Co Ltd 92,283 95,328 92,900 94,711
Anker Innovations Technology Co Ltd 128,800 5,200 123,600
Asymchem Laboratories Tianjin Co Ltd 116,400 91,356 95,600 112,156
Autobio Diagnostics Co Ltd 108,265 108,920 39,559 79,100 177,644
Avary Holding Shenzhen Co Ltd 552,958 208,525 251,200 510,283
AVIC Industry-Finance Holdings Co Ltd 4,264,120 1,173,200 5,437,320
AVIC Jonhon Optronic Technology Co Ltd 438,509 146,087 174,000 410,596
AVIC Shenyang Aircraft Co Ltd 335,214 146,140 140,045 184,800 436,599
ﬁ\,éc'jc Xi*an Atrcraft Industry Group Co 1,105,106 397,333 469,600 1,032,839
Bank of Beijing Co Ltd 11,804,545 4,131,900 4,959,200 10,977,245
Bank of Changsha Co Ltd 818,090 356,700 1,174,790
Bank of Chengdu Co Ltd 1,727,866 609,000 727,900 1,608,966
Bank of China Ltd 16,800,863 5,885,800 7,059,600 15,627,063
Bank of Communications Co Ltd 21,898,583 7,674,800 9,187,900 20,385,483
Bank of Hangzhou Co Ltd 2,363,490 833,010 997,200 2,199,300
Bank of Jiangsu Co Ltd 9,564,537 3,332,870 4,130,200 8,767,207
Bank of Nanjing Co Ltd 4,787,482 1,586,344 2,660,100 3,713,726
Bank of Ningbo Co Ltd 2,394,318 1,204,200 269,243 925,200 2,942,561
Bank of Shanghai Co Ltd 7,926,664 2,762,674 3,318,500 7,370,838
Baoshan Iron & Steel Co Ltd 7,098,087 2,487,062 2,978,700 6,606,449
Beijing Kingsoft Office Software Inc 186,079 46,836 139,243
Beijing New Building Materials PLC 807,926 274,238 337,800 744,364
Beijing Oriental Yuhong Waterproof 1,314,217 583,152 586,300 1,311,069
Technology Co Ltd
Beijing Roborock Technology Co Ltd 73,943 48,572 25,371
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Beijing Shiji Information Technology
Co Ltd 255,730 62,800 107,132 425,662
Beijing Shunxin Agriculture Co Ltd 413,805 110,000 523,805
Beijing Tiantan Biological Products 500,360 202,231 199,000 503,501
Corp Ltd
Beijing Tongrentang Co Ltd 437,080 234,310 168,400 502,990
Beijing Wantai Biological Pharmacy 38.800 132855 20425 98.100 93.980

Enterprise Co Ltd
Beij ing-Shanghai High Speed Rai lway Co

Ltd 2,739,100 15,683,650 3,856,200 14,566,550
Betta Pharmaceuticals Co Ltd 232,520 44,900 187,620
BGI Genomics Co Ltd 159,700 92,411 65,000 187,111
Bloomage Biotechnology Corp Ltd 113,830 30,700 83,130
Bluestar Adisseo Co 234,961 128,900 363,861

BOC International China Co Ltd 243,300 905,520 112,900 1,035,920
BOE Technology Group Co Ltd 21,592,961 11,659,674 10,991,200 22,261,435
BYD Co Ltd 723,015 268,064 318,100 672,979
Caitong Securities Co Ltd 2,002,446 689,790 837,200 1,855,036
CGN Power Co Ltd 9,408,300 3,310,800 3,953,700 8,765,400
Changchun High & New Technology 225,668 85, 440 71,200 239,908

Industry Group Inc
Changjiang Securities Co Ltd 3,086,995 1,088,600 1,305,200 2,870,395
Changzhou Xingyu Automotive Lighting

Systens Co Ltd 155,450 46,100 109,350
Chaozhou Three-Circle Group Co Ltd 870,314 341,260 327,700 883,874
Chengdu Kanghong Pharmaceutical Group 293,321 74,200 367,521

ColLtd

China CITIC Bank Corp Ltd 2,442,982 860,900 1,036,600 2,267,282
China Coal Energy Co Ltd 1,358,900 1,358,900
E:(ljna Communications Construction Co 2,808,898 982,800 1,176,200 2,615,498
China Construction Bank Corp 5,352,307 1,871,693 2,246,800 4,977,200
China CSSC Holdings Ltd 535,000 1,180,800 389,400 1,326,400
China Eastern Airlines Corp Ltd 3,572,310 1,692,902 1,205,500 4,059,712
China Energy Engineering Corp Ltd 9,611,300 9,611,300
China Everbright Bank Co Ltd 12,690,302 4,496,300 4,919,100 12,267,502
China Fortune Land Development Co Ltd 1,247,572 532,500 1,780,072

China Galaxy Securities Co Ltd 1,027,429 347,148 424,600 949,977
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China Gezhouba Group Co Ltd 2,202,097 525,600 2,727,697
China Grand Automotive Services Group 3,231,190 769,000 4,000,190
ColLtd
China Great Wall Securities Co Ltd 742,310 211,500 953,810
E,r[‘c'j”a Greatwall Technology Group Co 1,400,386 487,700 579,300 1,308,786
China International Capital Corp Ltd 267,608 30,700 236,908
China Jushi Co Ltd 1,674,271 618,016 258,985 771,500 1,779,772
ChinaLife Insurance Co Ltd 1,328,034 482,094 571,100 1,239,028
China Merchants Bank Co Ltd 9,865,939 3,519,813 4,191,500 9,194,252
China Merchants Energy Shipping Co Ltd 1,611,600 893,800 449,360 2,954,760
China Merchants Securities Co Ltd 2,958,030 1,041,896 1,249,000 2,750,926
Chln(zl Merchants Shekou Industrial Zone 2,526,198 893,904 1,068,500 2,351,602
Holdings Co Ltd
China Minsheng Banking Corp Ltd 16,966,972 7,153,301 5,697,000 18,423,273
China Molybdenum Co Ltd 5,633,860 1,972,000 2,370,600 5,235,260
E:(ljna National Chemical Engineering Co 1,967,867 466,300 2,434,167
China National Nuclear Power Co Ltd 4,960,131 2,436,400 2,205,400 5,191,131
China Northern Rare Earth Group High- 1,737,708 620,000 741,000 1,616,708
Tech Co Ltd
China Oilfield Services Ltd 471,597 162,717 195,100 439,214
China Pacific Insurance Group Co Ltd 2,728,289 969,775 1,160,700 2,537,364
China Petroleum & Chemical Corp 10,664,927 3,714,600 4,463,000 9,916,527
China Rai lway Construction Corp Ltd 3,667,119 1,283,302 1,546,000 3,404,421
China Rai lway Group Ltd 8,118,040 2,845,400 3,416,800 7,546,640
China Rai lway Signal & Communication 2,061,600 737,578 875,719 1,923,459
Corp Ltd
China Resources Microelectronics Ltd 245,389 47,884 197,505
China Satel lite Communications Co Ltd 350,982 143,447 158,800 335,629
China Shenhua Energy Co Ltd 2,628,681 906,152 1,090,600 2,444,233
China Shipbuilding Industry Co Ltd 7,271,190 3,629,200 2,448,000 8,452,390
China Shipbuilding Industry Group 517,068 148, 100 665,168
Power Co Ltd
China Southern Airlines Co Ltd 3,524,120 2,928,495 2,694,100 3,758,515
China Spacesat Co Ltd 470,879 110,000 580,879
gg:ga&gate ConstructionEngineering ;¢ 753 697 5 851,320 7,023,600 15,551,417
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China Telecom Corp Ltd 3,460,000 3,460,000
Ezéna Three Gorges Renewables Group Co 6,359,600 6,359,600
China Tourism Group Duty Free Corp Ltd 778,236 290,019 345,000 723,255
Egé”a Uni'ted Network Comnunications 7,416,208 10,538,900 4,166,500 13,788,608
China Vanke Co Ltd 5,425,311 1,899,860 2,275,200 5,049,971
China Yangtze Power Co Ltd 7,252,620 4,049,465 2,865,900 8,436,185
China Zheshang Bank Co Ltd 2,664,200 5,337,200 1,795,100 6,206,300
Chinalin Securities Co Ltd 215,144 55,000 270,144
Chongqing Brewery Co Ltd 228,758 47,900 180,858
Chongqing Changan Automobile Co Ltd 1,778,042 973,900 758,536 680,500 2,829,978
Chongqing Rural Commercial Bank Co Ltd 1,409,695 4,078,100 5,487,795
Chongging zhifei Biological Products 510,574 298,589 213,100 596,063
Co Ltd
E;glc Pacific Special Steel Group Co 804,589 290,823 337,400 758,012
CITIC Securities Co Ltd 6,789,952 2,378,844 2,845,000 6,323,796
Contemporary Amperex Technology Co Ltd 1,042,366 2,000 1,040,366
COSCO SHIPPING Holdings Co Ltd 3,858,698 1,466,900 1,204,553 1,838,200 4,691,951
CRRC Corp Ltd 9,693,940 3,400,934 4,072,500 9,022,374
CSC Financial Co Ltd 763,570 451,705 258,500 956,775
Daqgin Railway Co Ltd 4,741,397 1,662,300 1,918,237 4,485,460
DaShenLin Pharmaceutical Group Co Ltd 259,935 4,204 30,700 233,439
Dawning Information Industry Co Ltd 809,374 334,468 274,700 869,142
Dongxing Securities Co Ltd 1,099,640 265,206 1,364,846
East Money Information Co Ltd 5,492,647 2,106,201 1,227,273 2,690,800 6,135,321
Eastroc Beverage Group Co Ltd 48,100 48,100
Ecovacs Robotics Co Ltd 173,900 2,500 171,400
Eve Energy Co Ltd 903,768 338,117 398,200 843,685
Everbright Securities Co Ltd 1,557,130 558,522 659,600 1,456,052
FAW Jiefang Group Co Ltd 855,600 168,100 687,500
Fiberhome Telecommunication
Technologies Co Ltd 559,796 141,513 701,309
Flat Glass Group Co Ltd 382,688 382,688
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Eggus Media Information Technology Co 8,191,102 2,861,100 3,545,700 7,506,502
Foshan Haitian Flavouring & Food Co Ltd 774,924 328,627 245,587 412,300 936,838
Founder Securities Co Ltd 3,282,103 1,154,096 1,384,500 3,051,699
Foxconn Industrial Internet Co Ltd 1,583,861 1,870,741 504,100 2,950,502
Fuyao Glass Industry Group Co Ltd 1,117,977 412,601 485,600 1,044,978
Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals Co Ltd 49,920 168,140 90,300 127,760
Ganfeng Lithium Co Ltd 609,612 219,117 229,500 599,229
GD Power Development Co Ltd 9,399,152 3,028,500 5,808,600 6,619,052
Gemdale Corp 1,799,197 618,700 749,800 1,668,097
GF Securities Co Ltd 2,359,177 833,200 996,700 2,195,677
Giant Network Group Co Ltd 645,147 463,230 1,108,377
Gigadevice Semiconductor Beijing Inc 262,830 145,723 111,762 122,600 397,715
Glodon Co Ltd 755,624 273,502 327,900 701,226
GoerTek Inc 1,810,534 756,804 794,700 1,772,638
Gongniu Group Co Ltd 48,600 103,500 89,400 62,700
Great Wal l Motor Co Ltd 968,822 344,918 406,000 907,740
Gree Electric Appliances Inc of Zhuhai 3,835,699 1,349,587 1,674,800 3,510,486
Greenland Holdings Corp Ltd 2,911,283 1,026,631 147,495 1,248,500 2,836,909
Guangdong Haid Group Co Ltd 637,989 219,191 237,600 619,580
E:gngdong Kinlong Hardware Products Co 105,520 6,400 99,120
Guangzhou Automobi le Group Co Ltd 740,044 1,358,129 475,600 1,622,573
Guangzhou Baiyun International
Airport Co Ltd 943,446 224,345 1,167,791
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical 448,019 248,435 181,700 514,754
Holdings Co Ltd
Ezgngzhou Kingmed Diagnostics Group Co 257,115 48,900 208,215
Guangzhou Shiyuan Electronic 265,918 78,484 99,400 245,002
Technology Co Ltd
Guangzhou Tinci Materials Technology 425,183 425,183
CoLtd
Guosen Securities Co Ltd 2,298,463 818,292 973,400 2,143,355
Guotai Junan Securities Co Ltd 3,594,677 1,253,658 1,506,800 3,341,535
Guoyuan Securities Co Ltd 2,087,406 760,054 2,847,460
Haier Smart Home Co Ltd 3,016,783 1,052,434 1,257,300 2,811,917
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Haitong Securities Co Ltd 6,156,427 3,407,725 2,399,500 7,164,652
Hangzhou First Applied Material Co Ltd 337,389 56,600 280,789
gg‘”ffdhou Hikvision Digital Technology 479 45, 1,663,992 1,176,300 3,467,113
Hangzhou Robam Appliances Co Ltd 378,277 117,265 495,542
Hangzhou Tigermed Consulting Co Ltd 418,014 146,136 173,100 391,050
Han"s Laser Technology Industry Group 679,992 225,028 269,600 635,420
ColLtd
Hebei Yangyuan Zhihui Beverage Co Ltd 403,428 94,400 497,828
Henan Shuanghui Investment & 828,303 696, 180 236,700 1,287,783
Development Co Ltd
Hengli Petrochemical Co Ltd 1,681,454 589,004 706,300 1,564,158
Hengtong Optic-electric Co Ltd 1,089,043 317,100 1,406,143
Hengyi Petrochemical Co Ltd 1,465,636 718,053 559,600 1,624,089
Hithink RoyalFlush Information
Network Co Ltd 171,549 79,100 89,200 161,449
Hongta Securities Co Ltd 579,340 223,500 172,932 279,300 696,472
Hoshine Silicon Industry Co Ltd 127,800 5,300 122,500
Huadian Power International Corp Ltd 2,597,564 626,544 3,224,108
Huadong Medicine Co Ltd 697,312 242,707 290,200 649,819
Huafon Chemical Co Ltd 1,036,000 1,036,000
Hualan Biological Engineering Inc 872,126 292,344 346,900 817,570
Huaneng Lancang River Hydropower Inc 1,434,500 504,700 605,300 1,333,900
Huaneng Power International Inc 3,506,760 1,227,738 1,468,400 3,266,098
Huatai Securities Co Ltd 4,691,984 1,582,300 2,456,600 3,817,684
Huaxia Bank Co Ltd 4,906,255 1,716,200 2,057,700 4,564,755
Huayu Automotive Systems Co Ltd 1,256,124 420,404 513,000 1,163,528
Hubei Biocause Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 1,572,969 365,200 1,938,169
Humanwel I Healthcare Group Co Ltd 902,065 180,800 721,265
Hundsun Technologies Inc 665,416 248,748 272,442 318,300 868,306
Iflytek Co Ltd 1,401,474 506,050 546,100 1,361,424
Imeik Technology Development Co Ltd 77,000 8,300 68,700
tgg”s”'a' &Commercial Bank of China 7 g5 668 9 883,600 11,820,700 25,998,568
Industrial Bank Co Ltd 11,589,872 4,100,959 4,890,900 10,799,931
Industrial Securities Co Ltd 4,270,661 1,494,190 1,792,300 3,972,551
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{ner WongoTta BaoTou Steel Unfon Co 18,162,773 6,356,420 7,620,500 16,898,693
Inner Mongolia Junzheng Energy &
Chemical Industry Group Co Ltd 2,690,776 937,900 1,128,000 2,500,676
dmer Yongolia YiLT Industrial Group 4,848,857 1,632,915 2,680,900 3,800,872
Inspur Electronic Information 811,052 271,800 335,100 747,752
Industry Co Ltd
Intco Medical Technology Co Ltd 230,400 80,250 30,700 279,950
JA Solar Technology Co Ltd 471,500 471,500
Jafron Biomedical Co Ltd 318,228 171,600 124,600 365,228
JCET Group Co Ltd 892,500 357,911 330,000 920,411
Jiangsu Eastern Shenghong Co Ltd 1,077,803 1,077,803
Jiangsu Hengli Hydraulic Co Ltd 312,536 215,239 136,100 391,675
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine Co Ltd 2,974,813 1,130,400 672,527 1,453,300 3,324,440
Jiangsu King"s Luck Brewery JSC Ltd 500,400 173,317 210,500 463,217
i;gngsu Yanghe Brewery Joint-Stock Co 480,046 152,922 186,400 446,568
i;gngsu Zhongnan Construction Group Co 1,504,395 352,604 1,856,999
Jiangsu Zhongtian Technology Co Ltd 1,955,302 532,073 2,487,375
Jiangxi Copper Co Ltd 826,882 282,237 340,500 768,619
Jiangxi Zhengbang Technology Co Ltd 1,003,700 671,964 496,800 1,178,864
Jinke Properties Group Co Ltd 2,553,872 700,000 3,253,872
Jointown Pharmaceutical Group Co Ltd 597,413 141,600 739,013
Jonjee Hi-Tech Industrial And
Commercial Holding Co Ltd 444,157 146,130 174,500 415,787
Juewei Food Co Ltd 299,660 30,700 268,960
Kingfa Sci & Tech Co Ltd 1,664,600 329,700 1,334,900
Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd 400,538 220,086 154,900 465,724
LB Group Co Ltd 971,916 439,805 528,800 882,921
Lens Technology Co Ltd 1,047,979 837,294 404,400 1,480,873
Lepu Medical Technology Beijing Co Ltd 1,006,666 347,293 421,700 932,259
Lingyi iTech Guangdong Co 2,244,861 784,400 935,300 2,093,961
LONGi Green Energy Technology Co Ltd 2,104,871 1,114,860 1,031,093 1,031,500 3,219,324
Luxshare Precision Industry Co Ltd 3,340,158 1,546,441 1,220,400 3,666,199
Luzhou Laojiao Co Ltd 583,857 215,846 258,800 540,903
Mango Excel lent Media Co Ltd 567,791 256,115 265,100 558,806
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Maxscend Microelectronics Co Ltd 176,997 2,300 174,697
ggll_ntldan Oneheal th Healthcare Holdings 2,183,945 762,045 917,900 2,028,090
Metallurgical Corp of China Ltd 5,693,570 1,995,200 2,401,100 5,287,670
Midea Group Co Ltd 3,918,099 1,383,825 1,683,600 3,618,324
Minmetals Capital Co Ltd 1,792,593 425,500 2,218,093
Montage Technology Co Ltd 360,500 154,884 176,587 338,797
Muyuan Foods Co Ltd 1,494,109 606,939 673,690 820,800 1,953,938
Nanjing Securities Co Ltd 1,175,400 814,718 339,700 1,650,418
NARI Technology Co Ltd 1,841,654 672,271 385,158 842,000 2,057,083
National Silicon Industry Group Co Ltd 621,060 61,400 559,660
NAURA Technology Group Co Ltd 197,343 75,600 77,041 195,902
New China Life Insurance Co Ltd 664,519 219,297 261,700 622,116
New Hope Liuhe Co Ltd 1,795,365 633,800 751,800 1,677,365
Ningxia Baofeng Energy Group Co Ltd 584,600 1,508,332 460,700 1,632,232
Offcn Education Technology Co Ltd 541,050 1,233,894 400,000 1,374,944
OFILM Group Co Ltd 1,718,628 467,362 2,185,990
Oppein Home Group Inc 142,818 82,765 87,500 138,083
Orient Securities Co Ltd/China 3,329,317 1,164,418 1,397,200 3,096,535
Oriental Pearl Group Co Ltd 1,631,470 385,519 2,016,989
Ovctek China Inc 477,128 93,600 383,528
People®s Insurance Co Group of China 1,699,389 878,700 464,000 2,114,089
Ltd/The
Perfect World Co Ltd/China 927,894 336,100 399,200 864,794
PetroChina Co Ltd 7,746,969 2,712,600 3,252,700 7,206,869
Pharmaron Beijing Co Ltd 197,900 197,900
Ping An Bank Co Ltd 7,734,079 2,743,237 3,275,000 7,202,316
Ping An Insurance Group Co of China Ltd 8,634,891 3,051,507 3,643,100 8,043,298
Eg 'ﬂge"empme”ts and Holdings Group 5,723,554 2,011,478 2,411,800 5,323,232
Postal Savings Bank of China Co Ltd 2,675,622 7,645,300 2,258,500 8,062,422
Power Construction Corp of China Ltd 6,096,287 2,136,500 2,555,000 5,677,787
Q1 An Xiin Technology Group Inc 203,800 203,800
Qingdao Rural Commercial Bank Corp 2,213,928 510,100 2,724,028
RiseSun Real Estate Development Co Ltd 1,386,391 324,000 1,710,391
Rongsheng Petrochemical Co Ltd 1,614,007 644,350 912,603 922,200 2,248,760
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SAIC Motor Corp Ltd 2,793,687 1,609,472 932,400 3,470,759
Sanan Optoelectronics Co Ltd 1,785,182 719,792 2,504,974
Sany Heavy Industry Co Ltd 4,729,265 1,681,050 2,001,700 4,408,615
SDIC Capital Co Ltd 1,347,996 547,692 732,729 730,500 1,897,917
SDIC Power Holdings Co Ltd 2,221,230 916,532 922,700 2,215,062
Seazen Holdings Co Ltd 719,532 266,500 316,200 669,832
Semlcondt_Jctor Manufacturing 1,445,441 1,445,441
International Corp
SF Holding Co Ltd 1,452,407 518,646 508,500 1,462,553
Shaanxi Coal Industry Co Ltd 3,188,260 1,107,449 1,420,600 2,875,109
Shandong Gold Mining Co Ltd 1,450,315 493,312 604,900 1,338,727
i:gndong Hualu Hengsheng Chemical Co 1,365,998 269,200 1,096,798
Shandong Linglong Tyre Co Ltd 503,200 503,200
Shanghai Bairun Investment Holding 273,240 273,240
Group Co Ltd
Shanghai Baosight Software Co Ltd 205,100 162,172 69,436 187,200 249,508
Shanghai Electric Group Co Ltd 2,913,517 1,802,500 4,716,017
i:gnghau Fosun Pharmaceutical Group Co 961,881 340,508 408,600 893,789
Shanghai International Airport Co Ltd 768,137 283,336 341,500 709,973
i:gnghau International Port Group Co 2,770,729 965,300 1,151,600 2,584,429
Shanghai Lingang Holdings Corp Ltd 476,675 322,060 132,995 225,700 706,030
Shanghai M&G Stationery Inc 295,710 88,833 113,800 270,743
Ezgnghal Pharmaceuticals Holding Co 920,089 330,328 392,700 857,717
i‘g”gha' Pudong Development Bank Co 9,358,258 3,271,520 3,926,600 8,703,178
Shanghai Putailai New Energy
Technology Co Ltd 287,409 30,700 256,709
Shanghai RAAS Blood Products Co Ltd 2,147,538 1,449,700 604,500 2,992,738
i:gnghau Yuyuan Tourist Mart Group Co 1,237,986 421,077 509,500 1,149,563
Shanxi Meijin Energy Co Ltd 1,625,042 381,999 2,007,041
EEZ”X' Xinghuacun Fen Wine Factory Co 277,422 110,656 116,495 139,900 364,673
Shengyi Technology Co Ltd 913,069 327,353 381,800 858,622
Shennan Circuits Co Ltd 156,244 80,964 89,800 147,408
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Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co Ltd 7,185,479 3,575,585 2,398,500 8,362,564
Shenzhen Goodix Technology Co Ltd 182,491 75,100 86,000 171,591
Shenzhen Inovance Technology Co Ltd 822,330 446,903 463,917 369,300 1,363,850
Shenzhen Kangtai Biological Products 271,802 150,703 118,800 303,705
ColLtd
Shenzhen Mindray Bio-Medical
Electronics Co Ltd 367,200 3,800 363,400
Shenzhen Overseas Chinese Town Co Ltd 3,269,288 1,145,286 1,371,200 3,043,374
Shenzhen Sunway Communication Co Ltd 613,931 284,800 898,731
Shenzhen Transsion Holdings Co Ltd 127,962 124,747 71,394 181,315
Sichuan Kelun Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 802,704 188,705 991,409
Sinolink Securities Co Ltd 1,928,760 681,900 818,900 1,791,760
Egggcheng Performance Development Co 1,250,161 431,136 512,100 1,169,197
SooChow Securities Co Ltd 2,476,341 669,530 3,145,871
Southwest Securities Co Ltd 2,646,689 622,400 3,269,089
Spring Airlines Co Ltd 290,434 87,700 110,500 267,634
Sungrow Power Supply Co Ltd 950,162 180,200 769,962
Suning.com Co Ltd 2,968,352 1,029,000 1,227,000 2,770,352
Suzhou Dongshan Precision
Manufacturing Co Ltd 954,200 328,807 1,283,007
TCL Technology Group Corp 11,183,753 3,923,241 4,688,300 10,418,694
Tianfeng Securities Co Ltd 2,658,540 1,633,800 1,071,300 3,221,040
Tianjin Zhonghuan Semiconductor Co Ltd 1,450,198 671,900 437,400 1,684,698
Tiangi Lithium Corp 768,112 768,112
Tongwei Co Ltd 2,152,972 759,972 911,500 2,001,444
Topchoice Medical Corp 178,970 78,149 88,900 168,219
Trina Solar Co Ltd 617,354 617,354
Tsingtao Brewery Co Ltd 282,145 82,400 102,300 262,245
Lﬂzégroup Guoxin Microelectronics Co 338,900 146,300 172,400 312,800
Unisplendour Corp Ltd 1,140,092 412,614 488,800 1,063,906
Unlversz_u Scientific Industrial 522,240 184,700 219,500 487,440
Shanghai Co Ltd
Walvax Biotechnology Co Ltd 1,230,052 431,387 500,100 1,161,339
Wanda Film Holding Co Ltd 711,160 190,400 901,560
Wanhua Chemical Group Co Ltd 1,250,992 437,046 524,000 1,164,038
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Weichai Power Co Ltd 3,819,911 1,324,127 1,622,100 3,521,938
Wens Foodstuffs Group Co Ltd 3,556,219 1,250,186 1,508,200 3,298,205
Western Securities Co Ltd 1,395,627 387,004 1,782,631
Will Semiconductor Co Ltd Shanghai 344,443 188,892 144,500 388,835
Wingtech Technology Co Ltd 396,902 277,300 116,400 557,802
Winner Medical Co Ltd 76,200 8,300 67,900
Wuhan Guide Infrared Co Ltd 508,000 211,461 232,342 258,600 693,203
Wuhu Sangi Interactive Entertainment
Network Technology Group Co Ltd 1,010,090 361,339 379,100 992,329
Wuliiangye Yibin Co Ltd 1,547,193 562,534 665,400 1,444,327
WUS Printed Circuit Kunshan Co Ltd 962,300 274,170 98,022 1,334,492
WuXi AppTec Co Ltd 1,020,991 596,111 230,073 324,600 1,522,575
Wuxi Lead Intelligent Equipment Co Ltd 990, 366 172,200 818,166
XCMG Construction Machinery Co Ltd 3,745,269 1,589,400 1,258,300 4,076,369
Xinhu Zhongbao Co Ltd 3,426,404 808,000 4,234,404
é;ndtudang Goldwind Science & Technology 2,200,835 761,170 919,100 2,042,905
Yango Group Co Ltd 1,314,091 315,000 1,629,091
Yeal ink Network Technology Corp Ltd 215,756 115,814 67,800 263,770
Yifeng Pharmacy Chain Co Ltd 325,385 62,600 262,785
Yihai Kerry Arawana Holdings Co Ltd 319,200 319,200
Yonghui Superstores Co Ltd 3,034,340 1,057,200 1,396,400 2,695,140
Yonyou Network Technology Co Ltd 1,303,710 470,631 559,900 1,214,441
Youngor Group Co Ltd 2,213,675 523,108 2,736,783
YTO Express Group Co Ltd 1,007,398 274,500 1,281,898
Yunda Holding Co Ltd 924,703 325,805 387,700 862,808
Yunnan Baiyao Group Co Ltd 407,243 149,409 175,400 381,252
Yunnan Energy New Material Co Ltd 349,900 187,567 138,600 398,867
Yutong Bus Co Ltd 1,058,487 248,335 1,306,822
Zhangzhou Pientzehuang Pharmaceutical 240,204 76.500 93,300 223,404
ColLtd
Zhejiang Century Huatong Group Co Ltd 2,970,135 1,336,900 991,700 3,315,335
Zhejiang Chint Electrics Co Ltd 856,554 292,371 344,800 804,125
Zhej iang Dahua Technology Co Ltd 1,432,871 493,600 594,400 1,332,071
Zhejiang Dingli Machinery Co Ltd 228,180 44,800 183,380
Zhejiang Huayou Cobalt Co Ltd 546,023 336,500 158,800 723,723
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Zhejiang Jingsheng Mechanical &
Electrical Co Ltd 473,800 473,800
Zhejiang Longsheng Group Co Ltd 2,076,332 720,169 865,500 1,931,001
Zhejiang NHU Co Ltd 1,027,432 384,280 220,786 488,900 1,143,598
égﬁﬂl?ngSanhuaIntelllgentControls 1,431,392 493,498 594,000 1,330,890
Zhejiang Supor Co Ltd 131,201 84,696 92,900 122,997
Zheshang Securities Co Ltd 1,440,100 467,100 760,700 1,146,500
Zhongjin Gold Corp Ltd 1,545,731 1,125,800 521,200 2,150,331
Zhongtai Securities Co Ltd 610,900 1,648,300 198,500 2,060,700
ZijinMining Group Co Ltd 10,956,911 3,912,455 4,172,200 10,697,166
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and 3,644,085 1,453,356 1,410,600 3,686,841
Technology Co Ltd
ZTE Corp 2,152,625 933,714 723,500 2,362,839
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2021 12 31
2021 12 31 16,564 ,849,087 50.3797
2020 12 31 15,733,343,678 53.0815
2019 12 31 17,382,025,714 41.7586
2021 12 31 59.0817 48.4918
2020 12 31 53.0815 35.9722
2019 12 31 41.7586 30.2426
2018 12 31 447342 30.5351
2017 12 31 43.1972 33.9102
2016 12 31 36.5111 29.1665
2015 12 31 53.7690 30.5877
2014 12 31 35.3314 21.0387
2013 12 31 27.1919 21.6261

2012 12 31 24.9664 21.1203
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ChinaAMC CS1 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF

2012 16 2012 17 2012 10 26
2021 12 31 149.33 125.30 136.97
2020 12 31 160.00 134.19 140.13
2019 12 31 100.16 71.69 64.83
2018 12 31 43.81 27.89 25.22
2017 12 31 88.27 70.04 75.49
2016 12 31 37.94 39.88 33.75
2015 12 31 55.48 57.44 59.33
2014 12 31 47.25 41.94 52.57
2013 12 31 2.90 4.96 4.44
2012 12 31 5.13 4.13 11.72

2012 11 2012 12 31

2012 11 2012 12 31
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ChinafMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 December 2021

Motes 2021 2020
RMBE RMB
ASSETS
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 10 16,485,209, 161 15,635,597 090
Cash and cash equivalents 12 119,277,152 116,641,605
TOTAL ASSETS 16,604,4585,313 15,752 238 695
LIABILITIES
Management fee payable 4(a) 9,323 934 2862 544
Custodian, fund administration and trustee fees payable 4(b) §,131.486 3821724
Amounts due to participating dealers T 21,843 147 -
Other payables and accruals 4c) 2,338,659 6,210,749
TOTAL LIABILITIES 30,637 226 18,805,017
EQUITY
MET ASSETS ATTRIBUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS g 16,564 849 087 15,733 343,678
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 16,604.486,313 15,752.238,695

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

=12 -
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ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2021

Motes

INCOME
Dridend incame
Interest income
Other income

EXPENSES

Management fee

Brokerage and transaction fee

Custodian, fund administration and trustee fees
Auditer's remuneration

Index licensing fee

Data licensing fee

Legal and professional fee

Other operating expenses

4(a)
4{d)
4(b)

4(c)

PROFIT BEFORE INVESTMENT (LOSSESIGAINS
IMVESTMENT (LOSSESWGAINS
Met change in unrealised (losses)/gains on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
Met realised gains on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
MET INVESTMENT (LOSSESNGAINS
{LOSSYPROFIT BEFORE TAX
Vidthholding income tax expenses G

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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2021 2020

RME RME

204 460,042 272,569,141
181,216 384,687

548 112 =
285.190,370 272 953 828

{ 112,213174) (87608334
{22,085 834) (20199413
(12,073,340 { 10,349.510)
{ 133 682 { 144 555)
{ 35,379) [ G9,781)
{ 6,410 442 { 5577 618)
{ G80,137) [ 253,378)
{ 418,253) i 526,545)
{ 154,0080,251) (143720136
141,100,079 129,224 592

{ 2,075,308,192) 1,736,753,244
1,161,664,958 1,321.500,545
(913,313,233 3,058 253,790

( 772.213,154) 3,187 478,482
{ 29581710) (27374925
{  801.794.864) 3,160.103,557

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

=13 -
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ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

STATEMENT OF CHAMGES IN MET ASSETS ATTRIBEUTABLE TO UNITHOLDERS
Year ended 31 December 2021

Mote Units RMB
At 1 January 2020 416,250,000 17,382,025, 714
Issue of units 122,250,000 5,337,704 443
Redemption of units { 242100000y { 10,034,428 036)
Total comprehensive income - 3,160,103, 557
Distribution to unitholders & = { 112,052,000)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 286,400,000 15,733,343, 678
Issue of units 109,650,000 5,742.756,7T01
Redemption of units {  T7T.250,000) ( 4013201428
Total comprehensive income - { 801,704 864)
Distribution to unitholders ] = A 95,255,000)
At 31 December 2021 328,800,000 16,564.849,087

The aceompanying notes are an integral part of theze financial statements.

-14-
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ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended 31 December 2021

Mote:

CASH FLOWS FROM OFPERATING ACTIVITIES

{Loss)profit before tax

{Increase)/decrease in finandal assets at fair value through
profit orloss

Decrease in other recervable

Increasel{decrease) in management fee payable

Increase/{decrease) in custodian, fund administration and
trustee fees payable

{Decreasepincrease in ather payables and accruals
Cash (used inygenerated from operations

Tax paid

Met cash flows (used inlfrom operating acthities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Distribution paid to unitholders

Proceeds from issue of units

Payments on redemption of units

Met cash flows fromf{used in) financing activilies

MET INCREASEDECREASE) IN CASH AMD
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE
YEAR 12

AMALY SIS OF CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at banks 12

MET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
INCLUDE:

Dividend recerved net of withholding tax
Interest received net of withholding tax
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2021 2020
RMB RMB

{  772213,154) 3,187,478,482
(848612071 1,629,226,222
- 28,852

461,390 { 513.812)
2,300,762 ( 884,396)

( 3,872,000) 2,748 261
{ 1,622,926,163) 4.518,083,609
{  29581,710) {  27,374.925)
{1,652,507,873) 4.790,708,684
{ 96255000 { 112,062,000
5,754,509,848 5,330,220 982
{ 4,012.201,428) { 10,034,428.036)
1,655,143,420 { 4.816,269.054)
2,635,547 {  25580370)
116,641,605 142,201,975
119,277,152 116,641,605
119,277,152 116,541,605
264,879,250 245,209,069
180,208 369,834

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

-15-
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ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

NOTEE TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

1. THE TRUST

ChinadMC ETF Series (the “Trust”) is an umbrella unit trust govemned by its trust deed dated
28 May 2012 {the "Trust Deed"), as amended or supplemented from time to time, between China
Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited (the "Manager”) and Cititrust Limited (the "Trustee"). It is
authorised by the Secunties and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (the "SFC") pursuant to Section
104(1) of the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong.

These financial statements relate to the first sub-fund of the Trust, ChinaARME €51 300 Index ETF (the
“Sub-Fund"). The Sub-Fund commenced trading under the stock codes 83188 (RMB counter) and
03188 (HED counter) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong ("SEHK") on 17 July 2012 and 26 October
2012, respectively. On 27 February 2013, the Sub-Fund commenced trading under the stack code
1575 on the Tokyo Stock Exchange ("TSE™).

Pursuant to the guidelines on management and operation of Renminbi Qualified Foreign Institutional
Invester ("ROFI") issued by the State of Administration of Foreign Exchange ("SAFE") on and
effective from 30 May 2014, an RQFIl has the flexibility to allocate its RQFI quota granted by SAFE
across different public fund products under its management, Accordingly, the Sub-Fund no longer has
the exclusive use of all the RQFII quota previously granted by the SAFE to the Manager in respect of
the Sub-Fund. The Manager, at its discretion, may re-allocate the RQF|| quota in respect of the Sub-
Fund to other public fund products under its management or vice versa without having to oblain prior
approval from the SAFE.

The investment objective of the Sub-Fund is to provide investment results that dosely corespond to
the performance of the CS1 300 Index (the "Index"). The Sub-Fund is a physical exchange traded fund
imvesting directly in the underying A-Shares of the Index.

21 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Finandlal Reporting
Standards ("IFR3s") as issued by the Intermnational Accounting Standards Beard ("IASE"), and
interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee of the IASE
and the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure provisions
specified in Appendix E of the Code on Uni Trusts and Mutual Funds of the SFC (the "SFC Code").

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for financial assets
classified at fair value through profit or loss ("FVPL") that have been measured at fair value, These

financial statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi ("RMBE") and all values are rounded to the
nearest RME except where othersise indicated.

=16 =
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ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

NOTEE TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AMD DISCLOSURES

The Sub-Fund has not adopted any revised IFR3s for the first time for the current year's financial
statements.

2.3 ISSUED BUT MOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERMATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Sub-Fund has not early applied any of the new and revised IFRSs that hawve been issued but are
not yet effective for the accounting year ended 31 December 2021, in these financial statements.
Among the new and revised IFRSs, the following are expected to be relevant to the Sub-Fund's
financial statements upon becoming effective:

Amendments to AS 8 Dafinition of Accounting Estimales’
Amendments to 1AS 1 Disclosure of Accourding Policies’
Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 Makring Matenality Judgements?

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
¢ Mo mandatory effective date determined yet but available for adoption

Further inform ation about those IFRSs that are expected to be applicable to the Sub-Fund is described
bedony,

Amendments to 1AS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes
in accounting policies and the correction of erars. Also, they clarify how entities use measurement
technigues and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

Amendments to A5 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 provide guidance and examples to help entities
apply materality judgements to aceounting policy disclosures. The amendments aim to help entiies
provide accounting policy disdosures that are more useful by replacing the requirem ent for entiies o
disclose their 'significant’ accounting policies with a requirem ent to disclose their 'matenal” accounting
policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions
about accounting policy disclosures,

The Sub-Fund expects to adopt the above amendments prospectively from 1 January 2023, The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the Sub-Fund's financial statements.

=17 =
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ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

NOTEE TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial instruments

(@) Classification

In accordance with IFRS 9, the Sub-Fund classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities
at initial recogniticn into the categories of financial assets and financial liabilities discussed
below.

In applying that dassification, a financial asset or finandal liability is considered to be held for
trading if-

# [t is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term, or

# On initial recognition, it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are
managed together and for which, there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking, or

= |tisa derivative (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee confract or a designated
and effective hedging instrument)

Einancial assels
The Sub-Fund cassifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost or
measured at FVWPL on the basis of both:

= The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
# The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assats

Financial assels measured at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if they are held within a business model whose
objedtive is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and their contractual
terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
("SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. The Sub-Fund includes in this category cash and
cash equivalents and short-term non-financing receivables including ofher receivable.
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ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

NOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2021

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(@) Classification {continued)

Financial assets (continued )
Financial assels measured at FVPL
A financial asset is measured at FVPL if.

= iz contractual terms do not give rise to cash flows on specified dates that are SPPI on the
principal amount autstanding, or

+ |tis not held within a business model whose objective is either to collect contractual cash
flows, or to both collect contractual cash flows and sell, o

= At initial recognition, it is imevocably designated as measured at FWPL when doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring assets or liabiliies or recognising the gains and losses on
them on different bases.

The Sub-Fund includes in this category instruments held for trading. This category indudes
equity instruments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generaling a profit from
short-term fluctuations in price.

Financial ligbilities

Financial habilities measured at amortised cost include all financial liabilities. The Sub-Fund

includes in this category management fee payable, custodian, fund administration and trustee
fees payable, amounts due to participating dealers and other payables and accruals.

(b) Recognition

The Sub-Fund recognises a financial asset or a financial liability when it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
generally established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are

recognised on the frade date, i.e., the date that the Sub-Fund commits to purchase or sell the
financial assets,

=19 =
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ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

NOTEE TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

() Initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVYPL are recorded in the statement of financial
position at fair value. Al transaction costs for such instruments are recognised directly in profit
or loss,

Financial assets and liabilities (other than those classified as at FWPL) are measured initially at
their fair value plus any directly attributable incremental costs of acquisition or issue.

(d) Subsequent measurement

After initial measurement, the Sub-Fund measures financial instruments which are classified as
at FVPL, at fair value, Subseguent changes in the fair value of those financial instruments are
recorded in net change in unrealised gains or losses on financial assets and liabilities at FYPL.
Interest and dividends eamed or paid on these instruments are recorded separately in interest
income and dividend income.

Financial assets, other than those dassified as at FVWPL, are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method ("EIR") less any allowance for impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the financial assels are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the amortisation process.

Financial liakbilities, other than those classified as at FVPL, are measured at amortised cost
using the EIR. Gains and losses are recognised in proft or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised. as well as through the amortisation process.

The EIR is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liakility
and of allocating and recagnising the interest income or interest expense in profit or loss over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability to
the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of the financial liability,

When calculating the effective interest rate, the Sub-Fund estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instruments, but does not consider expected credit losses
("ECLs"). The calculation indudes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or
discounts.

{g) Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired, or the Sub-Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a pass-through arrangement and the Sub-Fund has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has fransferred control of the asset.
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ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

MOTEE TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

3, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
(g) Derecognition (continued)

When the Sub-Fund has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset (or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement), and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of
the risks and rewards of the assel transferred confrol of the asset, the assel is recognised to
the extent of the Sub-Fund's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Sub-Fund
dlso recognises an associated lability, The transferred asset and the assodated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Sub-Fund has retained.
The Sub-Fund derecognises a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is
discharged.

For financial asssts measured at amontised cost, impairment allowances are recognised under the
general approach where ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures where there has
nct been a significant increase in credit nisk since mitial recognition, the Sub-Fund is required to
provide for credit losses that result rom possible default events within the next 12 months. For those
credit exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected owver the remaining life of the exposure
irrespective of the timing of the default.

The Sub-Fund's approach to ECLs reflects a probabilty-weighted outcome, the time value of money
and reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of fulure economic conditions.

The Sub-Fund uses the provision matrix as a practical expedient to measure ECLs on other
receivables, based on days past due for groupings of recerables with similar loss patterns.
Receivables are grouped based on their nature. The provision matrix is based on historical observed
loss rates over the expected life of the receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

Ciffsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assal and settle the hiability
simultaneously. This is generally not the case with master netling agreements unless one pary to the
agreement defaults and the related assets and liabilities are presented gross in the statement of
financial position.

-2 -
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ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

MOTEE TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

3, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Eair value measurement
The Sub-Fund measures its investments in finandal instruments, such as equity instruments, at fair
value at each reporting date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordery
transaction between market paricipants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumplion that the ransaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

+ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

+ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Sub-Fund,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumplions that market participants
would wse when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

The Sub-Fund uses wvaluation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of uncbservable inputs.

The fair value for financial instruments fraded in active markets at the reporting date is based on their
quoted price, without any deduction for transaction costs.

Feor all other financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using
valuation techniques deemed to be appropriate in the dreumstances. Valuation techniques include
the market approach (i.e., using recent arm's length market transactions, adjusted as necessary, and
reference to the current market value of another instrument that is substantially the same) and the
income approach (i.e., discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models making use of
available and supportable market data as much as possible).

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Lewvel 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabiliies

Level 2 — Waluation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly cbserable

Level 3 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is uncbservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the finandal statements on a recuming basis, the Sub-
Fund determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categonisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

MOTEE TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

3, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash on hand and short-
term deposits in banks that are readily converible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, with original maturities of three months or less,

Short-term investments that are not held for the purpese of meeting short-term cash commitments
and resiricted margin accounts are not considered as cash and cash eguivalents.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash
equivalents as defined above, net of cutstanding bank owverdrafts when applicable.

Figngdl tati
The Sub-Fund's functional currency is RMB, which is the currency of the primary economic
emnvironment in which it operates. The Sub-Fund's performance is evaluated and its liquidity is
managed in RMB. Moreover, the net asset value per unit at the time of issue or redemplion is
determined and denominated in RMB.

Therefore, the RME is considered as the cumrency that most faithfully represents the economic effects
of the underlying transactions, events and conditions. The Sub-Fund's presentation currency is also
RME.

Foreign currency transiations
Transactions during the year, including purchases and sales of securities, income and expenses, are
transiated at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the funclional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporing perod. Differences arising on setflement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or less,

Mon-monetary tems that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions, Nof-monetary [Lem s measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is
determined.

Foreign currency translation gains and losses on financial instruments classified as at FVPL are
included in profit or loss.

Taxes

The Sub-Fund is exempt from all forms of taxation in Hong Kong, including income, capital gains and
withholding taxes. Howewer, in some jurisdictions, dividend income, interest income and capital gains
are subject to withholding income tax deducted at the source of the income. The Sub-Fund presents
the withholding tax separately from the gross investment gaing in profit or loss, For the purpose of the
statement of cash flows, cash inflows from investments are presented net of withholding taxes, when
applicable,
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ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

MOTEE TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

3, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Redeemable units
Redeemable units are dassified as an equity instrument when:

(@) The redeemable units entitle the holder to a pro-rata share of the Sub-Fund's net assets in the
event ofthe Sub-Fund's liquidation.

(b)) The redeemable units are in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of
instruments.

()  All redeemable units in the class of instruments that is subordinate to all other classes of
instruments have identical features,

(d) The redeemable units do nat include any contractual obligation to deliver cash or another
financial assets other than the holder's rights to a pro-rata share of the Sub-Fund's net assets.

(g) Thetotal expected cash flows attributable to the redeemable units over the life of the instrument
are based substantially on profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets or the change
in the fair value of the recognised and unrecognised net asseats of the Sub-Fund over the life of
the instrument.

In addition to the redesmable units having all the above features, the Sub-Fund must have no other
financial instruments or contracts that have:

(@) Toftal cash flows based substantially on profit or loss, the change in the recognised net assets
or the change in the fair value of the recognised and unrecognised net assets of the Sub-Fund,
and

(B) The effect of substantially restricting or fixing the residual refurn to the redeemable unitholders.

The Sub-Fund continuocusly assesses the classification of the redeemable units. If the redeemable
units cease to have all the features or meet all the conditions set out to be classified as equity, the
Sub-Fund will reclassify them as financial liabilities and measure them at fair value at the date of
reclassification, with any differences from the previous carrying amount recognised in equity. If the
redeemable units subsequently have all the features and meet the conditions to be classified as equity,
the Sub-Fund will reclassify them as equity instruments and measure them at the carrying amount of
the liabilities at the date of the reclassification.

The issuance, acquisition and cancellation of redeemable units are accounted for as equity
transactions.

Upen issuance of redeemable units. the consideration received is included in equity. Transaction costs
imcurred by the Sub-Fund in issuing or acquinng its own equity instruments are accounted for as a
deduction from equity to the extent that they are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction that otherwise would have been avoided,

O equity instruments that are reacquired are deducted from equity and accounted for at amounts
equal to the consideration paid, incduding any directly altributable incremental costs.

Mo gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issuance or cancellation of the
Sub-Fund's own equity instruments.

.94 -
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3, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

(@) Dnidend income
Diidend income is recognised on the date when the Sub-Fund's right to receive the payment
is established. Dividend income is presented gross of any non-recoverable withholding income
taxes, which are disclosed separately in profit or loss.

()  Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the EIR by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial assets.

et change in unrealised gains of losses on icial assels at FVPL
This item includes changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities at FVPL and excudes
interest and dividend income and expenseas,

Unrealised gains and losses comprise changes in the fair value of finandal instruments for the period
and from reversal of prior period's unrealised gains and losses for financial instruments which wera
realised in the reporting period.

Met realised gains or losses on financial assets at FWVPL

Realised gains and losses on disposals of financial assets at FVPL are caleulated using the weighted
average method. They represent the difference between an instrument’s average cost and disposal
amaeunt.

Distributions to unitholders

Distributions are at the discretion of the Sub-Fund, A distribution to the Sub-Fund's unitholders is
accounted for as a deduction from net assets attributable to unitholders (NAV". A proposed
distribution is recognised as a liability in the year in which it is approved by the Manager,

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Sub-Fund if:

{a) thepartyisa person of a close member of that person's family and that person
(i) hasz eontral of joint contral over the Sub-Fund;
(iiy  has significant influence over the Sub-Fund; or
(iiy  is a member of the key management perscnnel of the Sub-Fund or of a parent of the Sub-
Fund;

or

()  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies:

(i}  the entity and the Sub-Fund are members of the same group;

(iiy  one entity is an associate or joint veniure of the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the ather entity);

(i} the entity and the Sub-Fund are joint ventures of the same third party;

{iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

(v} the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Sub-
Fund or an entity related to the Sub-Fund;

{vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a){i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and
the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key management
personnel serdces to the Sub-Fund or to the parent of the Sub-Fund.

-95.
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4, TRANSACTIONS WITH THE TRUSTEE AMD MANAGER AND THEIR CONMECTED FPERSONS

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions entered into during the year
between the connected persons of the Sub-Fund, as defined in the SFC Code, including the Trustee,
the Manager and their connected persons. All transaclions entered into during the year between the
Sub-Fund, the Trustee, the Manager and their connected persons were cammied out in the nomal
course of business and on normal commercial terms. To the best of the Manager's knowledge, the
Sub-Fund does not have any other transactions with connected persons except for those disdosed
below:

{a)
The Manager is entitled to receive a management fee from the Sub-Fund at a rate of 0. 70% (up
to a maxmum of 1%) per annum with respect to the net asset value of the Sub-Fund calculated
and accrued on each dealing day and paid monthly in arrears.

The management fee incurred during the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted
to RMB112,213,174 (2020; RMBS7T 608,334). As at 31 December 2021, a management fee of
RMBSD 323 934 (2020 RMBS, 852 544) was payable to the Manager.

(B) Custodian, fund administration and trustee fees
Custodian fees and fund administration fees pertain to the amounts charged by the Trustee as
safe keeping and fund administration fees. The Trustee will bear the fees of Citibank, N.A.
{the “Administrator and Custodian™) and Citibank (China) Co., Limited (the “PRC Custodian®),

The Trustes is entithed to receive a trustes fae from the Sub-Fund which is accrued on each
dealing day and is paid monthly in arrears. The trustee fee is calculated as a percentage per
annum of the net asset value of the Sub-Fund at the current rates ranging from 0.07% to 0.10%,
subject to a monthly minimum of US54,000.

Under the terms of the Trust Deed, the Trustee may, after consulting the Manager, on giving
net less than one month's notice to unitholders, increase the rate of the trustes fee payvable in
respect of the Sub-Fund up to or towards the maximum rate of 1% per annum of the net asset
wvalue of the Sub-Fund acerued daily and calculated as at each dealing day and payable monthly
in arrears,

The custodian, fund administration and trustee fees for the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to RMB12, 073,340 (2020: RMB10,245.510). As at 31 December 2021, the custodian,
fund administration and trustes fees of RMBS, 131 486 (2020: RMBE3 821,724) were payable to
the Trustee,
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4, TRAMSACTIONS WITH THE TRUSTEE AND MANAGER AND THEIR CONMNECTED PERSONE
(continued)

(e} Financial statement preparation fee
The Trustee is entitled to receive a financial statement preparation fee from the Sub-Fund for
the preparation ofinterim and year-end financial statements.

The financial statement preparation fee incurred during the year ended 31 December 2021
amounted to RMBES,380 (2020: RMB&2,751). As at 31 December 2021, a financial statement
preparation fee of RMBS4,285 (2020 RMBS4 761) was payable to the Trustee,

(d) Brokerage and fransaction fees
Brokerage fees pertain to the broker commission and administration fees for every transaction
made through the brokers at the average market rate of 0.08% (2020: 0.08%) based on the
transaction value, Transaction fees perain te the handling fee and security management fes
for every transaction made on the Shanghal and Shenzhen exchanges and stamp duty incurred
for sales transactions.

CITIC Securities Co. Ltd. and CLSA Limited are fellow subsidiaries of the Manager. Citigroup
Global Markets Lid. is a fellow subsidiary of the Trustee. The Brokerage fees through the
connected persons of the Manager and the Trustee for the year ended 31 December 2021 and

2020 are as follows.
% of the
Aggregate value Total Sub-Fund's Average
of purchases and commission total transactions  commission
sales of secunties paid during the year rate
RMB RWMB % Yo
2021
CITIC Securities Co. Lid, 91,136 469 72605 0.56% 0.08%
CLSA Limited 3,529,218 - 0.02% s
Citigroup Global Markets
Lid, 2,180,881,5933 1,744,714 13.34% 0.08%
2020
CITIC Securities Co. Lid, 36,250,413 28,445 0.19% 0.08%
Citigroup Global Markets
Lid. 1,287 157 509 1,015,580 6.73% 0.08%
.37 -

170/306



ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

MOTEE TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4, TRANSACTIONS WITH THE TRUSTEE AMD MANAGER AND THEIR CONMECTED FPERSONS

(continued)

(e) Bank deposits and invesiments held by the Trustee's affiliates

The investments and bank balances deposited with the Trustee's affiliates as at
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 are summarised below:

Investiments
Citibank, MA.

Citibank (China) Co., Limited

Bank balances
Citibank, N.A_

Citibank {China) Co., Limited

Motes

10
10

12
12

2021 2020

RME RMEB
5,600,667 454 8,895,503,199
9 884,541,707 6,740,093, 881
B7178221 36,100,580

52 098,931 80,532,025

The carrying amount of cash at banks approximates to its fair value as at the year end.

=3 SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Manager and its connected persons have not received any soft dollar commissions or entered
into any soff dollar arrangements in respect of the management of the Sub-Fund for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, The Manager and its connected persons have not
retained any cash rebates from any broker or dealer,

B. IMCOME TAX

Mo provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the Sub-Fund as the dividend income and
realised gain on disposal of investments of the Sub-Fund are excuded from the charge to profits tax
under Section 14, Section 25 or Section 264 of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance.

P istrbuti

A ten per-cent (1096) PRC withholding income tax has been levied on dividend and interest payments
from PRC-listed companies to foreign investors, The Sub-Fund is subject to a distribution tax of ten
per-cent (10%). There is no assurance that the rate of the distribution tax will not be changed by the
PRC tax authorities in the future, The distribution tax provided for the year ended 31 December 2021
was RMB29,581,. 710 (2020: RMB27,374,925).

7. AMOUNTS DUE TO PARTICIPATING DEALERS

The balance represents the amounts due to participating dealers and is expected (o be settled within

90 days,

.98 -
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& DISTRIBUTIOMN
RMBE

Undistributed income at 1 Januwary 2020 -
Tetal comprehensive income 3,160,103 557
Less: Met gains on financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss {3,058 253 790)
Undistributed income before distribution 101,849,767
Interim distribution declared on 27 July 2020

(RMBD. 28 per unit) [ 112,082,000)
Transfer from capital 10,212,233
Undistributed income at 31 December 2020 and

1 January 2021 -
Total comprehensive income [ 801,784 864)
Add: Net losses on financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss 913,313,233
Undistributed income before distnibution 111,515,369
Interim distribution declared on 26 July 2021

{RMBD. 2D per unit) { 96,255,000
Transfer to capital { 15,263,369)

Undistributed income at 31 December 2021 -

The Manager may in its absolute discretion distribute income to unitholders at such time or times as
it may determine in each financial year or determing that no distribution shall be made in any finandial
year, The amount to be distrbuted to unitholders, if any, will be derived from the net income of the
Sub-Fund.
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8 THE REDEEMAEBLE UNITS

2021 2020

Mumber of units Mumber of units

Units in issue at the beginning of the year 296,400,000 416,230,000
Units issued 109,550,000 122,250,000
Units redeemed { 77.250.000) {242 100,000)
Units in issue at the end of the year 328,800,000 206,400,000
2021 2020

RMB RME

Dealing net asset value at the end of the year 16,564 848 087 15,7335 343 678
Dealing net asset value per unit at the end of the year 20.23797 23,0815

The creation and redemption of units of the Sub-Fund can only be facilitated by or through participating
dealers, Investors other than the paricipating dealers make a request (o create or redeem units
through a participating dealer, and if the investor is a retail investor, such request must be made
through a stockbroker which has opened an account with a participating dealer,

The Trustee shall receive subscrption proceeds from the participating dealers for the creation of units.
and pay redemplion proceeds for the redemption of units to the relevant participating dealer in such
form and manner as prescribed by the Trust Deed.

Units are denominated in RMB and no fractions of a unit shall be created or issued by the Trustee,
Units of the Sub-Fund are offered and issued at their dealing net asset value only in aggregation of a
specified number of application units (“Application Units"). Units are redesmable only in an Application
Unit or multiples thereof at the dealing net asset value. Currently, creation and redemption of units are
effected in cash.

10. FINAMCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROWUGH FROFIT OR LOSS

2021 2020
RME RMEB

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:
Listed equity securities 16,485, 209.161 15,635.597.080
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11. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The fair value of financial asssts traded in active markets is based on quaoted market prices at the
close of trading on the period end date.

The Sub-Fund ulilises the last traded market price for financial assets where the last traded price falls
within the bid-ask spread. In cireumstances where the last traded price is not within the bid-ask spread,
the Manager will determine the point within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of fairvalue.

The Sub-Fund's fair value measurement assumes that the asset or liability is exchanged in an orderly
transaction between market participants to sell the asset or fransfer the liability at the measurement
date under current market conditions,

When a price for an identical asset or liability is not observable, the Sub-Fund measures fair value
using ancther valuation technigue that maximises the use of relevant chservable inputs and minimises
the use of unobservable inputs. Because fair value is a market-based measurerment, it 2 measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, including
assumphions about risk. As a result, the Sub-Fund's intention to hold an asset or to settle or otherwise
fulfil a liability s not relevant when measuring fair value.

Even when there is no cbservable market to provide pricing information about the sale of an asset or
the transfer of a liability at the measurement date, a fair value measurement shall assume that a
transaction takes place at that date, considering from the perspective of a market participant that holds
the asset or owes the liability. That assumed transaction establishes a basis for estimating the price
to sell the asset or to transfer the liability,

Level 1 = Listed equiy secunties fraded in active markels with quoted market prices

When fair values of isted equity securities at the reporting date are based on quoted market prices or
binding dealer price quotations, in an active market for identical assets without any adjustments, the
instruments are included within Level 1 of the hierarchy, The Sub-Fund values these investments at
last traded prices.

Level 2 — Listed equiy securities temporarly suspended on the year end date

In the absence of a quoted price in an active market, the Manager applied the market approach in
which they have used the |ast traded price before their suspension as there has been no expected
material gap-down. Adjustments are made to the valuations when necessary to recognise the
differences of iming between the date of suspension and resumption which is within a reasonable
time and the price fluctuation when the investments resume trading subsequent to the year end date.
To the extent that the significant inputs are observable, the Sub-Fund categorises these investments
as Level 2. The listed equity securities were actively traded, and hence, no investments were classified
as Level 2 in 2021 and 2020,

-3 -

174/306



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

MOTEE TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

11. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Valuaticn techniques (continued)

Level 3 — Listed equiy securties suspended on the year end dalte which have nol resumed frading
prior to the date of authorisation of the financial stalemerts

The wvaluation of investments suspended from trading is performed on a daily basis by the portfolio
manager of the Manager and reviewed by senior management of the Manager and the Trustee. The
fair value was estimated by the Manager using the Index Return Method and then adjusting the last
traded price by applying available data of the coresponding sector of those investments since the
suspension date, The model incorporates unobsenable inputs which include the relevant industry
index. Also, the market comparable method was used to estimate the fair value, in which the last
traded price before the suspension of trading was used and then adjusted by applying a liquidity
discount. The model incorporates unobservable inputs which indude qualitative assessment. Both
valuation methods are ganerally accepted in the industry. Hence, the Sub-Fund had classified the fair
valug of these investments as Lewvel 3. No investments are classified as Level 3in 2021 and 2020.

The following table shows an analysis of the Sub-Fund's financial assets measured at fair value at
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020:

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  uncbservable
markets inputs inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Lewvel 3 Taotal
RMEB'000 RMB'000 RME"000 RMB'0O0D
2021
Financial assets at fair value
through profit o loss
Listed equity securities 16,485,208 = - 16,485 208
I .|
2020
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Listed equity securities 15,635,507 - - 15,635,507

Transters between Level 1 and Level 2

As at 31 December 2021, no listed equity securities were reclassified from Level 1 to Lewvel 2.

Faor the year ended 31 December 2020, the Sub-Fund transferred one listed equity security, namely
Zhejiang Huayou Cobalt Company Limited (stock code: 603799), ocut from Level 2 following the
resumption of trading of the investment,

The transfer betwesan Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy is deemed to have occurred at
the end of the reporting period.

.32
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11. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

T r 1an
As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, no listed equily securities were reclassified from
Lewal 1o Level 3.

Transfers between Level 2 and Lewvel 3
As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, no listed equities were reclassified from Level 2 to
Lewel 3.

Quantitative information of significant uncbservable inputs - Level 3

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, no listed equity securities were classified as Level
3. Hence, quanfitative sensitivity analysis was not presented as at 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020

12. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2021 2020
RME RME
Cash at banks 119,277,152 116.641,605

Cash at banks held with Citibank, M.A. and Citibank {China) Co., Ltd., the affiliate companies of the
Trustes of the Sub-Fund, was placed into interest-bearing accounts. The carrying amount of the cash
at banks approximates to its fair value.
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13. INVESTMENT LIMITATION AND PROHIBITIONS UNDER THE SFC CODE

According to Chapter 7.1 of the investment limitations and prohibitions of a collective investment
scheme, the value of the Sub-Fund's holding of securities issued by any single issuer may not exceed
10% of its total net asset value,

The SFC Code allows the Sub-Fund to invest in constifuent securities issued by a single issuer for
maore than 10% of the Sub-Fund's net asset value provided that:

(a) theimnvestment is limited to any constituent securities that each accounts for more than 10% of
the weighting of the index; and

(b} the Sub-Fund's holding of any such constituent securities may not exceed their respective
weightings in the index, except where weightings are exceeded as a result of changes in the
composition of the index and the excess is only transitional and tem porary in nature,

The SFC Code further provides thatl, if the investment limits stated abowe are breached, the
management company should take as a prionty objective all steps as are necessary within a
reasonable period of time to rem edy the situation, taking due account of the interests of the unitholders.
The Trust Deed of the Trust also contains provisions mirroring the above provisions of the SFC Code.

The Manager and the Trustee have confirmed that the Sub-Fund has complied with this limit during
the year.

There were no constituent securities that indvidually accounted for more than 10% of the net asset
value of the Sub-Fund and their respective weightings of the Index as at 31 December 2021.

14. FIMAMCIAL RISK MAMNAGEMENT OBJECTWES AND POLICIES

Risk management

Risk is inherent in the Sub-Fund's aclivities, but it is managed through a process of ongaoing
identification, measurement and monitoring. The Manager is responsible foridentifying and controlling
risks. In the perspective of risk management, the Sub-Fund's objective is to create and pratect value
for unitholders.

The Sub-Fund is exposed to market risk (which includes equity price nisk, interest rate risk and
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the financial instruments it holds. The main
risks associated with the investments, assets and liabilities of the Sub-Fund are set out below:

(a) Market risk

Market price risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices, either caused by factors specific to the individual instruments or
factors affecting all instruments in the market.

ity Equity price risk
The Sub-Fund invested substantially all of its assets in A-Shares of those PRC companies
comprising the Index in substantially the same weightings as conshituted in the Index. The
Sub-Fund is therefore exposed to substantially the same market price risk as the Index.
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14, FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT QBJECTVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Risk management (continued )
(@) Market sk (continued)

(i) Equity price risk (continued)
When there are changes in the constituent A-Shares comprising the Index andfor their
respective weightings within the Index, the Manager will rebalance the composition of the
relevant investment holdings or the underlying dynamic basket of A-Shares of selected
constituent companies of the Indesx,

As at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Sub-Fund's investments were
concentrated in the following indusiries.

fii)

2021 2020
Fair value % of net Fair value % of net
RMB asset RMB asset
value value
A-Share holdings
- by sector
Communication
Serdces 239 646,217 1.45% 280177 796 1.76%
Consumer
Discretionary 1,344 560417 512% 1,556,050,005 9.85%
Consumer Staples 2,455,350 544 14.82% 2546270828 16.21%
Energy 182,588,784 1.10% 178,233,585 1.13%
Financials 3 466 803 060 2083% 4146910 852 26.38%
Health Care 1,586,504 847 8.58% 1,486,428 420 9.43%
Industrials 2,429 322 200 14 67% 1,636,676 200 10.39%
Inform ation
Technology 2,680,788,118 16.18% 2,128,157, 142 13.54%
Materials 1,424 T13 664 8.60% LT 1254871 8.15%
Real Estate 278318188 1.68% 447 373,540 2.84%
Uilities 306612131 2.30% 261,174 842 1.66%
16,485 209 161 99.52% 15,635,597 080 99 38%

Sensitivity analysis in the evert of a possible change in the Index by 5% as estimated by
the Manager

As at 31 December 2021, if the Index was to increase by 3% (2020: 5%) with all other
variables held constant, the pre-tax profit for the year would increase by approximately
RMBES&24 million (2020; RMB782 million). Conversely, if the Index was to decrease by 5%
(2020: 5%), the pre-tax profit for the year would decrease by an approximately equal
amount. The abowve sensitivity is affected by the tracking difference of the Sub-Fund.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument or future cash flows will
fluctuate due to changes in markel interest rates

The Manager considers that the Sub-Fund is not subject to significant risk due to
fluctuations in the prevailing level of market interest rates, As the Sub-Fund has no
imvestments in fixed income assets, the Manager considers that changes in the fair value
of its net assets in the event of a change in market interest rates will not be material.
Therefore, no sensitivity analysis is presented,

-35.
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14, FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT QBJECTVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Risk management (continued )
(@) Market sk (continued)

fiiy Cuwrency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in foreign exchange rates.

Approximately 100% (2020; 100%) of the Sub-Fund's sales and purchases were
denominated in RMB, the Sub-Fund's functicnal currency. Assets and liabilities held by
the Sub-Fund are mainly denominated in RMB. Therefore, the Manager considers the
Sub-Fund is not exposed to significant currency nsk and no sensitivity analysis is
presented.

(b)Y Credt and counterparty risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss to the Sub-Fund that may arise on outstanding financial instrum ents.
should a counterparty default on its ebligations. The Sub-Fund minimises the exposure to credit
risk by only dealing with creditworthy counterparties.

All transactions by the Sub-Fund in securities are setfled/paid for upon delivery using approved
brokers. The risk of default is considered to be minimal, as delivery of securities is only made
once the broker has received payment. Payment is made on a purchase once the securities
hawve been received by the broker, The trade will fail if either party fails to meet its cbligation.

The Manager's policy is to closely monitor the creditworthiness of the Sub-Fund's counterparties
(e.g., brokers, custodian and banks) by reviewing their credit ratings, financial statements and
press releases on a regular basis,

Credit risk disclosures are segmented into two sections based on whether the underlying
financial instrument is subject to IFRS &'s impairment disclosure requirements or not,

Financial assets subject to IFRS 9's impairment requirements

The Sub-Fund's financial asset subject to the ECL model within IFRS 2 is only cash and cash
equivalents, As at 31 December 2021, the total of cash and cash equivalents was
RMBE119277.152 on which no loss allowance had been provided (20200 total of
RMBE116,641,605 on which no loss allowance had been provided). It is considered that there is
no concentration of credit risk within these assets. Mo assels are considered to be impaired and
no amounts have been written off in the year.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the Sub-Fund applies the general approach
for im pairment, and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. The financial assels therefore are still classified
as stage 1 and presented in the gross carrying amount.

In caleulating the less allowance, a provisicn matrix has been used based on histonical cbserved
loss rates over the expected life of the receivables adjusted for forward-looking estimates. All
the Sub-Fund's cash and cash equivalents are held in major financial institutions located in
Hong Kong and Mainland China, which the Manager believes are of high credit quality. The
Manager considers the Sub-Fund is not exposed to significant credit risk and no loss allowance
has been made.
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MOTEE TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

14, FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT QBJECTVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Risk management (continued )
(b} Credit and counterparty risk (continued)

Financial assets not subject to IFRS 9's impairment requirements

The Sub-Fund is exposed to credit risk on equity securiies. This class of finandial assets is not
subject to IFRS 9°s impairment requirements as they are measured at FVPL. The camrying value
of these assets represents the Sub-Fund's maximum exposure to credit risk on financial
instruments not subject to IFRS &'s impairment requirements on the respective reporting dates,
Hence, no separate maximum exposure o credit risk disclosure is provided for these
instruments,

The Sub-Fund's financial assets which are potentially subject to concentrations of counterparty
risk consist principally of assets held with the Custodians, The tables below summarise the Sub-
Fund"s assets placed with the Custodians and their related credit ratings:

1 m 1
Source of
RME  Credit rating credit rating
Custodians
Citibank, MN_A, 6,600 667 454 A+ sap
Citibank (China) Co., Limited 0,884 541,707 A SEP

31 December 2020

Source of
RMB Credit rating credit rating

Custodians
Citibank, N.A. 8,895,503,159 A S&P
Citibank {China) Ca., Limited B, 740,083 891 A+ S&P

The Manager of the Sub-Fund considers that none of these assets were impaired nor past due
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020

() Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Sub-Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash or
resources io setile s obligations in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are
materially disadvantageous.

Ag at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the Sub-Fund held liquid assets, comprising
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents and other
receivable that are expected to readily generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

The table below summarises the matunty profile of the Sub-Fund's financial assets and liabilities

at the end of the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted cash flows in order to
provide a complete view of the Sub-Fund's contractual commitments and liquidity.

-7 -
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MOTEE TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

14, FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT QBJECTVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Risk management (continued)
(e} Liguidity risk (continued)

Financial assets

Analysis of equity securiies at FVPL into maturity groupings is based on the expected date on
which these assels will be realised. For other assets, the analysis into maturity groupings is
based on the remaining peried from the end of the repeorting period to the contractual maturity
date or, if earlier, the expected date on which the assets will be realisad,

Financial lizbilities

The maturity grouping is based on the remaining pericd from the end of the reporting pericd to
the contractual maturity date. When a counterparty has a choice of when the amount is paid,
the liabilty is allocated to the earliest period in which the Sub-Fund can be required to pay.

At 31 December 2021
Dueon  Due within 1 month

demand 1month  todyear  Moterm Total
RMEDO0 RME'DD0  RMEQDD  RME'DOD RMEDOD

Financial assels
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss - 16,485 208 - = 16,485 208
Cash and cash equivalents 119.277 = - - 119,377
Total financial assets 119.277 16485209 — — 16,504,486
Financial liabilties
Management fee payable - 9,324 - - 8324
Custodian, fund

administration and trustee

fees payable = = 6,131 = 8,13
Amounts due to participating

dealers - 21,842 - - 21,843
Other payables - - 2339 - 2339
Total financial liabilities - 31,167 5,470 - 30,637
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MOTEE TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

14, FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT QBJECTVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Risk management (continued)
(e} Liquidity risk (continued)

At 21 December 2020
Dueon  Due within 1 month

demand 1month  to 1 year Mo term Tatal
RMEQODD RMEDDD RME'DOD RMEQDD RMEDOD

Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss - 15835587 - - 15635597
Cash and cash equivalents 116,642 - - - 116,642
Total financial assets 116,642 15635597 = = 15752238
Financigl liabilties
Management fee payable - 8862 - - 8,862
Custodian, fund

administration and trustee

fees payable - - 3822 - 3822
Cther payables - - G211 - 6211
Total financial liabilities - 8.862 10,033 - 18,805

Capital managamant
The Sub-Fund's capital is represented by its net assets altnbutable to unithalders., The Sub-Fund
strives to invest the subscriptions of redeemable participating units in investments that meet the Sub-

Fund's investm ent objectives while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet unitholder redemptions.

The Manager manages the capital of the Sub-Fund in accordance with the Sub-Fund's investment
chjectives and policies stated in the prospectus.
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MOTEE TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2021

15. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Manager makes strategic resource allocations on behalf of the Sub-Fund and has determined
the cperating segments based on the reports reviewed which are used to make strategic decisions.

The Manager considers that the Sub-Fund has a single operating segment which is investments in
securities. The objectives of the Sub-Fund are to track the performance of the Index and invest in
substantially all the index constituents with security weight and industry weight that are closealy aligned
with the characteristics of the tracked index.

The internal financial information used by the Manager for the Sub-Fund's assets, liabilties and
performance is the same as that disclosed in the statement of financial position and statement of
comprehensive income.
The Sub-Fund is domiciled in Hong Kong. All of the Sub-Fund's income is denived from invesiments
im securities which constitute its tracked index. The Sub-Fund's investments are mainly domicled in
the PRC.
The Sub-Fund has no assels classified as non-current assets. The Sub-Fund has portfolios that
closely comespond to the security weight and industry weight of its tracked index.

18, EVEMNTS AFTER THE REFORTING PERICD
During the period between the year end and the date of authorisation of these financial statements,
there were 10,800,000 units of subscription and 61,050,000 units of redemption of the Sub-Fund.

17. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Manager and the Trustee on
23 March 2022,
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INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO

31 December 2021

Heldings Market % of
Shares Value HAV
RMEB
Communication Services
China Satellite Communications Co Lid 335,620 4,820,701 0.02%
China Telecom Corp Lid 3,480,000 14,981,800 D.05%
China United Network Communications Ltd 13,788,608 54,189,229 0.33%
Focus Media Information Technology Co Lid 7,506,502 61,478,251 0.37%
Mango Excellent Media Co Lid 558,808 31,974,879 D15%
Perfect World Co Ltd/China 864,704 17,563 966 0.11%
Wuhu Sangi Interactive Entertainment Netwark Technology
Group Co Ltd 802,320 26,812,730 D.16%
Zhejiang Century Huatong Group Co Lid 3,315,335 27,815,661 0.17%
Consumer Discretionary
Bedjing Roborock Technalogy Co Ltd 25,371 20,626,623 0.12%
BYD Co Ltd 672,979 180,438,129 1.059%
Changzhou Xingyu Automotive Lighting Systems Co Lid 109,350 22,334 737 0.13%
China Teurism Group Duty Free Corp Ltd 723,255 158,688,380 0.96%
Chongging Changan Automobile Co Ltd 2,829,978 42 987 366 0.26%
Ecovacs Robotics Co Ltd 171,400 25,872,830 0.16%
FAW Jiefang Group Co Lid 687,500 7,074,375 0.04%
Fuyao Glass Industry Group Co Lid 1,044,878 49,260,263 0.30%
Great Wall Motor Co Ltd 807,740 44,061,700 0.27%
Gree Electric Appliances Inc of Zhuhai 3,510,486 129,993,297 0.78%
Guangzhou Automobile Group Co Lid 1,622,573 24,646,884 0.15%
Haier Smart Home Co Ltd 2811917 84,048 199 0.51%
Huayu Automaotive Systems Co Litd 1,163,528 32,927 842 0.20%
Midea Group Co Ltd 3618324 267,068 454 1.61%
Offen Education Technology Co Ltd 1,374,944 10,807,060 0.07%
Oppein Home Graup Ine 138,083 20,387,242 0.12%
SAIC Moator Corp Ltd 3,470,759 71,601,758 0.43%
Shandong Linglong Tyre Co Ltd 503,200 18,391,960 0.11%
Shanghai Yuyuan Tourist Mart Group Co Ltd 1,148,563 11,840,499 0.07%
Shenzhen Overseas Chinese Town Co Ltd 3043374 21,425 353 0.13%
Songeheng Performance Development Co Ltd 1,168,187 16,742,901 0.10%
Suning.com Co Ltd 2,770,352 11,413,850 0.07%
TCL Technalogy Sroup Caorp 10,418 654 G4 283 342 D389
Zhejiang Supor Co Ltd 122,897 7,655 333 0.05%
Consumer Staples
Anhul Gujing Distillery Co Ltd 84 711 23,109 484 0.14%
Chongqging Brewery Co Ltd 180,858 27 367 433 0.17%
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INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

31 December 2021

Heldings Market % of
Shares Value MHAY
RKMB
Einancial assets at fair value through profit or loss
{continuwad)

Listed securities (continuad)
China {continued)
Consumer Staples (continued)
DaShenLin Pharmacautical Greup Co Lid 233,420 9,830,118 0.06%
Eastroc Beverage Group Co Lid 48,100 8,746 504 0.05%
Foshan Haitian Flavouring & Food Co Lid 036,838 98,471,042 0.55%
Guangdong Haid Group Co Ltd 519,580 45 415 214 0.27%
Henan Shuanghui Investment & Development Co Lid 1,287, 7R3 40,629 554 0.25%
Inner Mongolia ¥ili Industrial Group Co Ltd 3,800,872 157,584,153 0.55%
Jiangsu King's Luck Brewery JSC Ltd 463,217 25,199,005 0.15%
Jiangsu Yanghe Brewery Joint-Stock Co Ltd 446,568 73,563,147 0.44%.
Jiangxi Zhengbang Technology Co Lid 1,178,864 11,387 826 0.07%
Jonjee Hi-Tech Industrial And Commercial Helding Co Litd 415,787 15,787 432 0.10%
Juewei Food Co Ltd 268,860 18,378,037 0.11%
Kweichow Moutai Co Ltd 485,724 954,734,200 5, 7TE%
Luzhow Lagjiao Co Ltd 540,803 137,319,045 0.83%
Muyuan Feods Co Ltd 1,853,038 104,262 132 0.63%
Mew Hope Liuhe Co Lid 1,677,365 25512722 0.15%.
Shanghai Bairun Investment Holding Group Co Ltd 273,240 16,347,948 0.10%
Shanxi Xinghuacun Fen Wine Factory Co Lid 354,673 115,156,440 0, 70%:
Tongwei Co Lid 2,001,444 £9.8584 922 0.54%.
T=ingtao Brewery Co Lid 262, 245 25962 255 0.16%
Wens Foodstuffs Group Co Ltd 3,208,205 63,523 428 0.38%
Wuliangye Yibin Co Ltd 1,444,327 321,583,850 1.94%
¥ifeng Pharmacy Chain Co Ltd 262,785 14,482,081 0.05%
Yihai Kerry Arawana Holdings Co Ltd 319,200 20,087 256 0.12%
Yonghui Superstores Co Lid 2,695,140 10,815,317 0.07%
Energy
China Coal Energy Co Ltd 1,358,900 5,547 481 0.06%
China Qilfield Services Lid 439,214 6,588,210 0.04%.
China Petroleum & Chemical Corp 9,018,527 41,846 909 0.25%
China Shenhua Energy Co Ltd 2444 233 55,044 127 0.33%
PetroChina Co Ltd 7,206,869 35385727 0.21%
Shaanxi Coal Industry Co Lid 2,875,109 35,076,330 0.21%
Financials
Agricultural Bank of China Ltd 26,044 289 76,570,210 0,46%
Bank of Beijing Co Ltd 10,977,245 48,738 965 0.25%
Bank of Chengdu Co Ltd 1,608,965 19,307 592 0.12%
Bank of China Ltd 15,627 D63 47 662,542 0.25%
Bank of Communications Co Lid 20,385 483 93.077.077 0.57%
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INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO {continued)

31 December 2021

Heldings Market % of
Shares Value HAV
RKMB
Einancial assets at fair value through profit or loss
{continuwad)

Listed securities (continuad)
China {continued)
Financials {continued)
Bank of Hangzhou Co Lid 2,199,300 25,195,026 0.179%
Bank of Jiangsu Co Lid 8,767,207 11287 031%
Bank of Nanjing Co Ltd 313726 33,274,982 D20%
Bank of Ningbo Ca Ltd 2942 561 112,641,235 0.68%
Bank of Shanghai Co Ltd 7,370,838 52554 075 032%
BOC International China Co Lid 1,035,820 13,933,124 0.08%
Caitong Securities Co Ltd 1,855,026 20,828,000 0.12%
Changjiang Securities Co Ltd 2,870,395 21,642.778 0.13%
China CITIC Bank Corp Ltd 2267282 10,474 843 0.06%
China Construction Bank Corp 4,877,200 29,166,392 0.18%
China Everbright Bank Co Lid 12,267,502 40,728,107 0.25%
China Galaxy Securities Co Ltd 848,877 10,630,243 D.06%
China International Capital Corp Lid 236,808 11,615,588 0.07%
China Life Insurance Co Litd 1,239,028 37,282,353 0.23%
China Merchants Bank Co Ltd 9,194,252 447 852 M5 2.70%
China Merchants Securities Co Ltd 2,750,926 48,553 844 0.28%
China Minsheng Banking Corp Lid 18,423,273 71,850,765 0.43%
China Pacific Insurance Group Co Ltd 2537364 68813312 0.42%
China Zheshang Bank Co Litd §,206,300 21,722,050 0.13%
CITIC Securities Co Ltd 6,323,796 167,011,452 1.01%
CSC Financial Co Ltd 856,775 27,885 669 0.17%
East Money Information Co Ltd 6,135,321 237,681,762 1.37%
Ewverbright Securities Co Ltd 1,456,052 21,738 856 0.13%
Founder Securities Co Lid 3,051,699 23,825,320 0.14%
GF Securilies Co Ltd 2195677 53 001 807 0.33%
Guosen Securities Co Lid 2,143,355 24 605,715 0.15%
Guotai Junan Securities Co Ltd 3,341,535 59,750,061 036%
Haitong Securities Co Lid 7,164,652 87,838,634 0.53%
Hithink RoyalFlush Information Mebwork Co Lid 161,449 23,342 296 0.14%
Hongta Securities Co Ltd G86,472 8,301,946 0.05%
Huatai Securities Co Ltd 3,817,684 67,802 068 0.41%
Huaxia Bank Co Ltd 4,564,755 25,562 628 0.15%
Industrial & Commercial Bank of China Ltd 25,808 568 120,373,370 0.73%
Industrial Bank Co Ltd 10,788 831 205,630 686 1.24%
Industrial Securities Co Lid 3,872,551 39,248 504 0.24%
Manjing Securities Co Litd 1,850,418 15,355,842 0.10%
Mew China Life Insurance Co Ltd 622,118 24,187 870 0.15%
Crrient Secunties Co Lid/China 3,096,535 45,642 926 0.28%
People's Insurance Co Group of China Ltd/The 2114089 9936 218 0.06%

-43-

186/306



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO {continued)

31 December 2021

Heldings Market % of
Shares Value HAV
RMB
Einancial assets at fair value through profit or loss
{continuwad)

Listed securities (continuad)
Ehina (continued)
Financials {continued)
Ping An Bank Co Ltd 7,202,316 118,694 168 0.72%
Fing An Insurance Group Co of China Ltd 8,043,208 405,462 652 2.45%
Postal Savings Bank of China Co Lid 8,062422 41,118,352 D.25%
SDIC Capital Co Ltd 1,897,917 15,600,878 0.08%
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank Co Ltd 8,703,178 74,238 108 0.45%
Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co Ltd 8,362,564 42,816,328 0.26%
Sinolink Securities Co Ltd 1,781,760 20,300,641 0.42%
Tianfeng Securities Co Ltd 3,221,040 13,045,212 D.028%
Zheshang Securities Co Ltd 1,146,500 15,110,870 0.05%
Zhongtai Securities Co Ltd 2,060,700 20545179 0.12%
Health Care
Ajer Eye Hospital Group Co Litd 2002773 34,677,242 0.52%
Asymchem Laboratories Tianjin Co Lid 112,156 48,787 860 025%
Autobio Diagnosties Co Ltd 177,644 9,781,079 0.06%
Eijing Tiantan Biclogical Products Corp Lid 503,591 14,583 995 0.08%
Bieijing Tongrentang Co Ltd 502,920 22,624 480 0.14%
Beijing Wantai Biclogical Pharmacy Enterprise Co Lid 83,980 20,818,570 0.13%
Betta Pharmaceuticals Co Lid 187,620 14,977,705 0.05%
BG] Genomics Co Litd 187,111 16,428,346 0.10%
Bloomage Biotechnology Corp Ltd 83,130 12,910,088 0.08%
Changechun High & New Technolagy Industry Group Ine 236,808 65,111,031 0.38%
Chongging Zhifei Biological Products Co Ltd 506,083 74,269 450 0.45%
Zan & Lee Pharmaceuticals Co Ltd 127,760 5,986 6238 0.05%
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings Co Lid 514,754 17,604,587 0.11%
Guangzhou Kingmed Diagnostics Group Co Ltd 208,215 23,188 905 0.14%
Hangzhou Tigermed Consulting Co Ltd 391,050 48,976,180 0.30%
Huadeng Medicine Co Lid 549,819 26,122,724 D.16%
Hualan Biclogical Engineering Inc 817,570 23,823,990 0.14%
Humanwell Healthcare Group Co Ltd 721,265 16,242 8BS 0.10%
Imeik Technology Development Co Ltd 68,700 36,830,757 0.22%
Intce Medical Technology Co Ltd 279,950 16,192,308 DA0%
Jafren Biomedical Co Lid 355,228 19,4656 652 0.12%
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine Co Ltd 3,324,440 166,582,352 1.02%
Lepu Medical Technology Beijing Co Ltd 832,259 21,087 021 0.13%
Meinian Onehealth Healthcare Holdings Co Lid 2,028,080 15,820,506 0109
Crectek China Ine 383,528 22,003,001 0.13%
Pharmaron Beijing Co Ltd 197,900 27,957 333 0.17%
Shanghai Fosun Pharmaceutical Group Co Lid 863 TAD 43,742,034 026%
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31 December 2021

Heldings Market % of
Shares Value HAV
RKMB
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(continuwad)

Listed securities (continued)
China (continued)
Health Care (continued)
Shanghal Pharmaceuticals Holding Co Ltd B57. 717 17,042 837 0109
Shanghai RAAS Blood Products Co Lid 2992738 20,410,473 0.12%
Shenzhen Kangtai Bidlogical Products Co Lid 303,705 289,927,091 0.18%
Shenzhen Mindray Bio-Meadical Electronics Co Ltd 363,400 138,382,720 0.84%
Topchoice Medical Corp 168,219 33,475,581 020%
Walvax Biotechnology Co Ltd 1,161,338 65,267 252 0.35%
Winner Medical Co Ltd &7,900 5,588,355 D.03%
Wi AppTec Co Lid 1,522,575 180,545 944 1.06%
Yunnan Baiyao Group Co Ltd 381,252 38,898,022 0.24%
Zhangzhou Pientzehuang Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 223,404 97,651,059 0.55%
Zhejiang MHL! Co Lid 1,143,598 35,588,770 0.21%
Industrials
AECC Aviation Power Co Ltd 080,345 62,7583 834 0.38%
Air China Ltd 2,215,400 20,226,602 0.12%
AVIC Shenyang Aircraft Co Ltd 436,550 29,706,196 0.18%
AVIC Xian Aircraft Industry Group Co Ltd 1,082,839 37,698,623 0.23%
Beijing Mew Building Materials PLC 744,364 26,670,562 0.16%
Beijing-Shanghai High Speed Raiway Co Lid 14,566,550 70,356,436 0.42%
China Communications Construction Co Ltd 2,615,498 22,440,973 0.14%
China CSSC Holdings Ltd 1,326,400 32,881,456 0.20%
China Eastern Airlines Corp Ltd 4,058,712 20,948,114 0.13%
China Energy Engineering Corp Ltd 9.611,300 26,238 849 0.16%
China Railway Censtruction Corp Lid 3,404 421 26,554 484 0.16%
China Railway Group Ltd 7,546,640 43,685,045 0.268%
China Shipbuilding Industry Co Ltd 8,452,380 35,669 086 0.22%
China Southern Airlines Co Ltd 3,758,515 25,595 487 0.15%
China State Construction Engineering Corp Ltd 15,551.417 T7.757 085 0.47%
Contemporary Amperex Technology Co Ltd 1,040,366 811,735,208 3.60%
COSCO SHIPPING Holdings Co Lid 4,681,951 87,692 5684 0.53%
CRRC Corp Ltd 8022374 54 945 258 0.33%
Dagin Railway Co Lid 4,485 460 28,706 944 0.17%
Ewve Energy Co Ltd 843,885 99,706 693 0.80%
Gongniu Group Co Lid 62,700 10,489,710 0.06%
Guangdong Kinlong Hardware Products Co Lid 98,120 17,999 201 0.11%
Han's Laser Technology Industry Group Co Lid 635,420 34,312,880 0.21%
Jiangsu Hengli Hydraulic Co Lid 301,675 32038015 0.15%
Metallurgical Corp of China Ltd 3,267,670 20,251,776 0.12%
MNARI Technology Co Ltd 2,057,083 82,345 032 0.50%
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31 December 2021

Holdings Market % of
Shares Value MAV
RMB
nancial a
(continuead)

Listed securities (continued)
China (continued)
Industrials (continued)
Power Construction Corp of China Lid 3677787 45,876,519 0.28%
Sany Heavy Industry Co Ltd 4,408,615 100,516,422 DE1%
SF Halding Co Ltd 1,462,553 100,799,153 0.61%
Shanghai International Airport Co Lid 709,873 33,148 639 020%
Shanghai International Port Group Co Lid 2,584,429 14,162,671 0.05%
Shanghai M&G Stationery Inc 270,743 17,465,631 0.11%
Shenzhen Inovance Technology Co Ltd 1,363,850 93,580,110 0.56%
Spring Airlines Co Ltd 267634 15,201 611 0.05%
Sungrow Power Supply Co Lid TGO,962 112,260 460 0.68%
Weichai Power Co Lid 3,521,938 53,007 471 0.38%
XCMG Construction Machinery Co Ltd 4,076,369 24,417 450 0.15%
Xinjiang Goldwind Science & Technology Co Lid 2042805 33,646,645 0.20%
Yunda Holding Co Ltd 862,808 17,653,052 0.11%
Zhejiang Chint Electrics Co Ltd 804,125 43,334 206 0.26%
Zhejiang Dingli Machinery Co Lid 183,380 14,718,079 0.08%
Zhejiang Sanhua Intelligent Controls Co Lid 1,230,850 33671997 0.20%
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science and Technology Co Ltd 3886841 26,434 850 0.16%
Informati on Technology
360 Security Technology Inc 2116613 26,923 317 0.16%
Advanced Micro-Fabrication Equipment Inc China 185,520 23,4865 832 0.14%
Anker Innowvations Technology Co Ltd 123,600 12,669,000 0.08%
Avary Holding Shenzhen Co Lid 510,283 21,651,308 0.13%
AVIC Jonhon Optronic Technalogy Co Ltd 410,585 41,288 534 0.25%
Beijing Kingsoft Office Software Inc 130,243 36,890 385 0.22%
BOE Technology Group Co Ltd 22,261 435 112,420,247 D.68%
Chaozhou Three-Circle Group Co Lid 883,874 38,420,780 0.24%
China Greatwall Technology Group Co Lid 1,308,726 18,532,410 0.11%
China Railway Signal & Communication Corp Lid 1,823 459 9578 826 0.06%
China Resources Microelectronics Lid 197,505 12,758,823 0.08%
Dawning Information Industry Co Lid 860,142 23,062,245 0.14%
Flat Glagss Group Co Ltd 382 688 22172943 0.13%
Foweconn Industrial Internet Co Lid 2,950,502 35,169 984 021%
Gigadevice Semiconductor Beijing Inc 207715 62,038 183 0.42%
Gleden Co Lid 701,226 44 864 439 0.27%
GoerTek Inc 1,772,638 95,899 716 0.58%
Guangzhou Shiyuan Electronic Technalogy Co Lid 245,002 19,943 163 0.12%
Hangzheu First Applied Material Co Lid 280,788 36,657,004 022%
Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Co Ltd 3,467,113 181,390,352 1.10%
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31 December 2021

Holdings Market % of
Shares Value NAV
RMB
Financial assets at fair value thro rofit or loss
{continued)

Listed securities (continued)
China (continued)
Information Technology (continued)
Hundsun Technologies Ine 868,308 53,965,218 0.33%
Ifiytek Co Ltd 1,361,424 71,488,374 0.43%
Inspur Electronic Information Industry Co Lid 47 792 26,791,954 0.16%
JA Solar Technology Co Litd 471,500 43,708,050 0.264%
JCET Group Co Ltd 20,411 28,551,148 0.17%
Lens Technology Co Ltd 1,480,873 34,030,462 0.21%
Lingyi iTech Guangdong Co 2,093,961 15,411,553 0.09%
LOMNGI Green Energy Technology Co Ltd 3,219,324 277505720 1.688%.
Luxshare Precision Industry Co Ltd 3,666,199 180,376,991 1.08%.
Maxscend Microelectronics Co Ltd 174,697 57,080,980 0.34%
Montage Technology Co Ltd 338,797 28,414,904 0.17%
Mational Silicon Industry Group Co Ltd 559,660 14,450,421 0,06%
MAURA Technology Group Co Ltd 195,802 67,981,812 0.41%
Qi An Xin Technology Group Inc 203,800 17,918,006 0.11%
Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corp 1,445 441 76,503 919 0.46%
Shanghai Baosight Software Co Ltd 249,508 15177572 0,08%
Shengyi Technology Co Ltd 858,622 20,220,548 0.12%
Shennan Circuits Co Ltd 147 408 17,957 243 0.11%
Shenzhen Goodix Technology Co Ltd 171.591 18,4082 362 0.11%
Shenzhen Transsion Holdings Co Ltd 181,315 28,448,323 0.17%
Tianjin Zhonghuan Semiconductor Co Lid 1,684,698 70,336,142 0.42%
Trina Sclar Co Ltd 517354 48,709,231 0.20%
Unigroup Guaxin Microelectronics Co Ltd 312,800 70,380,000 0.43%
Unisplendour Corp Ltd 1,063,906 24,310,252 0.15%
Universal Scientific Industrial Shanghai Co Lid 487,440 V828,286 0.05%
Vidll Semiconductor Co Lid Shanghai 388,835 120,838,253 0.73%
Wingtech Technology Co Ltd 257 802 72,123,799 0.44%
Wiuhan Guide Infrared Co Lid 693,203 16,782,445 0.10%
Vilixd Lead Intelligent Equipment Co Ltd 818165 50,847 005 0.379%
Yealink Metwork Technology Corp Lid 283,770 21,484 067 0.13%
Yonyou Network Technology Co Ltd 1,214,441 43,574,143 0.26%
Zhejiang Dahua Technology Co Ltd 1,332,071 1,277,027 0.19%
Zhejiang Jingsheng Mechanical & Electrical Co Lid 473.800 32,920,100 0.20%
ZTE Corp 2,362 838 78,155,107 0.48%
Materials
Aluminum Corp of China Ltd 5,826,445 35,483,050 0.20%
Anhui Conch Cement Co Ltd 1,778,413 71,670,044 0.42%
Baoshan Iron & Steel Co Ltd 5,606,449 47 302175 0.20%
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INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO {continued)

31 December 2021

Holdings Market % of
Shares Value NAY
RMBE
imancial ass
(continuead)
Listed securities (continued)
China (continued)
Materials (continued)
Bedjing Oriental Yuhong Waterproof Technology Co Lid 1,311,069 69,067 115 0.42%
China Jushi Co Ltd 1,778,772 32,391 850 0.20%
China Molybdenum Co Lid 5,235 260 20212751 0.18%
China Mortherm Rare Earth Group High-Tech Co Lid 1,616,708 74,045 226 0.45%
Citic Pacific Special Steel Group Co Ltd 7a8.012 15,524,086 0.08%
Ganfeng Lithium Co Lid 509,229 85,509,883 0.52%
Suangzhou Tinci Materials Technology Co Lid 425 183 48,747 231 0.28%
Hengli Petrochemical Co Ltd 1,564,158 35,928,709 0.22%
Hengyi Petrochemical Co Ltd 1,624,089 17,247 825 0.10%
Hoshine Silicon Industry Co Lid 122,500 16,166,325 0.10%
Huafen Chemical Co Lid 1,036,000 10,815,840 0.07%
Inner Mongolia BaoTou Steel Union Co Ltd 16,898 603 47 147 353 0.28%
Inner Mongalia Junzheng Energy & Chemical Industry
Group Co Lid 2500678 13,078,535 0.08%
Jiangsu Eastern Shenghong Co Lid 1,077,803 20,844,710 0.13%
Jiangxi Copper Co Ltd 768,618 17,163,262 0.10%
Kingfa Soi & Tech Co Ltd 1,334 900 16,783,042 0.10%
LB Group Co Ltd ga2.921 25,242,711 0L15%
Mingxia Bacfeng Energy Group Co Ltd 1,632,232 28,335,548 017%
Rongsheng Petrochemical Co Ltd 2,248 760 40,837 482 0.25%
Shandong Gold Mining Co Ltd 1338727 25,194 842 0.15%
Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Chemical Co Lid 1,096,798 4329777 0.21%
Shanghai Putailai New Energy Technology Co Lid 256709 41,230,032 0.25%
Tiangi Lithium Corp 7e8.112 82,187 984 0.50%
Wanhua Chemical Group Co Ltd 1,164,038 117,567 838 0.71%
Yunnan Energy Mew Material Co Ltd 308 867 89 876,297 0.60%
Zhejiang Huayou Cobalt Co Lid T23,723 79,833 884 0.48%
Zhejiang Longsheng Group Co Lid 1,931,001 24,388 543 0.15%
Zhongjin Gold Corp Lid 2150331 17,697 224 0.11%
Zijin Mining Group Co Ltd 10,697,166 103,762,510 0.63%
Real Estate
China Merchants Shekou Indusfrial Zone Holdings Co Ltd 2,351,602 31,370,371 0.20%
China Vanke Co Ltd 5,049 971 99 78T 427 0.60%
Gemdale Corp 1,668,097 21635218 0.13%
Greenland Holdings Corp Ltd 2,836,909 12312185 0.07%
Poly Developments and Holdings Group Co Ltd 5,323,232 83202116 0.50%
Searen Holdings Co Ltd GE9.832 19,512 206 0.12%
Shanghai Lingang Heldings Cerp Ltd 706,020 10,498 666 0.06%
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{r:.uni:l
Listed securities (continued)

China (continued)

Utilities

CGEN Power Co Ltd

China Mational Nuclear Power Co Ltd

China Three Gorges Renewables Group Co Ltd
China Yangtze Power Co Lid

GD Power Development Co Ltd

Huaneng Lancang River Hydropower Ing
Huaneng Power International Inc

SDIC Power Holdings Co Lid

TOTAL INVESTMENTS, AT FAIR VALUE

TOTAL INVESTMENTS, AT COST
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Shares Value NAV
RME
8,765,400 27 435,702 0.16%
5191131 43,085 387 0.26%
5,358 600 47 T80 506 0.29%
8,436 185 191,501 209 1.16%
56,618,052 20,982 395 0.13%
1,333,200 &8,780.401 0.03%
3,266 098 31,648 450 0.19%
2,215,062 25,408,761 0.15%
16,485,208, 161 899.52%
14,385,708, 355
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MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIC

Year ended 31 December 2021

Holdings
Haldings as at
as at 3
1 January Corporate December
INVESTMENTS 2021 Additions Actions Disposals 2021
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Listed securities
360 Security Technology Inc 1,817,310 1,077 203 - 578,600 2116813
Advanced Micro-Fabrication Equipment
Inc China 170,500 100,308 - 85,288 185,520
AECC Aviation Power Co Lid 849,580 412,165 - 272,400 289,345
Agncultural Bank of China Lid 22900,488 10,800,200 - TB56400 25044 289
Ajer Eye Hospital Group Co Ltd 1,314,444 822,892 508 337 543,500 2002773
Ajr China Ltd 2382196 830 404 - 997 200 2215 400
Ajsine Corp BB GEE 199,600 - 1,089,268 -
Aluminum Corp of China Ltd 5213945 2352300 - 1,735,800 5,526 445
Anhui Conch Cement Co Ltd 1813220 686,784 - 821,500 1,778,413
Anhui Gujing Distillery Co Ltd 82 283 85,328 . 2 900 &4 711
Anker Innovations Technology Co Ltd - 128,800 - 5,200 123,600
Asymechem Laboratories Tianjin Co Lid 116,400 91,356 - 05,600 112,156
Autobio Diagnostics Co Lid 108,265 108,920 39,559 79,100 177 6544
Avary Helding Shenzhen Co Ltd 552,058 208,525 - 251,200 510,283
AVIC Industry-Finance Heldings Co Ltd 4264120 1,173,200 - 5437320 -
AVIC Jonhon Optronic Technology Co
Ltd 438,500 146,087 - 174,000 410,596
AVIC Shenyang Aircraft Co Lid 335214 146,140 140,045 184,800 435,599
AVIC Xi'an Aircraft Industry Group Co
Ltd 1,105,106 397,333 - 450,600 1,032,839
Bank of Beijing Co Ltd 11,804,545 4,131,900 - 4950200 10977 245
Bank of Changsha Co Ltd 818,000 358,700 - 1,174,780 -
Bank of Chengdu Co Ltd 1,727 866 609,000 - 727,900 1,608,956
Bank of China Ltd 16,800,853 5,885,800 - T058600 15827083
Bank of Communications Co Lid 21,898,583 7.574,800 = 9187800 20385483
Bank of Hangzhou Co Ltd 2363480 833,010 - 997,200 2,189,300
Bank of Jiangsu Co Ltd 8564537 3332870 - 4130200 8,767,207
Bank of Nanjing Co Ltd 4 TAT 482 1,585,544 = 2660,100 3713726
Bank of Ningbo Ceo Ltd 2384318 1,204,200 269 243 925,200 2942 561
Bank of Shanghai Co Ltd 7826664 2762674 - 3318500 7,370,838
Bacshan Iron & Steel Co Lid 7088087 2487 062 - 2578700 6,606,445
Beijing Kingsoft Office Software Inc - 185,079 - 46,835 139,243
Beijing Mew Building Materials PLC BOT7 926 274238 - 337,800 T44 364
Beijing Oriental Yuhong Waterproof
Technology Co Ltd 1314217 583,152 - 586,300 1,311,069
Beijing Roborock Technelogy Co Ltd - 73,943 - 48,572 25,371
Beijing Ship Information Technalogy Co
Ltd 255,730 62,800 107,132 425,662 =
Beijing Shunxin Agriculture Co Lid 413,805 110,000 - 523,805 -
Beijing Tiantan Biological Products Corp
Ltd 200,360 202,231 - 194,000 503,591
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MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

Holdings
Holdings as at
as at 3
1 January Corporate December
INVESTMENTS (continued) 2021 Additions Actions  Disposals 2021
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)
Listed securities (continued)
Eeijing Tongrentang Co Lid 437,080 234,310 = 168,400 502,990
Bedjing Wantai Biclogical Pharmacy
Enterprise Co Ltd 38,800 132,855 20,425 98,100 93,980
Beijing-Shanghai High Speed Railway
ColLtd 2,738,100 15,683,650 - 3856200 14,585 550
Betta Pharmaceuticals Co Ltd - 232,520 - 44,900 187,620
BGI| Genomics Co Lid 158,700 892411 - 65,000 187 111
Bloomage Biotechnology Corp Ltd - 113,830 = 30,700 83,130
Bluestar Adisseo Co 234,961 128,900 = 383,861 =
BOC Irternational China Co Lid 243,300 905,520 - 112,900 1,035,920
BOE Technology Group Co Ltd 21,592861 11,659,674 - 10991200 22,261 435
BYD Co Ltd 723,015 268,084 - 318,100 672,979
Caitong Securiies Co Ltd 2,002 448 689,790 - 837,200 1,855,036
CGN Power Co Ltd 9,408,300 3310800 = 3,853,700 8,765,400
Changehun High & New Technology
Industry Group Inc 225,668 85,440 - 71,200 238,908
Changjiang Securities Co Lid 3,085 895 1,088,600 - 1,305,200 2.870,395
Changzhou Xingyu Automotive Lighting
Systems Co Ltd - 155,450 - 46,100 109,350
Chaozhou Three-Circle Group Co Lid 870,314 341,260 - 327,700 BA3Z BT4
Chengdu Kanghong Pharmaceutical
Group Co Lid 293,321 74200 - 367,521 -
China CITIC Bank Corp Ltd 2,442 982 850,900 - 1,036,600 2267 282
China Coal Energy Co Lid - 1,358,900 - - 1,358,900
China Communications Construction Co
Lid 2,808,898 982,800 - 1,176,200 26515498
China Constructicn Bank Corp 5,352,307 1,871,693 - 2,246,800 4,977,200
China CSSC Heldings Ltd 535,000 1,180,800 = 389,400 1,326,400
China Eastern Airlines Corp Ltd 3,572,310 1,682,902 - 1,205,500 4,050,712
China Energy Engineering Corp Ltd - 9,611,300 = = 9,611,300
China Everbright Bank Co Lid 12,690,302 4,496,300 - 4919100 12.267,502
China Fortune Land Development Co
Ltd 1.247 572 532,500 - 1,780,072 -
China Galaxy Securities Co Lid 1,027 428 347 148 - 424 500 248 977
China Gezhouba Group Co Ltd 2,202 097 525,600 = 2,727 687 =
China Grand Automotive Senvces
Group Co Lid 3231190 769,000 - 4,000,180 -
China Great Wall Securities Co Ltd 742,310 211,500 - 853,810 -
China Greatwall Technelogy Group Co
Ltd 1,400,386 487,700 - 579,300 1,308,786
China Internaticnal Capital Corp Lid - 267 6508 - 30,700 235 008
- 5" -
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MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

Holdings
Haldings as at
as at 3
1 January Corporate December
INVESTMENTS (continued) 2021 Additions Actions Disposals 2021
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)
Listed securities (continued)
China Jushi Co Ltd 1.674,27T1 §18.016 258,085 771,500 1779772
China Life Insurance Co Ltd 1,328,034 482,004 - 571,100 1,239,028
China Merchants Bank Co Ltd 0865030 3519813 - 4.191,500 9,194 252
China Merchants Energy Shipping Co

Ltd 1,611,600 893,800 449,350 2,854,760 -
China Merchants Securities Co Ltd 2858030 1,041,896 - 1,245,000 2,750,926
China Merchants Shekou Industrial

Zone Holdings Co Lid 2,526,198 893 904 . 1,068,500 2351602
China Minsheng Banking Corp Ltd 16,066,872 7,153,301 - 5607000 18423273
China Molybdenum Co Ltd 5533,860 1,972,000 = 2370800 5,235,260
China Matienal Chemical Engineering

Co Ltd 1967 867 466,300 - 2434167 -
China Mational Muclear Power Co Ltd 486013 2,436,400 = 2,205,400 5181131
China Morthern Rare Earth Group High-

Tech Co Ltd 1,737,708 520,000 - 741,000 1,616,708
China Oilfield Services Ltd 471,587 162 717 - 195,100 439 214
China Pacific Imsurance Group Co Lid 2728288 969,775 . 1,160,700 2537 364
China Petroleum & Chemical Corp 10,664,527 3,714,600 - 4,463,000 89.916,527
China Railway Construction Corp Ltd 3667118 1,283,302 - 1,546,000 3404 421
China Railway Group Ltd B.118,040 2,845,400 = 3416800 7,546,640
China Railway Signal & Communication

Corp Ltd 21061,800 737578 - 875,719 1,923 459
China Resources Microelectronics Ltd - 245,389 - 47,884 197,505
China Satellite Communications Co Ltd 350,082 143,447 - 158,800 335,629
China Shenhua Energy Co Ltd 2628681 906,152 - 1,080,600 2444 733
China Shipbuilding Industry Co Ltd 7.271,190 3,629,200 - 2,448,000 8,452,390
China Shipbuilding Industry Group

Power Co Lid 217,068 148,100 - 655,168 -
China Southern Airlines Co Lid 3524120 2,928,495 - 2694100 3,758,515
China Spacesat Co Lid 470,879 110,000 - 580,879 -
China State Construction Engineering

Corp Ltd 16,723,687 5,851,320 = T023800 15551417
China Telecom Corp Lid - 3,460,000 - - 3,460,000
China Three Gorges Renewsables

Group Co Ltd - 6,358 600 - - 6,358,600
China Tounsm Group Duty Free Cop

Ltd T78.236 290,019 - 345,000 723,255
China United Nebwork Communications

Ltd 7416208 10,538,900 - 4166500 13,785608
China Vanke Co Ltd 5425311 1,899,860 - 2275200 5,048,971
China Yangtze Power Co Ltd 7252620 4,049 465 - 2865000 8,435,185
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MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

Holdings

Haldings as at

as at 3

1 January Corporate December

INVESTMENTS (continued) 2021 Additions Actions Disposals 2021
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (continued)
Listed securities (continued)

China Zheshang Bank Co Ltd 2564,200 5,337,200 - 1,795,100 6,206 300

Chinalin Securities Co Lid 215,144 55,000 - 270,144 -

Chongging Brewery Co Ltd 228,758 - 47,900 180,858

Chongging Changan Automobile Co Ltd 1,778,042 873,900 758,536 680,500 2820978
Chongging Rural Commercial Bank Co

Ltd 1,408, 695 4,078,100 = 5487785 -
Chongging Zhifei Biclogical Products

Co Ltd 510,574 298,589 . 213,100 586,063
Citic Pacific Spedal Steel Group Co Ltd B804 585 290,823 - 337,400 758,012
CITIC Securities Co Ltd 6,789 952 2378 844 - 2845000 6,323,795
Contemporary Amperex Technology Co

Ltd - 1,042 365 - 2,000 1,040,366
COSCO SHIPPING Holdings Co Ltd 34858698 1466900  1,204553 1,838,200 4,691,931
CRRC Corp Ltd 9593940 3,400,934 - 4072500 9022374
C5C Financial Co Ltd TE3.570 451,705 - 258,500 958 775
Dagin Railway Co Ltd 4,741,397 1,662,300 - 1918237 4,485 460
DaShenlin Pharmaceutical Group Co

Ltd - 258,935 4,204 30,700 233,439
Dawning Information Industry Co Lid 809,374 334 468 = 274,700 589,142
Dongxing Securities Co Lid 1,089,640 265208 - 1,364,846 -
East Money Information Co Ltd 5402647 2,106,201 1,227 273 2,690,800 6,135,321
Eastroc Beverage Group Co Lid - 43,100 - - 48,100
Ecovacs Robotics Co Ltd - 173,900 - 2,500 171,400
Eve Energy Co Ltd 803, 768 33817 - 398,200 843,685
Everbright Securities Co Ltd 1,557,130 558,522 - 659,500 1.455,052
FAW Jiefang Group Co Ltd - 855,600 - 168,100 687,500
Fiberhome Telecommunication

Technologies Co Ltd 558,796 141,513 - 701,309 =
Flat Glass Group Co Ltd - 382 688 - - 382 688
Focus Media Information Technology

Co Ltd 81891102 2,861,100 - 3545700 7,506,502
Foshan Haitian Flavouring & Food Co

Ltd 774524 328827 245,587 412,300 936,838
Founder Securities Co Ltd 3282103 1,154,095 - 1,384,500 3,051,699
Foxconn Industrial Internet Co Ltd 1,583,861 1,870,741 - 504,100 2,950,502
Fuyao Glass Industry Group Co Lid 1,117,977 412,601 - 485,600 1.044 978
Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals Co Lid 40,020 168,140 - 0,300 127,760
Ganfeng Lithium Co Lid 809612 218117 - 228,500 509,229
GD Power Development Co Litd 8399152 3,028,500 - 2,808,600 6,619,002
Gemdale Corp 1,789,197 518,700 - 749,800 1,668,007
GF Securities Co Lid 2359177 833,200 - 996,700 2195677
Giant Metwork Group Co Ltd 545147 453,230 - 1,108,377 -
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MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

Holdings

Haldings as at

as at 3

1 January Corporate December

INVESTMENTS (continued) 2021 Additions Actions Disposals 2021
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (continued)
Listed securities (continued)

Gigadevice Semiconductor Beijing Inc 262,830 145,723 111,762 122,800 397,715

Glodon Co Ltd TE5,624 273,502 - 327,900 26

GoerTek Ine 1,810,534 758,804 - 784,700 1,772,638

Gongniu Group Co Ltd 48,600 103,500 - 85,400 62,700

Great Wall Motor Co Ltd BE8,822 344818 - 406,000 207,740

Gree Electric Appliances Inc of Zhuhai 3835699 1,348 587 = 1,674,800 3,510 486

Greenland Holdings Carp Litd 2811,283 1,026,531 147 495 1,248,500 2,535,909

Guangdeng Haid Group Co Ltd 537 089 219,191 - 237,600 519,580
Guangdong Kinlong Hardware Products

Co Ltd - 105,520 - 6,400 89,120
Guangzhou Automobile Group Co Ltd 740,044 1,358,129 . 475,600 1,622,573
Guangzhou Baiyun International Airport

Co Ltd 043 445 224 345 - 1,167,791 -
Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical

Holdings Co Ltd 448019 248 435 - 181,700 514,754
Guangzhou Kingmed Diagnostics

Group Co Ltd - 257115 - 48,900 208,215
Guangzhou Shivuan Electronic

Technology Co Ltd 265018 78,484 - 90,400 245,002
Guangzhou Tind Materials Technology

Co Ltd - 425,183 - - 425183
Guosen Securities Co Lid 2,288 463 818,292 - 973,400 2,143,355
Guotai Junan Securities Co Ltd 3504677 1,253,658 - 1,506,800 3,341,535
Guoyuan Securities Co Lid 2087 406 760,054 - 2847460 -
Haier Smart Home Co Lid 3.018,783 1,052 434 - 1,257,300 281,817
Haitong Securities Co Ltd 6,156,427 3407725 = 2380500 7,164 652
Hangzhou First Applied Material Co Ltd - 337 388 - 546,600 280,788
Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology

Co Ltd 287942 1,663,992 - 1,176,300 3,467,113
Hangzhou Robam Appliances Co Ltd 78277 117,265 . 485,542 -
Hangzhou Tigermed Consulting Co Ltd 418,014 146,136 . 173,100 391,050
Han's Laser Technology Industry Group

Co Ltd 679,002 225028 - 260,600 535,420
Hebei Yangyuan Zhihui Beverage Co

Ltd 403,428 94,400 - 497,828 -
Henan Shuanghui Investment &

Develepment Co Ltd 828303 896,180 - 236,700 1,287,783
Hengli Petrochemical Co Litd 1,681,454 559,004 - T06,300 1,564,158
Hengtong Optic-electric Co Lid 1.089,043 37,100 = 1,406,143 =
Hengyi Petrochemical Co Lid 1,465,636 718,053 - 550,600 1,624,089
Hithink RovalFlush Information Network

Co Ltd 171,549 79,100 - 86,200 161,449
Hongta Securities Co Ltd 578,340 223,500 172,832 279,300 506, 472

-54 -
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MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

Holdings
Haldings as at
as at 3
1 January Corporate December
INVESTMENTS (continued) 2021 Additions Actions Disposals 2021
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)
Listed securities (continued)
Hoshine Silicon Industry Co Ltd - 127,800 - 5,300 122,500
Huadian Power International Corp Ltd 25097 564 626,544 - 3224108 -
Huadang Medicine Co Ltd G732 242,707 - 290,200 548 819
Huafon Chemical Co Ltd - 1,036,000 - - 1,036,000
Hualan Bidlogical Engineering Inc 872,126 292,344 - 348,900 817,570
Huaneng Lancang River Hydropower
Ing 1,434 500 504,700 - 505,300 1,333,000
Huaneng Power Intermational Ine 3506 7E0 1,227,738 - 1,468,400 3,266,008
Huatai Securities Co Lid 4.681,584 1,582 300 - 2,456,600 3,817 684
Huaxia Bank Co Lid 4 408,255 1,716,200 - 2057700 4 564 755
Huayu Automotive Systems Co Ltd 1,256,124 420,404 . 513,000 1,163,528
Hubei Biccause Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 1,572,968 365,200 - 1,538,169 -
Humarwell Healthcare Group Co Ltd - a02 065 - 180,800 721,265
Hundsun Technologies Inc 565,416 248,748 272,442 318,300 858,306
Iftytek Co Ltd 1401474 506,050 - 546,100 1,361,424
Imeik Technology Development Co Lid - 77,000 - 8,300 68,700
Industrial & Commercial Bank of China
Ltd 27935668 9,883,600 - 11820700 25908 558
Industrial Bank Co Ltd 11,589,872 4,100,959 - 4890900 10,799,931
Industrial Securities Co Lid 4270661 1,494,190 - 1,792,300 3,972,551
Inner Mangolia BaoTou Steel Union Co
Ltd 18,162,773 8,356,420 - TB20500 16808693
Imnner Mangelia Junzheng Energy &
Chemical Industry Group Co Litd 2680,776 937,800 - 1,128,000 2,500,676
Imner Mangelia Yili Industrial Group Co
Ltd 4,848 857 1,632,915 = 2,680,900 3,800,872
Inspur Electronic Infermation Industry
Co Ltd 811,052 271,800 . 335,100 747,752
Inteo Medical Technology Co Ltd - 230,400 80,250 30,700 279 950
JA Solar Technolegy Co Ltd - 471,500 - - 471,500
Jafron Biomedical Co Ltd 318228 171,600 - 124,600 365,228
JCET Group Co Ltd B892 500 357911 - 330,000 920,411
Jiangsu Eastern Shenghong Co Ltd - 1,077,803 - - 1,077,803
Jiangsu Hengli Hydraulic Co Ltd 312,536 215,239 - 136,100 391,875
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine Co Lid 2974813 1,130,400 672,527 1,453,300 3.324 440
Jiangsu King's Luck Brewery JSC Lid 500,400 173,317 = 210,500 483,217
Jiangsu Yanghe Brewery Joint-Stock
Co Ltd 480,045 152,922 - 186,400 446 568
Jiangsu Zhongnan Construction Group
Co Ltd 1.504,385 352,604 = 1,856,950 =
Jiangsu Zhongtian Technology Co Ltd 1,855,302 532,073 - 2487375 -
Jiangxi Copper Co Lid 826,882 282237 - 340,500 768,619
Jiangxi Zhengbang Technology Co Lid 1,003,700 671,964 - 496,800 1,178,854
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ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

Holdings
Haldings as at
as at 3
1 January Corporate December
INVESTMENTS {continued) 2021 Additions Actions  Disposals 2021
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)
Listed securities (continued)
Jinke Properties Group Co Litd 2,553,872 F00,000 - 32534872 =
Jointown Pharmaceutical Group Co Ltd 597,413 141,600 - 739,013 -
Jonjee Hi-Tech Industrial And
Commercial Holding Co Ltd 444157 146,130 - 174,500 415,787
Juewei Food Co Ltd - 299 650 - 30,700 268 950
Kingfa Sci & Tech Co Ltd - 1,664,600 - 328,700 1,334,800
Kweaichow Moutal Co Ltd 400,538 220,086 - 154,900 465,724
LE Greup Co Lid 71,918 439 805 - 528,800 882 921
Lens Technology Co Lid 1,047 978 837,294 - 404,400 1,480 873
Lepu Medical Technology Beijing Co
Ltd 1,006,666 347 293 - 421,700 932 259
Lingyi iTech Guangdong Co 2,244 861 T&4 400 - 935,300 2,083 561
LONGi Green Energy Technology Co
Ltd 2,104,871 1,114,880 1,031,093 1,031,500 3,219,324
Luxshare Precision Industry Co Lid 3,340,158 1,546 441 - 1,220,400 3,665,199
Luzhou Lagjiac Co Lid 583,857 215,546 = 258,800 540,903
Mange Excellent Media Co Lid 557,71 256,115 - 265,100 558 808
Maxscend Microelectronics Co Lid - 176,997 - 2,300 174 897
Meinian Onehealth Healthcare Holdings
Co Ltd 2,183,945 762,045 - 917,900 2,028,000
Metallurgical Corp of China Ltd 5,693,570 1,985,200 - 2401100 5,287 670
Midea Group Co Lid 3,918,000 1,383,825 - 1,683,600 3618324
Minmetals Capital Co Ltd 1,792,586 425,500 = 2218083 =
Montage Technology Co Ltd 350,500 154,884 - 176,587 338,797
Muyuan Foads Co Lid 1,494,108 608,939 673,680 820,800 1.953 938
Manjing Securities Co Ltd 1,175,400 814,718 - 339,700 1,630,418
NARI Technology Co Ltd 1,841,654 672271 385,158 842 000 2057 083
Mational Silican Industry Group Co Ltd - 621,060 - 61,400 558 650
MAURA Technology Group Co Ltd 197,343 75,600 - 77.041 185,802
Mew China Life Insurance Co Lid 654,518 219297 - 261,700 522 116
Mew Hope Livhe Co Ltd 1,795,365 633,800 . 751,800 1,677,365
Mingxia Bacfeng Energy Group Co Lid 584,500 1,508,332 - 450,700 1,632,232
Offen Education Techrology Co Ltd 541,050 1,233,894 - 400,000 1,374 944
OFILM Group Co Ltd 1,718,628 457 362 = 2185980 -
Cppein Home Group Inc 142 818 82765 - 87,500 135,083
Orient Securities Co Ltd/China 3320317 1,164 418 - 1,397,200 3,096 535
Criental Pearl Group Co Ltd 1,831,470 385519 - 2016989 -
Crvetek China Inc - 477128 - 93,800 383,528
Pecple's Insurance Co Group of China
LtdiThe 1,699,280 878,700 - 454,000 2.114,089
Perfect Werld Co Lid/China 027,504 336,100 - 390,200 854 794
PetroChina Co Lid 7,745,960 2,712,600 - 3252700 7.206 869
Pharmaron Beijing Co Ltd = 187,200 - - 197,800
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ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

Holdings
Holdings as at
as at K|
1 January Corporate December
INVESTMENTS {continued) 2021 Additions Actions  Disposals 2021
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)
Listed securities (continued)
Ping An Bank Co Lid 7.734 079 2743237 - 3275000 7.202.318
Ping An Insurance Group Co of China
Ltd 8634 891 3,051,507 - 3543100 8,043,298
Poly Developments and Holdings
Group Co Ltd 5723554 2011.478 - 2411800 £.323,232
Postal Savings Bank of China Co Ltd 2675622 7845300 - 2.258500 8062422
Power Construction Corp of China Lkd 5,096,287 2.136.500 - 2,555,000 5.677.787
i An Xin Technology Group Inc - 203,800 - - 203,800
Cingdao Rural Commercial Bank Comp 2213928 510,100 = 2724028 -
RiseSun Real Estate Development Co
Ltd 1,386,391 324,000 = 1,710,390 -
Rongsheng Petrochemical Co Lid 1.614,007 544,350 812,603 922,200 2,245,760
SAIC Metor Corp Lid 2793687 1,609,472 - 832,400 3,470,759
Sanan Optoelectronics Co Lid 1,785,182 719,782 - 2,504,974 -
Sany Heawvy Industry Co Ltd 4729265 1,651,050 - 2,001,700 4,408,615
SDIC Capital Co Ltd 1,347 598 547,682 732729 730,500 1,897,917
S0IC Power Holdings Co Ltd 2221230 816,532 - 822,700 2,215,062
Seazen Holdings Co Ltd 719,552 266,500 - 316,200 GE9,832
Semiconductor Manufacturing
International Corp - 1,445,441 - - 1,445,441
SF Helding Co Ltd 1,452 407 518,645 - 508,500 1,462 553
Shaanyi Coal Industry Co Ltd 3188 260 1,107,443 = 1,420,600 2875109
Shandong Gold Mining Co Ltd 1,450,315 493 312 - &04,900 1,338,727
Shandong Hualu Hengsheng Chemical
Co Ltd - 1,365,898 - 269,200 1,006,798
Shandang Linglong Tyre Co Ltd - 503,200 - - 503,200
Shanghai Bairun Investment Holding
Group Co Ltd - 273,240 - - 273,240
Shanghai Baosight Saftware Co Lid 205,100 162172 59,435 187,200 248,508
Shanghai Electric Group Co Ltd 293517 1,802 500 - 476017 -
Shanghai Fosun Pharmaceutical Group
Co Ltd 961,881 340,508 - 408,600 893,780
Shanghai International Airpert Co Lid TE8 137 283335 - 341,500 709,973
Shanghai International Port Group Co
Ltd 2770729 965,300 - 1,151,800 2,584 420
Shanghai Lingang Holdings Corp Lid 476675 322,080 132,995 225,700 T06,030
Shanghai M&S Stationery Inc 295,710 88,833 - 113,800 270,743
Shanghai Pharmaceauticals Helding Co
Ltd 920,089 330,328 = 392,700 857717
Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
Co Ltd 9,358,258 3271520 - 3926600 8,703,178
Shanghai Putailai New Energy
Technalogy Co Ltd - 287,408 - 30,700 256,708

- 57 -
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ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

Holdings
Haldings as at
as at 3
1 January Corporate December
INVESTMENTS (continued) 2021 Additions Actions Disposals 2021
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)
Listed securities (continued)
Shanghai RAAS Blood Products Co Litd 2,147,538 1,449,700 - 604,500 2992 T38
Shanghai Yuyuan Tourist Mart Group
Co Ltd 1,237 986 421,077 - 500,500 1,149 563
Shanxi Mejin Energy Co Lid 1.625,042 381999 - 2007041 -
Shanxi Xinghuacun Fen Wine Factory
Co Ltd 27T 422 110,656 116,495 135,900 364 8673
Shengyi Technolegy Co Ltd 013,060 327353 - 351,800 858,622
Shennan Circuits Co Lid 156,244 80,964 - 89,800 147 408
Shenwan Hongyuan Group Co Lid 7185479 3575585 = 2,388,500 8,362 564
Shenzhen Goodix Technology Co Ltd 182,491 75,100 - 86,000 171,591
Shenzhen Inovance Technelegy Co Litd 822,330 446,903 463,917 368,300 1,363,850
Shenzhen Kangtai Biological Products
Co Ltd 271,802 150,703 - 118,800 303,705
Shenzhen Mindray Bio-Medical
Electronics Co Ltd - 387,200 - 3,800 363,400
Shenzhen Overseas Chinese Town Co
Ltd 3260288 1,145,286 - 1,371,200 3043374
Shenzhen Sunway Communication Co
Ltd 813,93 284,800 - 89g.73 -
Shenzhen Transsion Holdings Co Ltd 127 962 124,747 - 71,384 181,315
Sichuan Kelun Pharmaceutical Co Lid 802,704 188,705 - 291,409 -
Sinolink Securities Co Ltd 1,828,760 681,900 - 818,900 1,781,760
Songcheng Performance Development
Co Ltd 1,250,161 431,136 - 512,100 1,169 197
SooChow Securities Co Lid 2476341 658 530 = 3145871 -
Southwest Securities Co Ltd 2545 680 522 400 - 3269089 -
Spring Airlines Co Ltd 200,434 87,700 - 110,500 267 534
Sungrow Power Supply Co Lid - 50,162 - 180,200 768 962
Suning.com Co Ltd 2968352 1,029,000 - 1,227,000 2770352
Suzhou Dongshan Precision
Manufacturing Co Lid 054,200 328807 - 1,283,007 -
TCL Technelogy Group Corp 11,183,753 3,923,241 - 4888300 10418694
Tianfeng Securities Co Lid 2558,540 1,533,800 - 1,071,300 3,221,040
Tianpn Zhonghuan Semiconductor Co
Ltd 1.450,198 571,900 = 437,400 1.584 698
Tiangi Lithium Corp - 768,112 - - 788,112
Tongwes Co Ltd 2182972 750972 - 911,500 2,001 444
Topchoice Medical Corp 178,870 78,149 - 88,900 188,219
Trina Solar Co Ltd - 817,354 - - 517,354
Tsingtao Brewery Co Ltd 282145 82,400 - 102,300 262,245
Unigroup Guoxin Microelectronics Co
Ltd 338,900 146,300 - 172,400 312,800
Unisplendour Corp Ltd 1,140,082 412,614 - 488,800 1,063,906
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ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

Holdings

Haldings as at

as at 3

1 January Corporate December

INVESTMENTS (continued) 2021 Additions Actions Disposals 2021
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (continued)
Listed securities (continued)

Universal Scientific Industrial Shanghai

Co Ltd 522,240 184,700 - 219,500 487 440
Walvax Bistechnology Co Lid 1,230,052 431,387 - 500,100 1,161,339
Wanda Film Helding Co Lid 711,160 190,400 - 901,560 -
Wanhua Chemical Group Co Lid 1,250,992 437 046 - 524,000 1,184 038
Weichai Power Co Ltd 3819911 1,324,127 - 1,622,100 3,521,938
Wens Foodstuffs Group Co Ltd 3556219 1,250,186 - 1,508,200 3,298,205
Westemn Securities Co Ltd 1,305,627 387004 - 1,782,631 -
Will Semiconductor Co Lid Shanghai 344 443 188,892 = 144,500 388,835
Wingtech Technology Co Lid 306,002 277,300 - 116,400 557 802
Winner Medical Co Litd - 76,200 - 8,300 67,900
Wuhan Guide Infrared Co Lid 208,000 211,461 232,342 258,600 593,203
Wuhu Sangi Interactive Entertainment

Metwork Technology Group Co Ltd 1,010,090 351,339 - 379,100 262 329
Wuliangye Yibin Co Lid 1,547,193 582,534 - 665,400 1,444,327
WAUS Printed Circuit Kunshan Co Ltd BE2,300 274170 88,022 1334482 =
WuXi AppTec Co Ltd 1,020,581 586,111 230,073 324,600 1,522 575
Wi Lead Intelligent Equipment Co Ltd - 890,366 - 172,200 818,166
KCMS Construction Machinery Co Ltd 3,745,268 1,589 400 - 1,258,300 4,076,368
Xinhu Zhengbao Co Lid 3426404 808,000 - 4234 404 -
Xinjiang Goldwind Science &

Technology Co Ltd 2,200,835 761,170 - 218,100 2,042 905
Yango Group Co Lid 1,314,091 315,000 - 1,620,051 -
Yealink Metwork Technology Corp Ltd 215,756 115514 - 67,800 263,770
Yifeng Pharmacy Chain Co Lid - 325385 - 62,600 262 T&5
Yihai Kermry Arawana Heldings Co Ltd - 319,200 - - 319,200
Yonghui Superstores Co Ltd 2034,340 1,057,200 - 1,396,400 2,595,140
Yonyou Network Technology Co Ltd 1,303,710 470,631 - 556,900 1.214 441
Youngor Group Co Lid 2213675 523,108 - 2T73BTES -
YTO Express Group Co Lid 1,007,385 274,500 = 1,281,888 =
Yunda Holding Co Ltd 024703 325805 - 387,700 882 808
Yunnan Baiyac Group Co Lid 407 243 149,400 N 175,400 381,252
Yunnan Energy Mew Material Co Ltd 349,000 187 567 - 138,800 398,887
Yutong Bus Co Ltd 1,058,487 248,335 = 1,306,822 =
Zhangzhou Pientzehuang

Pharmaceutical Co Ltd 240,204 76,500 - 93,300 233,404
Zhejiang Century Huatong Group Co

Ltd 2970135 1,336,900 - 991,700 3,315,335
Zhejiang Chint Electrics Co Lid 856,554 292,371 = 344,800 504,125
Zhejiang Dahua Technology Co Lid 1432871 493,600 - 594,400 1,332,011
Zhejiang Dingli Machinery Co Lid - 228,180 - 44,800 183,380
Zhejiang Huayou Cobalt Co Ltd 246,023 336,500 - 158,800 723,723
Zhejiang Jingsheng Mechanical &

Electrical Co Lid - 473,800 - - 473,800
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ChinaaMC C3l 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

MOVEMENTS IN INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021

Holdings

Haldings as at

as at 3

1 January Corporate December

INVESTMENTS (continued) 2021 Additions Actions Disposals 2021

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (continued)

Listed securities (continued)

Zhejiang Longsheng Group Co Ltd 2076,332 720,169 - 865,500 1,931,001
Zhejiang MHU Co Lid 1027 432 354,280 220,785 458,900 1,143,598
Zhejiang Sanhua Intelligent Contrels Co

Lid 1431362 493 498 - 584,000 1,330,890
Zhejiang Supor Co Lid 131,21 84,696 - 92,900 122 8497
Zheshang Securities Co Ltd 1,440,100 457,100 - 760,700 1,146,500
Zhongjin Gold Corp Ltd 1545731 1,125,800 - 521,200 2,150,331
Zhongtai Securities Co Lid 510,900 1,648,300 = 198,500 2,060,700
Zijin Mining Group Co Ltd 10,956,911 3,912,455 - 4172200 10,657,166
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Scence and

Technology Co Ltd 3544085 1,453,356 - 1410600 3,685,841
ZTE Corp 2,152,625 833,714 - 723,500 2,352 839

-B0-
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ChinaaMC C3l 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

PERFORMANMCE RECORD
Year ended 31 December 2021

1. MET ASSET VALUE (calculated in accordance with the Sub-Fund’s Trust Deed)

Met assets
attributable to Met asset value
unitholders per unit
RMB RMB

As al:

31 December 2021 16,564, 840 037 50,3707
31 December 2020 15,733,342,678 53.0815
31 December 2018 17,382,025,714 41.7586

2 HIGHEST ISSUE AND LOWEST REDEMPTION PRICES PER UNIT*

Highest Lowest
issue redemption
unit price unit price
RMB RMB

During the yeariperiod ended;
31 December 2021 590817 48,4918
31 December 2020 53.0815 358722
31 December 2019 41.7586 20,2426
31 December 2018 44 7342 30,5351
31 December 2017 43,1972 33.9102
31 December 2016 B.5111 20,1665
31 December 2015 53.7680 30,5877
31 December 2014 353314 21.0387
31 December 2013 271919 21.6261
31 December 2012° 24 9564 211203

- 651 -
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ChinadMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

PERFORMANCE RECORD {centinued)
Year ended 31 December 2021
3. COMPARISON OF THE SCHEME PERFORMANCE AND THE ACTUAL INDEX PERFORMANCE"

Thetable below llustrates the comparnson between the Sub-Fund's performance (Market-to-Market) and
that of the Index during the following year:

RME counter of

The Index the Sub-Fund HED counter of the
(since 16 July {since 17 July Sub-Fund (since 26
2012) 2012) October 2012)

Dwring the yearpenod ended:
31 December 2021 149.33% 125.30% 136.97%
31 December 2020 180.00% 134, 199% 140.13%
31 December 2019 100.16% 7T1.69% 64 83%
31 December 2018 43.51% 27 89% 25.22%
31 December 2017 58.27% T0.04% 75.49%
31 December 2016 37.94% 30.88% 33.75%
31 December 2015 55.48% 5T 44% 50, 33%
31 December 2014 47 255, 41 .94% 52 5T%
31 December 2013 -2.90% -4 55% 4. 44%
31 December 20127 5.13% 4.13% 11.72%

A Pas performance Sgunes shown ang nol indcalivg of the futune performmance of the Sub-Fung,
& The firdd finpnos pencd of the Sub-Fund covered from 11 July 2012 (dale of inception) bo 31 Decernber 2012,
= T firad financial penod of the Sub-Fund covared fom 17 July 2012 (date of incephion] bo 37 Decevrber 2072
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(2022 29 )

11,632,332,897.39
(227,412,108,144 )

83,621,983.98
(1,634,809,787 )

11,548,710,913.41
(225,777,298,357 )

282,450,000

40.8876
(799 )
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(2022 29 )

600,000,000
( 9,852 )
600,000,000

622 2014
100,000,000 1,642 2011 2021
100,000,000 1,642 400,000,000 6,568
2022 29 600,000,000 9,852
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CAMHK CEO CI0

ETF
ETF
2022 29 37

5,068

(2022 29 )
( )

6 72,206,905.61
5 1,000,025,289.84
11 1,072,232,195.45
- 13 2,468,631,972.46
3 32,363,042.62
5 204,508,041.77
21 2,705,503,056.85
3 104,521,041.24
2 50,992,335.09
5 155,513,376.33
37 3,933,248,628.63
( 5,068 )
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2021 12 31

2021

334,496,549
5,176,738

2021
JPY

5,492,433,335
85,002,038

2020

288,517,986
13,472,042

2020
JPY

4,737,465,330
221,210,930

339,673,287

5,577,435,373

301,990,028

4,958,676,260

(136,792,599) (2,246,134,476)

(46,004,679)
(25,085,707)

(16,474,687)
10 (13,576,323)

(755,396, 829)
(411,907, 309)

(270,514,361)
(222,923,224)

(179,343,164)
(40,452,971)

(36,132,640)

(10,592, 063)
(13,678,892)

(2,944,814,753)
(664,237,784)

(593,297,949)

(173,921,674)
(224,607 ,407)

(237,933,995) (3,906,876,199)

(280,199,730)

(4,600,879,567)

6,485,140

106,486,000

70,279,787

1,153,994,103

108,224,432

10 (1,520, 860)

1,777,045,174

(24,972,521)

92,070,085

(1,625,722)

1,511,790,796

(26,694,355)

106,703,572

(16,644,423)

1,752,072,653

(273,301,426)

90,444,363

(12,168,226)

1,485,096,441

(199,802,271)

90,059,149  1,478,771,227 78,276,137  1,285,294,170
6,035 99,095 (12,369) (203,099)
6,035 99,095 (12,369) (203,099)

90,065,184  1,478,870,322 78,263,768  1,285,001,071

11 36
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2021 12 31
2021 2021 2020 2020
JPY JPY
1,276,661 20,962,774 1,257,634 20,650,350
10 24,660,353 404,922,996 37,526,625 616,187,183
11 52,633 864,234 78,733 1,292,796
4,194,568 68,874,807 4,144,568 68,053,807
13 480,494 7,889,711 513,612 8,433,509
12 147,677,816  2,424,869,739 166,069,631 2,726,863,341
178,342,525  2,928,384,261 209,590,803  3,441,480,986
5,756,712 94,525,211 2,113,424 34,702,422
24,958,528 409,819,030
14 63,237,909 1,038,366,466 93,049,919  1,527,879,670
3,964,893 65,103,543 6,689,318 109,838,602
600 9,852
12 130,154,243 2,137,132,670 66,116,419 1,085,631,600
16 7,167,030 117,682,633 81,534,023  1,338,788,658
15 875,410,421 14,374,239,113 836,659,035 13,737,941,355
1,110,650,336 18,236,878,518 1,086,162,138 17,834,782,307
17 35,695,706 586,123,493 108,963,925 1,789,187,649
95,745,073  1,572,134,099 128,554,323  2,110,861,984
25,627,109 420,797,130 3,723,764 61,144,205
10 13,245,520 217,491,438 12,651,140 207,731,719
170,313,408  2,796,546,160 253,893,152  4,168,925,557
940,336,928 15,440,332,358 832,268,986 13,665,856,750
2,619,987 43,020,187 2,619,987 43,020,187
10 12,687,701 208,332,050 25,933,221 425,823,489
15,307,688 251,352,237 28,553,208 468,843,676
1,103,371,765 18,117,364,382 1,013,306,581 16,638,494,060
18 600,000,000 9,852,000,000 200,000,000  3,284,000,000
503,371,765  8,265,364,382 813,312,616 13,354,593,155
(6,035) (99,095)
1,103,371,765 18,117,364,382 1,013,306,581 16,638,494,060
36 2022
Gan Tian Li Fung Ming
11 36
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2021 12 31
2020 200,000,000 735,036,479 6,334 935,042,813
78,276,137 78,276,137
(12,369) (12,369)
78,276,137 (12,369) 78,263,768
2020 12 31 2021 200,000,000 813,312,616 (6,035)  1,013,306,581
90,059,149 90,059,149
6,035 6,035
90,059,149 6,035 90,065,184
18 400,000,000 (400,000, 000)
2021 12 31 600,000,000 503,371,765 1,103,371,765
JPY JPY JPY JPY
2020 3,284,000,000  12,069,298,985 104,004  15,353,402,989
1,285,294,170 1,285,294,170
(203,099) (203,099)
1,285,294,170 (203,099)  1,285,091,071
2020 12 31 2021 3,284,000,000  13,354,593,155 (99,095) 16,638,494,060
1,478,771,227 1,478,771,227
99,095 99,095
1,478,771,227 99,005  1,478,870,322
18 6,568,000,000  (6,568,000,000)
2021 12 31 9,852,000,000  8,265,364,382 18,117,364,382
11 36
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2021 2021 2020 2020
JPY JPY
106,703,572  1,752,072,653 90,444,363  1,485,096,441
13,576,323 222,923,224 13,678,892 224,607,407
26,100 428,562 30,658 503,404
4,088,577 67,134,434 (9,445,595)  (155,096,670)
1,520,860 24,972,521 1,625,722 26,694,355
(20,496,149)  (336,546,767) (8,129,215)  (133,481,710)
(428,755) (7,040,157)
16,377,284 268,915,003 (45,636,989)  (749,359,359)
632,970 10,393,367 (9,245,027)  (151,803,343)
(532,678) (8,746,573)
122,429,537  2,010,292,997 32,361,376 531,373,795
(50,600) (830,852)
(3,643,288)  (59,822,789) 884,118 14,517,218
29,812,010 489,513,204 5,239,512 86,032,787
2,724,425 44,735,059 1,240,430 20,367,861
(601,692) (9,879,783)
(73,268,219) (1,203,064,156) 15,219, 364 249,901,957
(32,809,250)  (538,727,885) 66,586,989  1,093,358,359
45,194,615 742,095,578 120,930,097  1,985,672,194
5,295,738 86,956,018 (30,141,522)  (494,923,791)
(3,698) (60,721) (1,930) (31,691)
50,486,655 828,990,875 90,786,645  1,490,716,712

(162,521,040) (2,668,595,477)

(71,712,320)

(1,177,516,294)

(7,800,000)  (128,076,000)  (77,526,700) (1,272,988,414)
(729,078)  (11,971,461) (405,728) (6,662,054)
177,569,391  2,915,689,400 133,232,119  2,187,671,394
5,666,459 93,043,257

6,519,273 107,046,462 (10,746,170)  (176,452,111)
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2021 12 31
2021 2021 2020 2020

JPY JPY
10 (14,172,000)  (232,704,240)  (13,539,346)  (222,316,061)
(14,172,000)  (232,704,240)  (13,539,346)  (222,316,061)
42,833,928 703,333,097 66,501,129  1,091,948,540
836,659,035 13,737,941,355 760,724,680 12,491,099,246
(4,082,542)  (67,035,339) 9,433,226 154,893,569
875,410,421 14,374,239,113 836,659,035 13,737,941,355
15 164,338,618  2,698,440,108 103,638,509  1,701,744,318
15 711,070,927 11,675,784,621 733,020,509 12,036,196,758
15 876 14,384 17 279
875,410,421 14,374,239,113 836,659,035 13,737,941,355
3,744,976 61,492,506 10,639,143 174,694,728

11 36
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2021 12 31
37
Securities and Futures Ordinance
2.1
HKAS HKFRS
HKFRS
2021 12 31
379(3) 2021 2020 12 31
2021 2020 12 31
436
2021 2020

406(2) 407(2) (3
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2021 12 31

2.1

2021 12 31

2.2

(a

2021

HKFRS HKAS 39 HKFRS HKFRS 16
2021 30 HKFRS 16
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2021 12 31

2.2

¢

2021 12 31
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2021 12 31
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2021 12 31

(a

( @
¢ @C)
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2021 12 31

33.33
20.00
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HKFRS
HKAS 39
(a
FVOCI

(b
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2021 12 31

(c

FVPL
FVPL

oClI oClI

FVPL
FVOCI

(d

HKFRS
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2021 12 31
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2021 12 31

¢

(c

«

(e

MPF
MPF MPF

MPF
MPF
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2021 12 31
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2021 12 31
12 IT
2021 2020

271,858,000 244,647,443
45,730,496 24,321,694
16,642,991 19,505,834
265,062 43,015
334,496,549 288,517,986
3,492,956 9,105,872
1,076,074 63,992
532,678

455,254
152,454 3,769,500
5,176,738 13,472,042

2021 12 31

2020 3,769,500
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2021 12 31

2021 2020
59,991,350 69,430,932
73,900,000 106,432,000
2,901,249 3,480,232
136,792,599 179,343,164

2021 2020
9,660,589 4,838,707
36,344,090 35,614,264
46,004,679 40,452,971

2021 2020
20,496,149 8,129,215
428,755
1o (16,377,284) 45,636,989
(632,970) 9,245,027

(7,266)

3,006,511 6,839,801
6,485,140 70,279,787

230/306
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8.25
16.5 2020  16.5
2021 2020
16,626,759 10,419,985
(17,020) 1,748,837
13 33,118 (1,893)
2,643 2,132
(1,077) (835)
16,644,423 12,168,226
2021 2020
106,703,572 90,444,363
14,524,472 15,989,742
(3,633,712) (6,508, 639)
5,767,686 939,121
4,074
(18,097) 1,748,002
16,644,423 12,168,226
13
4,047

231/306
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12,288,361 8,957,918 149,530 21,395,809
405,728 405,728

(115,800) (115,800)

12,288,361 9,247,846 149,530 21,685,737
66,240 340,028 322,810 729,078
12,354,601 9,587,874 472,340 22,414,815
(12,140, 256) (7.499,878) (117,402) (19,757,536)
(148,105) (622,716) (15,546) (786,367)
115,800 115,800

(12,288,361) (8,006,794) (132,948) (20,428,103)
(20,073) (678,436) (11,542) (710,051)
(12,308, 434) (8,685,230) (144,490) (21,138,154)
46,167 902, 644 327,850 1,276,661
1,241,052 16,582 1,257,634
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2021 2020
24,660,353 37,526,625
13,245,520 12,651,140
12,687,701 25,933,221
25,933,221 38,584,361

2020 38,528,804

2021 2020

12,866,272 12,892,525

1,520,860 1,625,722
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2021 12 31
10
(
2021 2020
(38,584,361) (12,093,942)
(38,404,043)
(1,520,860) (1,625,722)
12 31 25,933,221 38,584,361
(14,172,000) (13,539, 346)
2021 14,172,000 2020 13,539,346

234/306
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531,272
(421,881)
109,391

109,391
(30,658)
78,733

531,272
(452,539)
78,733

78,733
(26,100)
52,633

531,272
(478,639)
52,633
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2021 12 31
12
2021 12 31

ChinaAMC China Growth Fund ChinaAMC Select Fund ChinaAMC Investment Trust
NN(L) International China A-Share Equity

(a
2021 2020
17,224,418 103,640,837
69,274,624
61,178,774 62,428,794
147,677,816 166,069,631
2021 2020
130,154,243 66,116,419
(b
2021 2020
(15,792,816) 45,242,269
(584,468) 394,720
(16,377,284) 45,636,989
2021 12 31 24,958,528 2020
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2021 12 31
13
2020 511,719
1,803
2020 12 31 2021 513,612
(33,118)
2021 12 31 480,494
14
2021 2020
43,026,098 61,102,499
9,887,860 21,006,593
10,323,951 10,940,827
63,237,909 93,049,919
HKFRS

12 31
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2021 12 31
15
2021 2020
164,338,618 103,638,509
876 17
711,070,927 733,020,509
875,410,421 836,659,035
12 31 513,547,386 2020
541,205,322 279,329,819 2020 157,557,433
68,605,506 2020 132,928,551 152,662 2020 346,985
2020 92,184 13,775,044
2020 4,448,640 2020 79,920
16
2021 12 31
ChinaAMC Select China Leap Equity Fund 2020 ChinaAMC Investment Trust
2021 12 31 7,167,030 2020
81,534,023 2021 12 31
632,970 2020 9,245,027
17
2021 2020
33,511,684 108,440,174
2,184,022 523,751

35,695,706 108,963,925

238/306
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2021 12 31
18
2021 200,000,000 200,000,000
400,000,000
400,000,000
2021 12 31 600,000,000 600,000,000
2021 12 31 2021 12 24 400,000,000
400,000,000
2020 12 31
19
2021 2020
() 33,112,361 58,089,239
() 3,394,719 4,497,027
Mackenzie Financial Corporation (5,317,879)
(
NAV 0.2
(

NAV 15 20
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2021 12 31
19
2021 2020
6,492,521 22,105,721
15,313,223 2020 17,126,418
20
HKFRS

HKFRS

2020

240/306



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 12 31
20
2021 12 31
34,002,648 243,829,411 277,832,059
7,167,030 7,167,030
34,002,648 250,996,441 284,999,089
2020 12 31
232,186,050 232,186,050
81,534,023 81,534,023
313,720,073 313,720,073
21
22

(a
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2021 12 31

22

(a

HKFRS

HKFRS

(b
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2021 12 31
22
(b
2021 12 31
35,695,706 35,695,706
90,848,705 4,896,368 95,745,073
3,543,000 10,629,000 13,219,183 27,391,183
130,087,411 15,525,368 13,219,183 158,831,962
2020 12 31
108,963,925 108,963,925
51,503,425 77,050,898 128,554,323
3,543,000 10,629,000 27,391,183 41,563,183
164,010,350 87,679,898 27,391,183 279,081,431
(c

243/306
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(c
(
2021 12 31
2020 200,313,377
5,904,516
326,666
usD
USD HKD
(
2021 12 31
2020 100
3,555,355
(
2021 12 31

15,686,004
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96,559,322
1,893,578 2020 719,450
2020 11,900,196 796,231 2020
711,070,927 2020 733,020,509
50
2020 7,330,205

2020

14,249,954 2020
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23

12 16

2021 12 31
1,519,516,235
12,713,796
6,474,070
7,728,519
313,720,073

24

25

NAV

2020 8,609,520
2021 12 31

CITIC Securities

2022 18
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3,458,383,084 2020
3,990,616 2020
7,179,164 2020
284,999,089 2020
Co., Ltd.



EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(INGORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3t DECEMBER 2021

Notes 2021 2020
HIKS HES
INCOME
Revanie 4 334 486540 288 517 088
Other income 4 5176,738 13472042
Total income 339,673,287 301,950,028
EXPEMNSES
Employee benefils expanzes 5 {136,782.586) (179,343 164)
Administrative and other cperating expensas G (48,004,678) (40,452 871)
Distribution fees, sales commissions and rebates (25,085,707) (36,132,840}
Shared management and performance fees (16,474,687}  {10,592,083)
Depraciation 2 [4] (13,576,323} 13,678,892}
Tetal expanses (237,933,805) (280,198,730)
Other gains — net 7 __B485.140 70279787
OPERATING GAINS 108,224 432 92,070,085
Finance cost 10 (1,520,880} (1,825 722}
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 108,703,572 B0,444 3683
Tax a (16:644,423) {12 168,225)
FROFIT FOR THE YEAR 20,055,149 78,276,137
OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME
Other comprehensive Income to be reclassified suDsequantly
to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign cperaticns 5,035 (12,359)
Other comprehansive income for the vear, net of tax 8,035 {12,389)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNER _ 90085184 V8 283768

The notes on pages 11 to 36 are an infegral part of these consolidated firancial slatements,

g
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Metas 2021 2020
HKS HKS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Froperty, plart and equipment g 1,276,661 1,257,634
Right-of-use assats 10 24,860,353 a7 526,625
Intangible assets 11 52,633 78,733
Rental and utility daposits 4 184, 568 4 144 568
Deferred tax assels 13 480, 484 813812
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss 12 147, 677.816 166,089,531
178,342 525 208,580 803
CLRRENT ASSETS
Prepayments 5756712 2,113,424
Recaivable for investmenl sold 24 958 528 -
Fee recevables 14 83,237,509 #3.048,818
Other receivables 3,964, 803 5,559, 318
Rental and utility deposits Gog .
Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss 12 130,154,243 B6,116,419
Invastment in a fund 16 7167030 81,534,023
Cash and cash equivalents 15 875,410,421 836.850,035
1,110,850.336  1,086,162,138
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Fee payables 17 35,695,708 108,563,925
Other payables and accrued Fabilities 85,745,073 128,554,323
Tax payables 25,627,100 3,723,764
Lease liabilities 10 13,245 520 12,651,140
170,313,408 253,893,152
NET CURRENT ASSETS 940,336,828 832,268,986
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provision for leasehold reinstatemeant 2/519,587 2,619,937
Lease liabilities 10 12,687,701 25.933,29
16307688 28,663,208
MNET ASSETS 1,103,371, 765 1.013,308,581
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 18 600,000,000 200,000,000
Retained eamings 503.371,785 B13,312 816
Other reserves - {8,035)
Equily attributable to cwnar 1103371785  1,013.306.581

The consolidated financial statements on pages 6 to 38 wera approved by tha Board of Directors on 18

March 2022 and were signed on its behal!

lel

Gan Tian

The notes on pages 11 to 36 are an integral parl of these conselidated financial statements.

7
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
{(INCORPORATED IN HONG KCONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Share Retsinad Other
capital earnings reser/as Total
HKS Hiks Hik$ HKS
At 1 January 2020 200,000,000 735,038.479 6,334 935,042,813
Profit for the year - 78,275,137 . 78,275,137
Olher comprehensive income for the year
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operation = - (12,359) (12,369)
Total comprahensiva income for the year - 78,276137 (12,358) 78,253,768

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 200,000,000  813,312616 (5,035) 1,013,305.581

Prefit for the year - 90,059,148 - 90,059, 148
Other cemprehensive income for the year B

Exchange differences on translation of

foreign cperations - - 6,035 8,035
Total comprehensive income for the year - 80058148 B,035 80,065 184
Capitalisation of profits (Mote 18) 400,000,000 (400,000,000) . -
At 31 December 2021 800,000,000 S03.371,785 - 1.103,371.765

The notes on pages 11 to 36 are an inbegral part of these consclidated financia! statements.
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KOMG) LIMITED
{INCORFPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Ncotes 2021 2020
HKES HKS
CAEH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prafit before tex 108,703,672 0,444 363
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 8,10 13,576,223 13,578,882
Amertisation 11 26,100 30,658
Unrealised axchange lossesf{paing), net 4,088 577 {9,44E B85}
Flrance cost 10 1,520,860 1,625,722
Met geing on sale of financial assets held
at fair value through profit or loss T (20,458,149) {B,1258,218)
Net gains on sale of imvestment in a fund 7 - (428,755)
Met fair value lossesd(gains) on financial assets he'd
at fair value through profit or loss 72 16,377,284 {45,5385,989)
Met fair value lossesd(gains) on investrment in & fund 716 B325T0 (8,245,027)
Dividend income 4 - (532,578
122 420 537 32,361,478
Increase in rental and utlity ceposits {50,500) -
{Increase) decrease in prepayments {3,843 288) a84,118
Deacrease in fee receivabies 25,812,010 5,238,512
Decreasa in other receivables 724,425 1,240,430
Decraasea in income received in advanze - (B01.6892)
(Decrease)/increase in fee payables {73,268,21%) 15218384
(Decrease)incresse in other payables and 2ccrued
lkabilities {32,809,250) 56,585,868
Cash generated from operations 45,194 815 120,830,087
Horg Kang profits tax refunded/{paid) 5,285,738 (30,741 522)
Farelgn taxes paid 3,658) 1,830)
Met cash generated from operating activities 50,986 655 90,786,645
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTIMNG ACTIVITIES
Purchazes of financial assets held at {air vaiue
through profit or logs {162,521,040} (7T1,712,320)
Purchaszes of investment in a funa (7,800,000} {77,526 700)
Purchases of property, plant and equipmant (729,078} {405 T28)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assels held at
fair value through profit or loss 177,558,391 133,232 118
Proceads from disposal of investment in a fund - 5,888,459
Met cash generated fromf{used in) investing aclivities 5,519,273 (10,745 170}

The netes on pages 11 bz 35 are an integral part of these consolidated financial stalemants,
!

249/306



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
{INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS {CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2021

MNotas 2021 2020
HES HiKS
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITY
Princlpal elements of lzase paymenis 10 (14,172,000} {13,538, 345)
Met cash used in financing activity 114,172,000} {13.538,348)
MET INCREASE I CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 42 833,928 68,501,128
Cash and cash equivalants at beginning of year 835,859,035 780,724 680
Effect of forcign exchange rate changes, net (4,082 542) 8,453 228
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 875,410,421 838,555,035
ANALYEIS OF BALAMCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash al banks 15 184,338,818 103,538,509
Non pledged time deposits with original maturity of
less than three months 15 1,070,827 733,020,509
Cash an hand 15 876 17

875,410,421 836.658,035
f—— _ - -

MET CASH FLOWS FROM OCOPERATING ACTIVITIES
- INCLUDE:
[nterast receivad _ 5.744,578 10,638,143

—_—
_——

The notes on pages 11 to 36 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
10

250/306



EDINETOOOO

DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

MOTES TC CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR EMCED 31 DECEMBER 20214

1

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The reg'sterad office of China Asset Managemeant (Hong Kong) Limited (the "“Company”) is iocated at
37/F, Bank of China Tower, 1 Garden Road, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company consisted of asset management and invesiment advisory
services. The Company has a license under the Securities and Futures Ordinance, authorising the
Company to provide types 1, 4 and 9 regulated activities with regerds to dealing in securities, advising
on securifies and azsat management, respectively.

The Campany is a wholly owned subsidiary of China Asset Managemenrt Co., Lid (the "Parent’), a
company registered in the People’s Republic of China

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The principal accourting policies adopted in the preparalion of thess conzolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently aoplied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise siated,

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in ascordance with Hong Keng Financal
Reperting Standards ("HKFRSs", which term collectively includas Heng Kong Accouniing Standards
("HEASs") and Interpretations} izsued by the Hong Kong Institute of Cerified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepled in Hong Kong. The consclidated financial statements have
been prepared undar the histodcal cost convention excopt for finarclal assaets held al f2ir value
threugh profit or loss, that have been measured at fair valua,

The preparalion of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management io exercise ifs judgement in
the process of applying the Group's accounting policies.

The consclidated financial information for the year ended 31 December 2021 has been prepared for
reporting the resulls to the Parant. The Comparny, as a wholly owned subsidiary of #ts Parent, has
applied section 379(3) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance to prepare company level finarcial
slatements as the Company's stalutory financial stalerments for the year ended 31 December 2021
and 31 Decamber 2020 Consequently, these consolidated financial statements and the comparatives
do not constitute the Company's statutory financial statements for either of the years ended 21
Dacamber 2021 or 31 Decamber 2020,

Ag the Company is an unlisted company, it is net reguired to deliver its financial stetements to the
Reqgistrer of Companies snd has not done so.

Informalion relzting to the Company's staiuiory financial stalements reauired o be disclosed in
accordance with seclion 438 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

The Compary's audilor has reported on the company level financial statements for both years. The
auditor's reports were unqualified; did not include a reference to any matters to which the auditer draw

altention by way of emphasis; and did not contain 2 statement under sither sections 406(2), 407(2) or
(3) of the Heng Kong Companes Ordinance.

11
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
21 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of congolidation

The consclidated financial sttements include the financial stalements of the Company and is
subsidlaries {collectively referred lo as the “‘Group®) for the year ended 31 Decembar 2021, The
consclidated fnancial statemants of the subsidiaries ame preparad for the same reperting period as the
Company, uzing consistent accounting policies. The resulls of subsidiares are consolidated from the
date on which the Group obtaing control, and cantinue 1o be consclidated until the date that such
COntral ceasas.

Profit or loss and each companent of ofher comprehensive income are attribuled to the owner of the
Group and to the non-contralling interests even If this results in the non-centreliing interest having a
deficit balance. All infra-group assets and liabilites, equity, income, expenses and cash fiows ralating
to transactions belween members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation,

The Group reassesses whether or not it contrale an investes if facts and clreumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or mere of the three elements of cantrel described In the Bocounting paolicy
for subsidiaries below. A change in the awnership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of contral, s
accounted for as an eguily ransaction,

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, Il derecognises (i) the assets {including goodwilly and
kabiliies of the subsidiary, (i) the carying amount of any nen-controling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideralion recetved, (i) the fair value of any investment retained and (i) any resulting surplus or
deficit in proft or ioss. The Group's share of components  previously recognised in other
comprenensive income Is reclassified to profit or loss or retained eamings, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would bs required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assats er labilites.

2z CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Mewr and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards ard amendments for the first time for the annual
reporing periog commencing 1 January 2021;

. Interest Rate Banchmark Reform (phase 2) — Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 38, HKFRS 7
and HKFRS 18
. COVID-19-relaled Rert Corcessions beyond 20 June 2021 - Amerdment o HKERS 15

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recogrised in prior pericds
and are not expected to significantly affact the cuent or future pericds.

() Mew standards and interpretations not yet adopted

Cerialn new accounting standards and interpretations nave been published that are ot mandatcry for
31 December 2021 reporting periods and have not besn early adopted by the Group, Thess standards
are not expected to have a material impact on the entity in the current of future reporting periods and
on foreseeable fulure transactions.

12
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
{IMCORPORATED [N HOMG KOMNG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 20214
3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiarias

Subsidiaries are all entities (inciuding structured entilies} cver which the Group has contrel. The Group
cantrals an entity where the Group s exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its invelvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those relums through its power to direct the activities of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consclidated from the dafe on which contral s fransferred to the Group.
They are decensolidated from the dale thal conltrol ceases,

[nter-company fransactions, balances and unrealised gains on fransactions betwaen group companies
are eliminaled. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the ransaclion provides evidence of an
impairment of the fransferred asset Accounting policies of subsidiries have been changed where
necassary lo ensure consisteray with the policies adopted by the Group,

Mon-controling interests in the results ard cquity of subsidiaries are shown separatsly in the
consoldated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of financial positicn and
conzolidaled stalement of changes in egquily.

Busi izl 1 qoodwil

The sequisition method ef scecunting is used to account for all business combinalions, regardiess of
whether equity instruments or cther .assets are acquired. The consideration Irensferred for the
acquisition of 8 subsiciary comprizes the:

. fair values of the assets transferred;

. lizbilities incurred to the former awners of the acquired business;

- aquity Interesls lssued by the Group;

. fair value of any assel or liabdily resulting frem a contingent consideration arrangemant; and
* fair value of any pre-existing equily interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabiilies and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are, with fimited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, The Group
recogrises any nen-controlling interest in the acquired enfity on an scquisition-by-acquisilion basis
either at fair value or at the non-contreling interest's proportionate share of the acquired antity's net
identifiable assets,

Acquisition-related costs are expensed a8 incurred,
The excess of the:

. consideration transferred;
- amaunt of any non-contralling inlerest in the acquired enfity; and
* acquizilion-dale fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiabie assels acquired is recorded as goodwill, If those amounts are
lzss than the fair value of the net identifible assefs of the business acquired, Ihe difference is
recognized directly in profit or logs as a bargain purchase.

13
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN HOMG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUEL)

Business combinations and gaadwill (Cortinued)

Where seftlament of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is tha entity’s
ineremental bomowing rate, being the rale at which a simiar borrowing couls be obiained from an
indspendent financier under comparable tarms and conditions. Conlingent consideration is classified
eitner as equity or a financial lability. Amounts classified as a financial liabiify are subseguently
remeasured to fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss

If the business combinztion is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's
_ previously held equily interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the scquisition date. Any
gains or losses arising frem such remessuremant are recognised in profit or loss.

Impa‘rment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment axisls, or when gnnuzl impaimrment testing for an 33set i required
{other than financial assels), the assel's recoverabla amount is esfimated. An asset's recoverable
amount s the higher of the asset's or cash-ganerating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell, and s determined for an inalvidual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows thal
arg largely independant of those from other essets or groups of assels, in which caze the recoverasle
amount is determined for the cash-generating untt to which ihe sasst balonns.

An impalrment loss is recognised only §f the carrying amount of an assel exceads its recoveraole
ameunt. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted lo their orasen
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflecls current markel assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specthc to the asset  An impairment loss is charged fo the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income in the period in which it arses.

An assessment s made at each reporting cete as 1o whether there is an indication that praviously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication axists,
the recoverable amount is estimated, A praviously racegnised impairmeant loss of an asset is reversed
only if there has been @ change in the astimates used o determine the recoverable amaount of that
assel, however not 10 an amount higher than the carrving amaunt that would have bean datermined
(net of any deprecialionamortisation) had no impairment [oss been recognised for the assel in prior
years, A reversal of such impairmant lass is credited to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in the period in which it arises.

14
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HOMG KONG) LIMITED
{INCORPCRATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

HOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
3 SUMMARY OF BIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
{a} the party is a person or & close member of that perzon's family and that persan,

(i} has control or joint contral over the Groug;
{i}  has significant influence cver the Groug; or
{ii} iz a member of the key management personnel of the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

(b} the parly is an entity where any of the fallowing conditions applies:

{iy  the entity anc the Greup are members of the same group,
(i} one entity is an associate or joint wenture of the other enlity {or of a parent, subsidiary or
- fellow subsidary of the other entity);

(i} the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same thind party,

() one entity iz a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an essociate of the third
entity,

{v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group;

{wij the entity ks controlled cor jointly controlied by a persan identified in (a); and

{vil) aperson identified in (2)() has significant influence over the entity or is a membaer of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of 2 parant of the entity).

Provisions

& provision is recognised when s present obligation {lecal or constructive) has arisen as a rasult of a
past evant and it iz probable that a future outflow will b2 required to settlz the asligations, provided
that & reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting iz material, the amount resognised for a provision is the present value
at the financial year and of the fulure expenditures expacted to be required to seflle the cbligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amaunt ansing from the passage of Hme is included In
finarce costs in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income.

Intangible & with fini
Accounting software has a finite useful life and is amorised over the useful economic life and
assessad for impairment whenever there is an indicaticn that the intangible asset may be Impaired.

The amortisation pericd and the amcrtization methad for 2n intangible asset with a finite seful e are
revieweed af least at each financial year end.
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CHilNA ASSET MAMAGEMEMNT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(INCORPORATED [N HONG HONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENCED 31 DECEMBER 2021
3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

P nd aguip: L an raclation

FProperty, plant and eguipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment compriges its purchasae price and any
directly atiributable costs of bringing the asset fo ils working condition and location for s intendad use,
Expenditure incumed after items of property, plant and equipment have been put inle cperation, such
25 repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the consolifated statement of comprehensive
income in the period inwhich it is incurred. In sjituations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the
expenditure has resulled in an increase in the future ecanomic benefits expected to be obtained from
the use of &n item of property, plant and equipment and where the cost of the item can be measured
reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a rep/acement. Where
significant pars of property, plant and ecuipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful jives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off {ne cost of each ltem of proparty, plant
and equipment o its residual value over ils eslimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Cwer the leaschold term
Computer and office equipment 33.33%
Commurication egquipment 20.00%

Where parts of an ilem of preperly, plant and equipmant have different uzeful lives, fhe cast of that
item iz aliocated on a reasonable baszis among the parts and esch part s depreciated separalaly,
Rezidual values, uszeful lives and depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each financial yvear end,

Ar itern of pragarly, plant and equipment is derecognised upan disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal o retirement recognised
in the conzolidaled slatement of comprehensive income in the year the azsel is derecognised is the
differenca between the net sales proceeds and the camying amournt of the relevant assat.

Imvestment in a fund is classified as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale ransaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly
probatle. It is measured at the lower of their camying amount and fair value less costs to sefl. An
impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recogrised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to el of an
asset, but not in excess of any cumu'ative impalmient loss previcusly récognised. A gain or loss not
previousiy recognised by the date of the sale of the Investmeant in a fund is recognised 2t the date of
derecognition. Investment In a fund is not depreciated or ameortised while it is classified as held for
sake. Investment in a fund classified as heid for sale are presented separately from the othar assals in
the consolidated statemeant of financial position,
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

inancial i I 1

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that relate to the recognilion, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liakilifes, derecognition of financial instruments,
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.

(=) Classificalion

The Group classifies its financial assels in the following measurement calegories:
. those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or lass, and
. those to be measured at amoriised cost

The classification depands on the Group's business madel for managing the financlal assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assats measured at fair value, gains and lcsses will ether be recorded in profit or less or ather
cemprahensive income {"OCI"). For investments in eguity Instrurnents that are not held for rading, this
will depand on whether the Group has made an revocable elaction st the lime of initial recognition 12
acceunt for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income ["FVYOCI™).

(3] Recognition and derecognilion

Regulsr purchases and ssles of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits o purchase or seli the asset. Firanclal assels are derecognised whan thé rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expirad or have been lransferred and the Group has
transfamed subatantially all the rske and reveards of ownership,

{z) Measuremeant

Af initial recognition, the Group measuras a fingncial asset at s fair value plus, in the case of a
finanecial asset not at fair value through profit or [oss "FVPLY), transaction cosls that are direclly
altrizutable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaclion costs of financial assels carrled al
FWPL are expensed in proft or loss,

For equity instrumeanis, the Group subsegquently measures all equity invesiments at fair value, Whera
the Group's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses on eouity invesiments in
QCI, thare ks no subsadquent reclassification of fair value gains and lozses to profit or loss following the
derecognition of the investmant. Dividends from such investments continue to te recognised in profit
or loss as other income when the Group's ight to receive payments is astablished,

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recognised in other gainsflosses) in the
consclidated slatement of comprehensive income as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity invesiments measured at FVOC! are not reported separately from other
changes in fair value,

The receivables are recogrised inmally at fair value and subscquently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any provisicn for impaimmant.

i7

257/306



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Conlinued)

{c) Impairment

The Group assessas the expacted credit losses associated with the non-tracde and trade receivables.
The general model and simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 3 are applied respectively.

Cash and cash eguivalents

Far the purpose of the consolidated statemant of cash flows and consolidated statement of finarcial
position, cash and cash equivalenis represant cash on hands, cash al banks and fime deposils with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible fo known amounis of cash and
which are subject 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value,

Income tax

Inceme tax comprises curment and deferred tane Income tax is recognised in the consclidated
statement of comprehensive income or in eguity if it relates fo tlems that are recognised n the same
cr a different pericd, directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilittes are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacied by the end of the reporting peried, taking into censideration interpretations and practices
pravailing in the countries inwhich the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences at the end of reporting
period betwesn the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reparting
purposes.

Deferred tax assels are recogrized for all deductivle femporary differences, camy forward of unussd
lax credits and unused tax loszes, to the axtent that it is probable that future taxable profit will ba
avalable against which the deductible temporary diffierences, the cary forward of unused tax cradils
and unused tax lossas can be utilised, except:

. where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises from the
inittal recognition of an asset or [lablity In 2 transaction that is nol 2 business combinalion and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or less; and

. in respect of dedustible temporary differences associated with invesiments I subsidiades, joint
ventures, deferred tax sssels are only recognised fo the extent that it is probable that the

temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and future taxable profit will be
avaiable against which the temporary diferences can be utilisad.
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CHIMNS ASSET MANAGEMEMT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
{INCORPORATED IN HONG HONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

HOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMEER 2021
3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting peried and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profit will be avallable fo allow all ar
part of the deferred tax asset (o be utiised. Unrecognised deferred tax assels are reassessed at the
end of each reporting pericd and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable fhat
sufiicient fulure taxable proft will be available to zllow all or part of the deferred tax assel to be
recovened,

Deferred tax assels and liabilifes are measured at the taw rates that are expected to apply to the
pariod when the asset is realsed or the li3bility is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have
bean enacted or substantively enacted ai the repanting pericd,

Defarred tax assels and deferred tax liabilites are offset, if a legally enforceabls right exists to set off
current tax assals against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation auvthorly. Current tax assels and current tax liabilities are offset, it a lagally
enforceabla right exizts 1o set off and the Group intends sither to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
aaset and settle the liabiity simulianecusiy.

Revanua recagnition

Revanue i recogrized when i is probadle that the economic benafits will flow to the Group and when
the revanue can be measured reliably. on the following bases:

{(a) management and advisory fes incomes are recognised when the service has been rendered;

(b} Inferest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly ciscounts the estimatad fulure cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
inatrument or a shorfer period, when aporopriate, to tha net carrying amount of the financial asset;

() profit and loss on disposals of financial instruments classified as financial assets hald at fair value
through profit or loss are calculated using the first in first out method;

{d} performance fee s recognised on the performance fee valuation day of the Investment funds and
managed acoounts when there is a positive performance for the relevant performance period,
laking into consideration the relevant basis of calculation for the investment funds and managsd
accounts; and

(e) subscription and redemption fee income is recognised upon subscription and redemption by the
investors in the investment funds.
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CHINA ASSET MAMAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
{INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

MNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENMDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Empl mafi
Raliremrent schems

The Group parlicipates in a defined contribufion Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
gehema (the “MPF Scheme”} under the Meandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
~employees who are eligble to participale in the Scheme. Contribulions are made bssed on a
parcentage of the employess' basic salares and are charged to the consclidaled slatement of
comprenansive income as they become payable in accordanca with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assetz of the MPF Scheme are held saparately from those of the Group in an independently
administerad fund. The Group's employver coniributions vest fully with the employees whan
conbributed into the MPF Schama, axcept for the Group's employer veluntary cantributions, which are
refunded to the Group when the emplayes leaves employrment prior to the contribulions vesting fully,
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Schemaea.

Bomis

The Group recognises a liabillly and an expenss for bonuses. The Group recognises a liability where
caontractually obliged or where there Is a past practice that has created a constructive obigation.

Governmeant grants

Grants from the government are recegnised at their fair value where there is 8 reasonsble assurance
that the grant will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
nacessary to match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Foreign 3

These conzclidated financial statemanis are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HEE™), which is the
Company's functional currency and the Group's presentation currency.

Faoreign transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency rates prevailing at the date of
transactions. Monetary azsets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functicnal currency rales of exchange ruling at the financial year end. Al differancas are recognisad in
profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost In & foreign currency
are franslated using the exchange rates at the dates of initial transactions. Nen-menetary items
measursd at fair value in a foreign currency are transiated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was defermined. The gain or loss arising on transiation of a non-manetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in falr value of the item
{Le, ranslation difference on the ilem whose fair valug gain of 055 B recognised in ofher
comprebensive income or profit or loss is alse recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
lozs, rezpectively).
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
{INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FIMNANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2021
3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ({CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies {Candinued]

On consolidation the assets and Rabilties of fareign cperations are trenslated into HKS at the rate of
axchange prevailing at the reporing date and their statement of comprehensive income are franslated
at average exchange rales. The exchange differances arising on translation for consolidation ara
recegnised In other comprahansive income, On disposal of a foreign cperalion, the component of
other comprehensive income relaling o thal particular foreign operation is recognised in the
censoldated stalement of comprehansive incoma,

Any goodwill arising on the acquision of & forsion aperation and any fair value adjustments fo the
camying amounts of assets and Hablities arsing on acquisiion are resled as assets and liahilities of
the foreign eperation and ranslated at the closing rate,

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a comesponding liability at the date at which the
leasad asset is avallable for use by the Group.

Lease berms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain & wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lzase agreements do not impose any covenanis clher thar fhe sacurily interests in
the leased asseis that are held by the lessor Leased assels may not be used as security for
bormowing purposes.

Assets and liablities ansing from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease

liakblities include the net presant valua of the following lease payments:

- fxed paymen's (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives recalvalle;

. variable leaze payment that are based on an index or a rate are initially measurad using the
index or rate as at the commencement date;

. amounts axpectad to be pavable by the Group under residual value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase cplion if the Group is reascnably certain o exercize thal option;
and

- payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasorably ceriain extension cplions are also Insluded in the
maasurament of the liability.

The leaze paymanis are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rale cannot be
readily delermined, which is generally the case for leases of the Group, the lessee’s incremanial
bemowing rete is uged, baing the rate that the individual iessee would have te pay to bomow the funds
necessary 1o obtain an asset of similar value to the right-ef-use asse! in a similar economic
envircnmeant with simitar terms, security and conditions.
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
{INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

NOTES TO CONSCOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEBER 2021
3 SUMNMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Leases (Continyed)

To determine the incremental bormowing rate, the Group:

v where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the individual lesses as a slaring
point, adjusted to reflect changes n financing condificns since third party financing was
recenved; and

. uses & build-up approsch that stans with & risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit risk for
leases held by the Group, where the Group does not have recent third party financing, and
makes adjustments specfic to the lease, e.g. term, country, currancy and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in varable l2ase payments based on an index ar
rale, which are not included in the lease labilty until they take offect. When adjustiments o lease
payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease lakility is reassessed and adjusted against
the right-of-use assal.

Lease paymenis are allocated between principal and finance cosk. The finance cost is chalgad to
profit or loss over the lease peried S0 as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each pedod.

Right-of-use assels are measurad at cost comprising the following:

. the amaount of the initial measurement of lease Bability;

. any lease peyments made at or before the commencemeant date less any |ease incentives
received, ‘

. any [ritial direct costs; and

. regtoration costs

Right-of-use assels are ganerally deprecialed over the shorter of the aseel's useful life and the lease
term on a stralght-ine basis. If the Group is reasonably cerlain to exercise & purchase opfion, the
right-cf-use asset i3 depreciated over the underlying asset's useful life.

Payments associated with shori-lerm leases of aquinment and vehicles and 2l leases of low-value
aszets are recognised on a slraight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Shot-term l2ases are
leasas with a lease term of 12 monthe or fess, Low-value assets comprise IT eguipment and small
items of office fumiture.

Extension and termination options are included in the office lease agreement. Thesa am used (o
mesimise operational flexibilty in terms of managing the assets used in the Group's cperalions, The
mazjority of exiension and termination options held are exercisable by the lessor,
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONZ) LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY}

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
4 REVEMUE AMD OTHER INCCME

Management fee income

Performance fee income

Advisory fee incame

Subscription and redemption fa2 income

Interest incomea
Soft dollars income
Dividend incoma
Other ineome
Others (Note)

Pote:
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2021 2020

HKXS HECE
271,858,000 244,647 443
45,730,495 24,321 604
16,642,991 19,605,534
265,062 43,015
334 408,540 288,517,565
3,402 956 9,105.872
1,076,074 §3.982

. 532 €78

455,254 -
152,454 3,789.500
5.176,738 13,472,042

Others consisl of the government grants amoUnted to HKSNI under the Employment Support Scheme
provided by the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Gowvernment for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: HK$3,769,500). There are no unfulilled condiions or other contingencies
altaching to thesa grants. The Group did not benefit directly from any other forms of government

assistance,

5 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and benafils in kind
Banus

Pension schame contribulions

Legal and prolessional feas
General and administrative expenses (MNote)

Mobe:

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER OPERATIMNG EXPENSES

2021 2020
HKS HKS
59,801,350 69,430,832 -
73,900,000 108,432,000
2,901,249 3,480,232
136,782, 588 178,343,164
2021 2020
HiKS HKS
9,560,589 4,838,707
35,344 080 35,514,264
42,004 679 40 452 671

General and administrative expenses cansist of ravelling expenszes, information services expenses,
marketing and advertising expenses, building management fee and oiher adminisirative expenses.
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT {HONG KONG) LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN HONG KOMNG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

MNOTES TO CONSOLICATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDELD 31 DECEMEER 2021
¥ OTHER GAINS - NET

Met gains cn sale of financia’ assels held at fair
value through profit or loss

Met gains on sale of invesiment in a fund

Wet fair valua (lozsesigaing on financial aseeals hald
al fair value through orofit or koss (Mote 12)

Met fair value {lossesdaains on invesimeant in a fund

Losses on dereqistration of subsidiaries

Met foreign exchange gains

& TAX
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2021 2020

HKS HKS

20,496 148 B.129.215

- 428,755
(16,377,284} 45,636,565
(832,670} 8,245,027
(7,266) -
3,008,511 B,838,801
5,485,140 70,278,787

Hong Keng profils tax has been provided at the rate of 8.25% (2020 8.25%) for the first HES2 milion
of estimated assessable profits and 16.5% (2020; 16.5%) for the remaining estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable elzewhere have been
calcu'ated at the rates of tax prevailing in the junsdiction in which the Group operates,

Current lax — Hong Kong
Charge for the year
(Cverprovision) underprovision for prior year
Deferred tax chargeforedit) (Mole 13)
Current tax — elsewhere
Charge for the year
Overprovision far prior yaar
Total tax charge for the year

2021 2020

HxS HES
16,626,758 10,419,685
(17,020) 1,748,837
33,118 (1,893)
2,643 2132
(1,077} (835)
16,544,423 12,168,228

A recanclllation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the domeastic tax rates 1o the tax

expensa at the effective tax rale 3 as follows:

Frafit bafore tax

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to
profits in the respective countries

Income not subject to tax

Expenseas not deduchible for tax

Tax lass not recognised

(Overprovision)! Underprovision for prior year

Tax charge at the average effective tax rate

The average offective tax rate was 16% (2020 13%).

2021 2020

HES HES
108,703,572 90,444,353
14,524 472 15,660,742
(3,833.712) {6,508 638)
5,787,886 238,121
4,074 -
{18.087) 1,748,002
18,544,423 12,168,226

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the unused tax losses were incumed of HKS4, 047 (2020:
HKENIl) that can be caried forward indefinitely and have no expiry date.
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT [HOMNG KONG) LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN HONG KONZ WITH LIMITED LIABILITY}

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL BTATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
8 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Computer and .
Leasshold office  Communication
improvements eguipment . equipmant Taotal
HES HES HES HKE
Caost
At 1 January 2020 12,2688, 361 8,857.918 148,530 21,385,809
Additions - 405, 728 - 405,728
Disposals - {115,800 . - (115,800)
At 31 December 2020 12,288,261 8,247 846 149,530 21,885,737
Additions 56,240 340 028 332,810 728078
At 31 December 2021 12,354,801 9,587 874 AT2,340 22 414,815
Accumulated
depraciation
At 1 January 2020 {12,140,256) (7,459 878) (117,402} (18,757 ,536)
Depreciation {148,105 (522,716} {15,548) {785,367}
Digposals = 115,800 - (115,800}
At 31 Cecember 2020 {12,288, 381) (8,005,784) (132,848) 120,428,103}
Depreciation (20.073) (878 436) (11,542) (710,051)
Af 31 December 2021 (12 308 434) {8,685 230) (144,490} (21,138,154}
Net book value
At 31 Dacember 2021 48 167 E02 544 327,850 1,276 881
At 21 Dacember 2020 - 1,247,052 16,582 1,257 634
26
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY

NOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

10c LEASES

This note provides information for leases wihere the Group is a lesses.

0

iy

(iiiy

]

Amount recognised in the consolidated statament of financial pasiticn

The consolidated statemert of financial position shows the following amounts refating to
lBases:

201 2020
HEE HWE

Right-of-use assets
Office 24,680,353 AT 526 625

Lease liabilities

Current 13,245 520 12,851,140
Man-curment 12,887 701 25833221
25 833 221 38,584 361

Additions of the righi-of-use aszets during the year ended 31 December 20271 were HKSNI|
{2020; HK338,528,804),

Amounis recognized in the consa'idated statement of comprehansive income

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows the following amounts relating
io leases:

A0E1 2020
HES HIKE

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Odfice 12,688,272 12,892,525
Intarest expense (Included in finance cost) 1,520, 880 1,626,722

Amounts recognised in the consolidated staternent of cash Mows

2021 2020
HEE HKS

Cash flows from financing activity
Leasa liabilities as at 1 January (38,584,361) (12,083, 842)
Additions of lease liabilities - (38,404,043)
Interast expanse {1,520,860) {1,625,722)
Leasa liabilities as at 31 December 259332 38,584,361

{14,172,000) {13,538,346)

The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was HKS14,172,000 (2020: HKS13,539,348),
The Group's leasing activities and how these are accounted for
The Group leases an office. Rental contract is made for fixed pericds of 3 years, but may have

extension options as described in Mote 3. See Mate 3 for other accounling policles relevant to
larses.
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED

{INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

NOTES TCO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMEER 2021
11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At 1 January 2020
Cost J
Accumulated amortization
Met bock amount

Year ended 31 December 2020
Opening net book ameunt
Amorisztion charge

Cloging net book amount

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
Cost

Accumulated amortization

MNet book amount

Year ended 31 December 2021
Cpening net book amownt
Amorisation charge

Closing net book amaunt

At 3 December 2021
Cost .
Accumulated amorisation
Net bock amount
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Software
HKS

531,272
_ (421,881)
108,381

108,31
(30,858)

78,733

831,272
452,53

78,733

78,733
(26.100)

52,633

531,272

(478638
52,633

The intangible assels are comprised of purchased software and they have an economic life of 3 years,
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

12 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSE
Ag at 31 December 2021, the Group's financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss
consisted of investment funds managed by the Group, mainly including ChinadMC China Growth

Fund, ChinaAMC Select Fund, ChinaAMC Investment Trust and MM{L} Intemational China A-Share
Equity. '

(@) Classificaticn of financial assets held at fair valua thraugh prafit or loss

2021 2020
HKE HKE
Non-current assets
Investment funds = Hong Kong 17,224,418 103,540,837
Investment funds = Cayman |slands 659,274,624 -
Investment fund — Luxemburg 81,178,774 B2 428784
147 B77 B1E 156,069,631
2021 2020
HiCE HKE
Current assets .
Investment funds = Hong Kong 130,154,243 55,116,418
(B}  Amounts recognised in profit or loss
202 2020
HKS [ (]
Fair value (losses)/gains on non-cumrert financial assets
held at fair valua through profit or loss (15,792,818) 45 242 269
Fair valuz (losses)/gains on current finencial assets hald
at fair value through profit or loss (584, 468) g4 20
Met fair value {losses gains on financial aszets held at fair
valua throuah profit or loss (Nota 7) (16,377,284) 46,636,989

Ag at 31 December 2021, the Group has a receivakle for investiment sold amounted to
HK$24, 958,528 (Z020: HKSNIT),

13 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The movements in deferred tax assets during the year are as follows:

Depreciation in

excess of

depraciation

allrwarce

HKS$

At 1 January 2020 511,718
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated statement of comprahensive

ircome during the year (Note 8) o 1,883

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 §13,612
Deferred tax charged fo the consclidated statement of comprehensive

income during the year (Mote 8) 123,118)

At 31 December 2021 480,494
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITEDR
{(INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WWITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
14  FEE RECEIVABLES

2021 2020
HiKE HKS
Management fee receivables 43,026,098 81,102,499
Parformance fee receivables 9,887 880 21,008,595
Advisory fea receivables 10,323,851 10,840,827

53,237,808 £3,048,919
The Group's business terms with its customers are mainly on credit. The credit pericd is generally
ranged from cre o three months, extending up to sx months for major customers. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its ouistanding receivables, Overdue balances are reviewed regularly oy
the maragemen!, In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group's fee recaivanles reiate
to number of diversified customers, there iz no significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its fee receivables. Fee raceivabies are nor-
interest-bearing.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simoliied approach fo measuring sxpected credit lusses which uses
a lifetime expected loss allowance for all fee receivables. To measure the expecied credit losses,
trade receivables has bean grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.
Az of the yvear and dale, all fee receivables of the Group are neilher past due nor impained.

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2021 2020

HES HES

Cash al banks 164,338,618 103,638,505
Cash on hands B7e i7
Time deposits 711,070,927 733,020,508
87541041 B35 659,035

Cash at banks esams interests at flosting rates based on daily bank depost rates. The carrying
amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair values, Short-ierm time deposits
are made for varying perods of betwesn one day and three months depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Group, and earn interests at the respective short-term time deposit rates.

At the end of the reporting pericd, the cash and cash equivalents of the Group denaminated in Hong
Keng collar, United States dollar, Renminki, Japanese Yen, Australan dollar, Euro and Canadian
dollar amourted to HKE513 547,385 (2020: HK53541,205,322), HKS279,328,819 (2020:
HIK8157,857,433), HIKSGE, 605,506 (2020 HKS132,928,.551), HK3152,652 (2020: HKE345,985), HKS4
(2020: HK$52,184), HKS13 775,044 (2020: HKS4448640) and HKSMIl (2020 HKSETS G20
respeclively. .
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

i6 INVESTMEMNT IN A FUND
As at 31 December 2021, the Group's investment in a fund consisted of an investmant fund managed
by the Group, namely ChinadhMC Select China Leap Equity Fund, which domiclie in Hong Kong (2020
ChingAMG [nvestment Trust), The investment in the funds are short-term holding with market value of
HKEY, 167,030 as of 31 Cecember 2021 (2020 HKSE1,534,023). The unrealised (lossesygaine on
investment in funds of (HK$E32,970) (2020: HK39,245,027) was recagnised in profit or loss during the
year ended 31 Decamber 2021.
The directors of the Group are committed to a plan to market to new investor the investment fund
andfor perform redemption to reduce the percentage of sharenotding within one year.
17 FEE PAYABLES
2021 2020
HKS HKS
Distribution fee, sales commission and rebate payables 33,811,684 108,440,174
Other payables 2,184,022 523,751
35,655,708 108,963,525
18 SHARE CAPITAL
Number of Share capital
sharas HKS
Issued and fuliy paid (ordinary sharas)
At 1 January 2021 200,000,000 200,000,000
Issue of sharcs 400,000,000 -
400,000,000

Capitalisation of profits
Al 31 December 2021

800,000,000 B00,000,000

Duwing the year ended 3% December 2021, pursuant to an ordinary resclution passed on 24 December
2021, 400,000,000 ordinary shares of HKS1 each were issued at par to the sole sharcholder of the
Company, by way of capialisation of profits. The balance of retained eamings of HK$400,000,000 was
capitalized as capilal and transferred to share capital in the conzclidated siatemant of financial pesition.

During the year ended 31 December 2320, there was no movement in shase capiial,
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CHINA ASSET MANAGENENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(INCORFORATED IN HOMG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

MOTES TC CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
18 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
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In addition lo the transastions detsiled elsewhers in these consolicated financial statements, the
Group had the fol owing material related party transactions during the year,

Management fee income from managed funds

Paerformance fee ineome from managed funds

Invesstment advisory fee to Mackenzie Financial
Corporation

Motas:

Netes 2021 2020

HKS HES
) 23,112,361 58,089,239
iy 3,394,719 4,497,027

(5,317,874 -

(i} This represernis management fee received from funds with a common direclcr. The fee s
calcufated at rates ranging from 0.2% to 2% per annum of the net asset value ("NaVT) of the

managed funds at each valualion point.

(i) This represeris performance fee received from funds with @ commen direstor. The fees is
calculated at rales ranging from 15% lo 20% of the appracialion in tha NAY (before deduction
of any accruad performance fea) per participating share of the ralevant class,

Ouistancing balancesz wilh refated parties:

Fes receivables from managed funds

2021 2020
HKS HKS
5,492 531 22105721

All outstanding balarces were unsecured, inferest-free and were repayable within three months. The
above fee recaivables consisted of managament fee and performance fee receivables.

The salaries and other sher-term benefits paid or payable to key management fer employes services
for the year amounted to HKE15,313,223 (2020: HKS17,128,418).

k= |
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CHIMA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
{INCORPORATED IN HOMG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR EMDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
20 FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The assets and lizbilittes not measured at falr value are carried at amerlised cost and their camying
vailies gra & reasonable approximation of Fair value,

The Group sdopied the amendmant to HKFRS 7 Tor financial instruments that are messured in the
congclidated staterment of financial position at fair value, The adoption of HKFRS 7 reguires disclosure
of fair value measurements by level of the following fair value measurement higrarchy:

*  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markeis for dentical assets or liabilifies (level 1),

* Inputs ather than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
&ither directly (thal is, as prices) or indirectly (that Is, derved from prices) (level 2);

* Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on obsarvable market data (that i, unobservable
inputa) (level 3).

During the year, there weare no transfars of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Lavel 2 and
no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilties (2020: Nil).

The following tabla presents the Group's financial assels that are measured at fair value:

Leval 1 Level 2 Total
HKS HKS HKS
21 December 2021
Financial assets held at fair valus
thirough prefit or loss 34,002,648 243,828,411 277,832,009
Imvastment in a fund . 7,167,030 7167 030
34,002,848 250 B85 441 284, 959,089
31 December 2020
Financial assets held at fair value
through prefit or less - 232,186,050 232,186,050
Investrment in a fund - 81,634,023 81,534 023
- 313,720,073 313,720,073

21 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The primary objectives of the Group's capilal management are to safeguard the Group's abllily to
corlinue as a going concern 5o that it continues 1o provide returns for sharehaolder and to support the
Group's stability and growth. No changes were made in the objectives, pelicies or processes for
managing capilal during the year.

22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial assats comprisa financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss,
rental &nd ulility deposits, fee receivables, other receivables and cash and cash eguivalenis. The
Group has various financial Fabies such as fee payables, income recelved In advarce and other
payables and sccrued lisbilities, which arise directly from ils operations.

Risks arising from helding financial inslruments are inherent in the Group's activities and are managed
through a process of ongoing identification, measursment and monitaring. The main risks arising from
the Greup's financial instruments are credit rigk, liquidity rizk and market risk

a2
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CHINA ASSET MAMAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
{INCORPORATED IN HONG KOMNG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

MOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2021
22 FINANCIAL RISK MAMAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

{a) Credit nsk

Credit risk relates to the axtent to which fallures by counterparties to discharge their obligations
could reduce the ameunt of fulure cash flows frem financial assels on hand as at the financial
year end. The Group is expesad to credit risk mainly on cash and cash equivakents (including
time deposits), financial assets held at fair value through profit or less, fee receivables,
investment in a fund and the rental deposits paid for the cperating lease arangeaments.

Credit risk arises from credit exposures with respect (o the investment funds and advisory
ascounts on the outstanding fee receivable, The CGroup assesses the credit quality of the
counterparties, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other fastors, The
Board of Directors does not expect any losses from non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group applies the HKFRS 8 general mode! for the non-trade receivables and simplified
approach to measure the expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all fee receivables.

All the Group's cash and cash eguivalents are held in major financial institutions located in Hong
Kong, which the Board of Direclors believes are of high credit quality, The Beard of Directors
considers that the Group does not have a significant concentration of credit risk.

Tha icentified impaiment loss under simplified approach was immaterial as the history of
cefaults from fes receivables are minimal.

As the amount of non-rade receivebles was immaterial, the identified impairment was
considered as minimal.

Cash and cash equivalerts snd olher receivables are alzo subject to the impairment
requirements of HKFRS 8, {he identifed impainmant loss was immaterizl,

The Group minimizes exposurs lo credit sk by dealing with creditwoerhy counterparties and the
Group's management continuously monitors credit concentrations to reduce the azsociated risk.

The maximum expasure to credit risk related o the Group at the financial vesr end is the tatal
carrying value of each financial azset in the consclidated statement of financial position.

(b}  Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in raising funds o mest
commitmenis associated with financial instruments. The Group's strategy is to minimise its
exposura to liquidity risk by monitoring the liguid capitai from tima to ime.

a3
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CHINA ASSET MAMAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITEDR
{INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

MOTES TC CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2021
2 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVEE AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(p) Ligquiaity risk {Cantinued

The maturity prefile of the Group's financial assets and financial lisbilities at the financial year
end, based on the cantractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

3 Cecamber 2021 D on
demand and
within 3 3 maonths 1o
monihs 1 year 110 5 years Total
HKS HKS HES H&S
Financial liabilities
Fee payables 35,695,706 - - 35,595,708
Olher payables and accrued
liablithes 90,548,705 4,808 354 - 9% 745 075
Lease liabillies 3,543,000 10 828 000 13,219,182 27,361,183
Total undiscounted finaneial
Ifabilities 130 087 411 15,525,364 13,219,183 155,531,967
31 December 2020 Due on
demand and
within 3 3 months to
manths 1 year 12 Syears Tuotal
HES HKE HES HKS
Financial liablites
Fee payables 108,963 925 - - 108,863,825
Othier payables and accrusd
iabiftias 51,503,825 T7.050.208 - 128,554,323
Lease liabiities 3,543,000 10,629,000 27,391,183 41,5683 183
Tedal undiscounted financial .
liabilities 154,010,350 87 B79.393 27,381,183 278,081,431
() Darket sk

Market risk is the risk that the falr value or fulure cash flows will fluctuste due to changes in
market variables such as foreign exchange rates and interest rafes. Market risk 's managed and
moniored on an an-going basls by the management.

{i) Foreign currancy rigk

Currency rigk is the risk that the future cash flows or the fair value of financial instruments
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The functional currency of the Company is HKS. The Group Is thus exposed to forelgn
currency resk which arizes from its transactions denominated in currencies other than the
Company's funclional currency. The primary currency giving risa to this risk is Renminbf
{"RME") ana Euro ("ELR"),

The net exposure in RMB and EUR as at 31 December 2021 was RMBSE,559 322 (2020:
RMEBEZ200,313,377) and EUR1,853,578 (2020: EURT19 450) respectively. Assuming a 5%
change on the RME and EUR exchange rate, the effect on profit before tax and equity of
the Group s HKE5,204,516 {2020: HKS11,900,196) and HKETIS 231 (2020: HK$326 B85

respactivaly.

Ag the United States dollar ("USE’) is currently pegged to the HKS within 2 nasrow range,
the Group doos not expact 2ny significant movement in USEHKS exchangs rate.

34
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG] LIMITED
{INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIAZILITY)

MOTES TO CONSCLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 21 DECEMBER 2021

22

23

FINAMCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
{e)  Market risk (Continued)

{1 Foreign currency nzk {Contnued)

In order to manage the foreign currencies risk, the Group performs regular review on the
currency profite of the financial assets and financial liabiities held, and consider appropriate
actions according to expectation on market. At the financial year end, the managemant
considers the Group’s exposure to foreign currency rsk to be minimal as the Group has the
rigsrg to negotiate with fts majer counterparties to settle the financial instruments by HES or
USE.

{ii} Interestrate risk

Interest rate risk (s the dsk that the value or future cash flows of & financial instrument will
fiuctuate because of changes [n interes! rates,

As at 31 December 2021, the Greup (s expased bo interest rate risk mainly fram halding the
time deposits amcunted to HEST11,070927 (20200 HESTA3020,509). Assuming the
interest rate has increasedf{decreased) by 50 basis points (2020 100 basis points) with alt
other variable held constant, this wouls increasef{decraase) the prafit before taw and equity
of the Group by approximately HKS3,555,353 (2020: HEET 330,208).

(B Price risk

Financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss and investment in a fund malnly
represent seed capital invested in the funds managed by the Group. The fair value of the
Investments fluctuates in eecordance with their performance.

As at 31 December 2021, if the performance of the funds increased/(decreased) by 5%
(2020: 5% with all other variables held constant. this would increasef{decrease) the profit
bafore tax and equity for the year by approximately HKS 14,249,054 (2020: HK515,685,004).
In practice, the actual performance of the funds will differ from the sensitivity analysis
depanding on the market condilions and investment slrategy. The difference could be
matarial,

LUNCONMSOLIDATED STRUCTURED ENTITIES

The Group manages several investment funds (Mote 12 and Mote 18) which mest the dafinition of
strustured entilies. The Group holds interesls in these structured ertities through the recaipt of
management fees and performance fees from these funds, and an egquity holding In certain of these
funds.

As at 31 Desember 2021, the total MNAV of these managed funds were appraximately
HIKS3 458 283,084 (2020: HK$1,519,518235) The Group's inlerest in these managed funds was
mainly management fee income of HKS12,713,796 (2020; HKEB,509,520) and performance fas
income of HK33,990,615 (2020: HKE5,474,070) for the year, Including culslanding fee recelvables of
HK$7 179,184 (2020: HKS7,728,519) as at 31 December 2021, The equily holding in ceftan of these
funds amounted to HKS284, 990 088 (2020; HK3313,720,073). The maximum exposurg lo loss is
equa to the interest shown above.

a5
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CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED .
{INCORPORATED IN HOMG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

NOTES TC CONSOLIDATED FIMANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021
24 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors regard CITIC Securities Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in the Poople’s Republie of
China as the ullimate halding company of the Company.

25 APFROVAL OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These consolidaled financial statements were approved and authcrised fov issue by the Board of
Directors an 18 March 2023,

26
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ETF

ETF

49 Transfer of Business (Protection

of Creditors) Ordinance (Cap.49 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

57 Employment

Ordinance Cap.57 of the Laws of Hong Kong
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(Cititrust Limited)
() (2022 30 ) 34

(Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited)
) (2022 30 ) 80,239,882

(Citibank, N.A.)
) (2022 30 ) 750,691,061

(Citibank (China) Co., Limited)

() (2022 30 ) 3,970
()
ABN
« )
« ) « )
JP
«c )
« )
UBS ( )
ABN
ABN AMRO Clearing Hong Kong 1,469, 300,000 /
- 2022 19
Limited)
2,342,559,515
5,813,300 /
Barclays Bank PLC 3,185,600
2021 31
BOCI Securities 406 /
Limited 2021 12
China
B, ) . 3,900
International Capital Corporation /
L - 2021 12 31
Hong Kong Securities Limited
Merchants Seguritzes (HK) CoChlna 5,500 /
. o 2021 12 31
Limited)
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CITIC 2,150 /
Securities Brokerage (HK) Limited 2022 30
Citigroup 3,583 /
Global Markets Asia Limited 2022 30
Credit Suisse 25822’902’028 /
Securities (Hong Kong) Limited
Goldnan 202151i;125258 /
Sachs (Asia) Securities Limited
Guotai
Junan Securi:ies zHon Kong) o 7,500 /
ne g ong 2021 12 31
Limited
Haitong
. - 11,500
I?t?rnatlonal Securities Company 2021 30 /
Limited
Huatai
Financial Hofdin 2 (Hong Kon ;a a 8,800 /
o g g g 2021 30
Limited
P 148,500,000
J.P. Morgan Broking (Hong ! /
- 2021 12 31
Kong) Limited
Korea
Investment & Securities Asia 475 /
o 2021 12 31
Limited
Merrill Lynch Far East 17 /
- 4 2021 12 19
Limited
( ) Mirae 14,582,950,000 /
Asset Securities (HK) Limited 2020 11 27
Morgan 126,750,002 /
Stanley Hong Kong Securities 2022
Limited
179,700
Nomura International 100 /
(Hong Kong) Limited 89,071,000
g fong 2022 26
( ) SG 881,286,500 /
Securities (HK) Limited 2021 15
The 116,102,479,495
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking 7,198 /
Corporation Limited) 2021 30
UBS
UBS Securities Hong Kong 8,354,171,402 /
- 2022 30
Limited)
Yuant
Securitigs (Hzn Kong) Co:aZna 2,268,132,525 /
o g g pany 2021 10 22
Limited
Zhongtai 1,505 /
International Securities Limited 2022 30
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IMC
BNP
« ) « ) DRW
IMC
( ) AP
Capital Management (Hong Kong) 32,433,500 /
o 2022 26
Limited
BNP
BNP Paribas Securities 45832’950’522 /
(Asia) Limited
DRW 96,277,367 /
DRW Singapore Pte. Ltd. 2022
Eclipse Options (HK) 42,384,197 /
o 2022
Limited
5,128,205
o Flow Traders Hong Kong 2022 20 /
Limited
Haitong
International Securities Company 11,500 /
. 2021 30
Limited
IMC 41 /
IMC Asia Pacific Limited 2021 14
Interactive 3,265 /
Brokers Hong Kong Limited 2022
Jane Street 2021’528’022 /
Asia Trading Limited
97
Jump /
Trading Pacific Pte. Ltd. 2021 28
( ) Mirae 14,582,950,000 /
Asset Securities (HK) Limited 2020 11 27
Optiver Trading Hong 20;2’500’022 /
Kong Limited

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited www . hkex . com.hk

(HK Conversion Agency Services Limited)
(2022 19 )
ETF
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ETF
ETF
ETF
1814
1970
1980
RQFII
RQFII
ETF ETF
http://etf_chinaamc.com.hk/HKen/CS1300
ETF
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ETF
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ETF

China Asset Management Co., Ltd.
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REIT
Code on Real Estate Investment Trusts REIT
10
17
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Ltd.
20
REIT
REIT 20
21
21
21
21
300
REIT
REIT
20
REIT REIT
50,000

10,000
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17

MPF
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (General) Regulations MPF
MPF MPF
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority MPFSA
MPF
MPF
MPFSA MPF
(1)
(i) (i)
Financial Dispute Resolution Scheme FDRC

FDRC
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ChinaAMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(ChinaANC ETF )

12 40 ChinaAMC CSI 300 Index ETF
ChinaAMC ETF
2021 12 31

IFRS 2021 12 31

I1SA
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ChinaAMC CSI 300 Index ETF

(ChinaANC ETF )
2021 12 31 2021 12 31
16,485,209,161
99.52
300
2021 12 31
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IFRS
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Wong
Man Kin
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296/306



EDINETOOOO
DOo00oOOo0ooDooooo00Do00Doo0onE27312)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Independent auditor®s report

To the unitholders of ChinaAMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ChinaAMC CSI 300 Index ETF (a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF
Series (the "Trust") and referred to as the "Sub-Fund™) set out on pages 12 to 40, which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in net assets attributable to unitholders and the statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial disposition of
the Sub-Fund as at 31 December 2021, and of its financial transactions and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing ("ISAs™). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Sub-Fund in
accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code™) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying financial statements.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Existence and valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 December 2021, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss amounted to RMB
16,485,209,161, which represented 99.52% of the
net asset value of the Sub-Fund. These financial
assets were listed shares on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange or the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and there
were 300 constituent listed shares in the Sub-
Fund. They were held by custodians and measured at
fair value. We focused on this area because the
financial assets at fair value through profit or
element of the

We obtained independent confirmations from the
custodians of the investment portfolio held at 31
December 2021, and agreed the quantities held to the
Sub-Fund®s accounting records. We evaluated the
design and tested the operating effectiveness of
financial instrument valuation controls. In addition,
we tested the valuation of the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss that were quoted in
active markets by independently agreeing the
valuation of financial assets to third party sources

at 31 December 2021.

loss represented the principal
financial statements.
We assessed the adequacy of disclosures relating to

Refer to disclosures on fair values of financial
instruments in notes 10 and 11 to the financial
statements.

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
against the requirements of IFRS.

Information other than the financial statements and auditor™s report thereon

The Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-Fund are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor®s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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Independent auditor®™s report (continued)

To the unitholders of ChinaAMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

Responsibilities of the Manager and the Trustee for the financial statements

The Manager and the Trustee are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as the Manager and
the Trustee determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Manager and the Trustee are responsible for assessing the
Sub-Fund®s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Manager and the Trustee
either intend to liquidate the Sub-Fund or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

In addition, the Manager and the Trustee of the Sub-Fund are required to ensure that the financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of the
trust deed dated 28 May 2012 (the “ Trust Deed), as amended or supplemented from time to time, and
the relevant disclosure provisions of Appendix E of the Code on Unit Trusts and Mutual Funds (the
"SFC Code™) issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements. In addition, we are required to assess whether the financial statements
of the Sub-Fund have been properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure provisions of Appendix
E of the SFC Code.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Sub-Fund"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Manager and the Trustee.
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Independent auditor®™s report (continued)

To the unitholders of ChinaAMC CSI 300 Index ETF
(a sub-fund of ChinaAMC ETF Series)

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Manager and the Trustee's use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Sub-Fund®s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Sub-Fund to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Manager and the Trustee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Manager and the Trustee with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Manager and the Trustee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor®s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on matters under the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant
disclosure provisions of Appendix E of the SFC Code

In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly prepared, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant disclosure provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant disclosure
provisions of Appendix E of the SFC Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor®s report is Wong Man Kin.

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
23 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited (the
and its subsidiaries (the “ Group” ), which are set out on pages 6 to 36, comprise:
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021;

Company” )

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“ HKFRSs” ) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the “ HKICPA” ).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“ HKSAs” ) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA' s Code of Ethics for Professional

Accountants (the “ Code” ), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Report of the Directors, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’ s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY) (CONTINUED)

Other Information (Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the
Group’ s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor
" s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’ s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’ S REPORT

TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(INCORPORATED IN HONG KONG WITH LIMITED LIABILITY) (CONTINUED)

Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’ s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’ s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’ s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the directors of the Company regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 March 2022
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